
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 3
Request Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August
14, 2012

Board Minutes 8-14-12 8
Request Approval of Resolution No. 08-2012/13 to Authorize
Signatures on Designated MUSD Accounts/Documents

Agenda Item Cover and Resolution No. 08-2012/13 19
Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between
Madera Unified School District and Linda Tuttle, retired
certificated school nurse.

Agenda Item Cover 26
Tuttle Services Agreement 27

Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between
Madera Unified School District and Kathryn Funk, retired
certificated school nurse.

Agenda Item Cover 29
Funk Services Agreement 30

Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between
Madera Unified School District and Houghton Mifflin
Harcourt/Riverside Publishing.

Agenda Item Cover 32
HMH Services Agreement 33

Request Approval of individual agreements between Madera
Unified School District and thirty three (33) approved
Supplemental Educational Services (SES)providers by the
California Department of Education to provide tutoring services
to students who are enrolled in Program Improvement schools

Agenda Item Cover 35
Sample SES Agreement 37

Request approval of Change Order #2 for La Vina Paving
Project

Agenda Item Cover 52
Change Order #2 - RC General Engineering Proposal 53

Request approval of Change Order #3 for La Vina Project
Agenda Item Cover 54
Change Order #3- RC General Engineering Proposal 55

Request Approval of the 2012-13 Adopted Budgets for Sherman
Thomas Charter, Sherman Thomas Charter High, and Ezequiel
Tafoya Alvarado Academy.

Agenta Item Cover and 2012-13 Charter Schools
Adopted Budgets 57

Request Approval of Staffing List
Staffing List 8-28-12 106

Field Trips 8/28/12
Student Overnight or Out of State Field Trips 108

Second Reading and Request Approval of Revised Board
Policies and Administrative Regulations (7000 Series)

1



Agenda Item Cover 109
Board Policy Updates 7000 Series 110

Second Reading and Approval of Revised Board Policies,
Administrative Regulations and Exhibit.

Agenda Item Cover 134
BP 5126 135
AR 5126 137
BP 5131 140
BP 5131.2 144
BP/AR 5141.6 148
BP/AR 5144.1 156
AR 5144.2 183
BP 5145.3 190
E 5145.6 195
BP/AR 5145.7 212
BP  6145 221
AR 6145 223
AR 6159 231
BP 6178.1 245
AR 6178.1 248

Request Approval of the Madera Unified School District
Strategic Action Plan

Agenda Item Cover 252
Strategic Action Plan 254

The Governing Board is requested to adopt the findings,
conclusions and recommendations related to the possible
expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are presented to the
board in one or more of the following forms of documentation:

Agenda Item Cover 314
Request Approval of Commercial Warrant Listing

Agenda Item Cover and Commercial Warrant Listing 315

2



Audio File No. 03 – 2012/13 

MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Every Child, Every Day, Whatever it Takes! 
 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, August 28, 2012 
Madera Unified School District Boardroom – 1902 Howard Road, Madera, California 93637 

5:30 PM – Closed Session    •    7:00 PM – Public Meeting 
 

OUR MISSION 
Highest Student Achievement 

Orderly Learning Environment 
Financially Sound and Effective Organization 

 
 

The public is welcome to comment on any item listed on the Closed Session agenda 
immediately following the Call to Order of Public Meeting at 5:30 p.m. 

 
1. 5:30 PM: Call to Order of Public Meeting – Closed Session Immediately Convened 
 Public Hearing for visitors who wish to address the Board on Closed Session items: 
 Fifteen minutes of this portion of the meeting are reserved for members of the public to address  
 the Board on Closed Session items. Speakers seeking to comment on other items are requested to  
 make those comments during the Public Comment portion of the meeting at 7:00 p.m. Speakers  
 are limited to three (3) minutes.  The School Board is prohibited by law from taking  
 action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be  
 drawn if the School Board does not respond to public comment at this time.  If you wish to  
 address the Board, come to the microphone and state your name and address. 
 
 A. Personnel 
  1. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment/Resignation 
   (Government Code Section 54957, 54957.1) 
  2. Public Employee Appointment/Employment—Staffing List 
   (Government Code Section 54957) 
 B. Pupil Personnel Matters 
  1. Student Hearings/Expulsions (Education Code 35146, 48900, 48918) 
 C. Negotiations (Government Code Section 54957.6)  
 D. Anticipated Litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54954.9 
 E. Superintendent’s Evaluation 
 F. Adjournment of Closed Session 
 

7:00 PM – Public Meeting Begins 
 

2. Reconvene Public Session 
 

3



Audio File No. 03 – 2012/13 

3. Pledge of Allegiance, Opening and Acknowledgement of Visitors and Media, Invocation, 
 and Roll Call 
4. Closed Session Reportable Actions (Government Code Section 54957.1) 
 
5. Adoption of Agenda 
 Action to add or delete items from any portion of the agenda or to discuss any consent agenda 
 items must be taken prior to adoption of the agenda (Board Bylaw 9323.2). 
 
6. Communications 
 A. Public Hearing for visitors who wish to speak on a subject not on the board agenda. 
  Fifteen minutes of this portion of the meeting are reserved for members of the public to address  
  the Board on items not listed on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the School Board.   
  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes.  If the subject is an item on the Agenda, the Board  
  President has the option of asking the speaker to hold the comment until that item is called.  
  Comments on items listed as a Public Hearing on the Agenda should be held until the hearing is  
  opened. The School Board is prohibited by law from taking action on matters discussed that are  
  not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the School Board does not  
  respond to public comment at this time.  If you wish to address the Board, come to the  
  microphone and state your name and address. 
 
7. Consent Agenda 
 Items listed under the consent agenda are considered to be routine and are acted on by the Board of 
 Trustees in one motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote unless a member of 
 the Board or staff requests specific items be considered and discussed separately and/or removed from 
 the Consent Agenda prior to the adoption of the Agenda.  It is understood that the Administration 
 recommends approval on all consent items.  Each item on the consent agenda approved by the Board of 
 Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 
 
 A. Routine Business Transactions, Annual Renewal of Programs, Bids, Agreements, Notices 
  of Public Hearings, and Proclamations: 
 

1. Request Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 14, 2012 
 Board Minutes 8-14-12 
 
2. Request Approval of Resolution No. 08-2012/13 to Authorize Signatures on 

Designated MUSD Accounts/Documents 
 Agenda Item Cover and Resolution No. 08-2012/13 
 
3. Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified 

School District and Linda Tuttle, retired certificated school nurse 
 Agenda Item Cover 
 Tuttle Services Agreement 
 
4. Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified 

School District and Kathryn Funk, retired certificated school nurse 
 Agenda Item Cover  
 Funk Services Agreement 
 
5. Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified 

School District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/Riverside Publishing. 
 Agenda Item Cover 
 HMH Services Agreement 
 

4



Audio File No. 03 – 2012/13 

6. Request Approval of individual agreements between Madera Unified School 
District and thirty three (33) approved Supplemental Educational Services (SES) 
providers by the California Department of Education to provide tutoring services 
to students who are enrolled in Program Improvement schools 

 Agenda Item Cover 
 Sample SES Agreement 
 
7. Request approval of Change Order #2 for La Vina Paving Project 
 Agenda Item Cover 
 Change Order #2 - RC General Engineering Proposal 
 
8. Request approval of Change Order #3 for La Vina Project 
 Agenda Item Cover 
 Change Order #3- RC General Engineering Proposal 
 
9. Request Approval of the 2012-13 Adopted Budgets for Sherman Thomas Charter, 

Sherman Thomas Charter High, and Ezequiel Tafoya Alvarado Academy. 
 Agenda Item Cover and 2012-13 Charter Schools Adopted Budgets 

 
 B. Human Resources Items 

1. Request Approval of Staffing List 
   Staffing List 8-28-12 
 
 C. Field Trip/Employee Conference Requests 
  1.  Field Trips 8/28/12 
   Student Overnight or Out of State Field Trips 
 
8. Old Business 
 

A. Second Reading and Request Approval of Revised Board Policies and Administrative 
Regulations (7000 Series) 

  Agenda Item Cover 
  Board Policy Updates 7000 Series 
 

B. Second Reading and Approval of Revised Board Policies, Administrative Regulations and 
Exhibit 

  Agenda Item Cover  
  BP 5126 
  AR 5126 
  BP 5131 
  BP 5131.2 
  BP/AR 5141.6 
  BP/AR 5144.1 
  AR 5144.2 
  BP 5145.3 
  E 5145.6 
  BP/AR 5145.7 
  BP  6145 
  AR 6145 
  AR 6159 
  BP 6178.1 
  AR 6178.1 

5



Audio File No. 03 – 2012/13 

C. Request Approval of the Madera Unified School District Strategic Action Plan 
  Agenda Item Cover 
  Strategic Action Plan 
 
9. New Business 
 

A. The Governing Board is requested to adopt the findings, conclusions and 
recommendations related to the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are 
presented to the board in one or more of the following forms of documentation:  
 
• Reports(s) of Administrative hearing Panel(s) 
• Expulsion Status Review Report(s) by the Superintendent’s Designee 
• Stipulated Expulsion Agreement(s) 
 
The Governing Board is also requested to issue orders consistent with the above 
referenced findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the possible expulsion 
or readmission of pupils in the cases of the following students, herein identified by their 
district-assigned identification numbers:  997112, 301104, 303561, 201725, 303775, 
401375, 200731, 201868, 5374, 401243, 997603, 404113, 302366, 301706, 6930, 
401210, 5160, and 5350 

  Agenda Item Cover 
 

B. Request Approval of Commercial Warrant Listing 
  Agenda Item Cover and Commercial Warrant Listing 
 
10. Information and Reports 

 
A. Educational Services Report 

o Expulsion Review 
 
B. Business and Operations Update 

o Purchasing Process 
 

C. Superintendent’s Time 
o Community Schools: Van Do-Reynoso, Madera County Public Health Department 
o Proposition 30 

 
11. Announcements 
 
12. Miscellaneous 
 
 A. Board Member Committee and Information Reports 
 
13. Advanced Planning 
 
 Next Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, September 11, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
 Madera Unified School District Boardroom – 1902 Howard Road, Madera, California 93637 
 
14. Suggested Future Agenda Items 
 
 

6



Audio File No. 03 – 2012/13 

15. Adjournment 
 

 
 

Board Room Accessibility:  The Madera Unified School District encourages those with disabilities 
to participate fully in the public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or 
accommodation to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Office of the Superintendent 
at 559-675-4500 extension 220 at least 48 hours before the scheduled Board of Trustees meeting 
so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. [Government Code § 54954.2; 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. § 12132).] 

7



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 1 

The Board of Education of the Madera Unified School District convened in a Regular Board Meeting 
in the Madera Unified School District Boardroom, 1902 Howard Road, Madera, California on 
Tuesday, August 14, 2012, at 5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Ricardo Arredondo, President 
Michael Salvador, Clerk 
  
Lynn Cogdill, Trustee 
Robert E. Garibay, Trustee 
Jose Rodriguez, Trustee 
Ray G. Seibert, Trustee 
Maria Velarde-Garcia, Trustee 
 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Dr. Anthony Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services 
Teri Bradshaw, Director, Fiscal Services 
Tracie Green, Director, Human Resources 
Robert Chavez, Chief Academic Officer 
Janet Morgan, Senior Administrative Assistant 
 
Joe Ayala, Network Administrator 
Gladys Wilson, Translator 
Sandra Perez, Director, Child Nutrition 
Rosalind Cox, Director of Facilities Planning and Construction/Purchasing 
Janet Grossnicklaus, Director of Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment  
Brett Moglia, Security Supervisor 
 
John Seybold, MUTA Vice President 
 
There were approximately 25 visitors/District employees in attendance. 
 
1. Call to Order of Public Meeting – Closed Session Immediately Convened 
 
President Arredondo called the Public Session of the Board of Education to order at 5:30 p.m. 
President Arredondo opened the floor to public comment on any item listed on the Closed Session 
Agenda. Seeing no one come forward, President Arredondo adjourned to Closed Session pursuant to 
Government Code Sections 54957, 54957.1, and 54957.6, and Education Code Sections 35146, 44951, 
48900, and 48918. 
 
2. Reconvene Public Session/Call to Order Regular Meeting 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance, Opening, Acknowledgement of Visitors and Media, and 
 Invocation 
 
President Arredondo adjourned the Closed Session at 6:10 p.m. and reconvened the Regular Meeting 
by calling the Public Session to order at 7:01 p.m.  President Arredondo welcomed the visitors and 
asked Trustee Velarde-Garcia to lead the flag salute.  President Arredondo asked Pastor Roger Leach 
of Valley West Christian Center to lead the invocation.  President Arredondo asked Ms. Morgan to call 

8



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 2 

the roll of Trustees. President Arredondo explained the rules governing the Board meeting.  The 
meeting was recorded on Audio File No. 02-2012/13. 
 
4. Closed Session Reportable Actions (Government Code Section 54957.1) 
Superintendent Balderas announced there were no reportable Closed Session actions. 
 
5. Adoption of Agenda – Motion No. 11-2012/13 
 
President Arredondo stated that if the Board and/or Administration determined they wished to add 
to the Agenda under Miscellaneous Items, this would be the appropriate time. 
 
Superintendent Balderas asked that Consent Item 7B1 be pulled for separate discussion and vote. 
 
It was moved by Clerk Salvador, seconded by Trustee Velarde-Garcia, and unanimously 
carried to adopt the Agenda as amended. 
 
 Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
  and President Arredondo 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstained: None 
 
6. Communications 
 
 6A. Student and Staff Recognition 
  None this evening 
 
 6B. Public Hearing 
 President Arredondo opened the meeting for visitors to speak on a subject not on the 
 Board Agenda. 
 

o Galen Livermore, 3152 Forest Court; commented on tables and chairs being tossed 
 out Madera South High School 

  
7. Approval of Consent Agenda – Motion Nos. 12 and 13-2012/13 
 Document Numbers 40-2012/13 through 65-2012/13 
 Resolution Numbers 06-2012/13 through 07-2012/13 
 Staffing Changes, Exhibit B 
 Field Trip/Employee Conference Requests, Exhibit C 
 
 Prior to calling for a motion, President Arredondo opened the floor to public comment. 

 
 Seeing no one come forward, President Arredondo closed public comment and returned 
 the item to the Board for questions and comments prior to calling for a motion. 
 
 It was moved by Clerk Salvador, seconded by Trustee Garibay, and unanimously 
 carried to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
 Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
  and President Arredondo  

9



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 3 

 Noes: None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstained: None 
 
 
 7A. Routine Business Transactions, Annual Renewal of Programs, Bids,   
  Agreements, Notices of Public Hearings, and Proclamations: 
 
  7A1. Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of July 31, 2012 

 
  7A2. Adoption of Resolution No. 06-2012/13. This Resolution will designate an  
   official representative and an official alternate representative to the California 
   Risk Management Authority (CRMA) I Board of Directors 

  
  Ayes:  Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk  
    Salvador and President Arredondo  
  Noes:  None 
  Absent:  None 
  Abstained: None RESOLUTIOIN NO. 06-2012/13 
 
  7A3. Adoption of Resolution No. 07-2012/13. This Resolution will designate an  
   official representative and an official alternate representative to the California 
   Risk Management Authority (CRMA) II Board of Directors  

 
  Ayes:  Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk  
    Salvador and President Arredondo  
  Noes:  None 
  Absent:  None 
  Abstained: None RESOLUTIOIN NO. 07-2012/13 
 
  7A4. Ratification of Agreement between Madera Unified School District (MUSD) and 
   Ezequiel Tafoya Alvarado Academy Charter School (ETAA) for the use of a  
   School Bus for the 2012/2013 School Year DOCUMENT NO. 40-2012/13 
 
  7A5. Approval to submit Part I of the Consolidated Application and Reporting  
   System (CARS) to California Department of Education (CDE) 
     DOCUMENT NO. 41-2012/13 
 
  7A6. Approval of the individual Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) for  
   John Adams Elementary, Alpha Elementary, Berenda Elementary, Cesar  
   Chavez Elementary, Jack G. Desmond Middle School, Dixieland Elementary,  
   Eastin Arcola High School, Howard Elementary, Thomas Jefferson Middle  
   School, La Vina Elementary, Millview Elementary, James Monroe Elementary, 
   Nishimoto Elementary, Parkwood Elementary, John J. Pershing Elementary,  
   George Washington Elementary and Madera High School for the 2012-13  
   school year starting on August 1,2012- June 30, 2013.  
     DOCUMENT NOs. 42 thru 58-2012/13 
 
  7A7. Approval of Change Order #2 for the MSHS Fencing Project 
     DOCUMENT NO. 59-2012/13 
 

10



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 4 

  7A8. Approval for Shred-It to destroy approximately 17,000 lbs of old records,  
   which is done on an annual basis DOCUMENT NO. 60-2012/13 
 
  7A9. Approval of Contract between Madera Unified School District and Madera  
   County Children and Families Commission DOCUMENT NO. 61-2012/13 
 

  7A10. Ratification of Memorandum of Understanding between Madera Unified  
   School District and Educational Resource Consultants (ERC). 
     DOCUMENT NO. 62-2012/13 
 
 7B. Human Resources Items 
 
  7B1. Approval of Staffing Changes and Coaches  
 
 Superintendent Balderas asked for the following items to be pulled from the staffing list: 

o Certificated New Position – Item #1 - Coordinator of Special Services 
o Certificated Employment – Item #17 – Vice Principal, Parkwood 
o Classified Employment – Item #4 – Paraprofessional Aide, Special Needs 

 
 It was moved by Trustee Velarde-Garcia, seconded by Clerk Salvador, and unanimously 
 carried to approve the Staffing Changes and Coaches as amended. 
 
 Ayes: Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
  and President Arredondo  
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstained: None MOTION NO. 13-2012/13 
     DOCUMENT NO. 63-2012/13 
 
 Following approval of the Staffing Changes, Superintendent Balderas introduced Mercedes 
 Ochoa, the new Vice Principal at Nishimoto Elementary. 
 
  7B2. Approval of Job Description for Coordinator of Special Services 
     DOCUMENT NO. 64-2012/13 
 
 7C. Field Trip/Employee Conference Requests 
 
  7C1. Approval of Field Trip/Employee Conference Requests 
     DOCUMENT NO. 65-2012/13 
 
8. Old Business 
 
 None 
 

 7:30 PM PUBLIC HEARING: Fee Justification Study, Commercial Developer Fees 

 
 President Arredondo opened the Public Hearing at 7:51 p.m. Seeing no one come forward, 
 President Arredondo closed the Public Hearing at 7:52 p.m. 
 
 

11



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 5 

9. New Business 
 
 9A. Adoption of Resolution No. 05-2012/13 that approves the Fee Justification Study  
  authorizing the levying of alternative school facility fees on commercial and industrial 
  development 
 
  President Arredondo opened the floor for public comment on this item. Seeing no one 
  come forward, President Arredondo closed the floor to public comment and returned 
  the item to the Board for questions and comments prior to calling for a motion. 
 

 It was moved by Clerk Salvador, seconded by Trustee Garibay, and 
 unanimously carried to adopt Resolution No. 05-2012/13 

 
  Ayes:  Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk  
    Salvador and President Arredondo  
  Noes:  None 
  Absent:  None 
  Abstained: None MOTION NO. 14-2012/13 
     RESOLUTION NO. 05-2012/13 
 
 9B.  Approval of a Special Education Teacher to serve on the basis of a Variable Term  
  Waiver for 2012/2013 School Year 
 
  President Arredondo opened the floor for public comment on this item. Seeing no one 
  come forward, President Arredondo closed the floor to public comment and returned 
  the item to the Board for questions and comments prior to calling for a motion. 
 

 It was moved by Trustee Garibay, seconded by Trustee  Rodriguez, and 
 unanimously carried to approve a Variable Term Waiver for the 2012/2013 
 School Year 
 

  Ayes:  Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk  
    Salvador and President Arredondo  
  Noes:  None 
  Absent:  None 
  Abstained: None MOTION NO. 15-2012/13 
     DOCUMENT NO. 66-2012/13 
 
 9C. Approval to Adopt the Findings, Conclusions and Recommendations related to  
  the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are presented to the  
  Board in one or more of the following forms of documentation: 

• Report(s) of Administrative Hearing Panel(s) 
• Expulsion Status Review Report(s) by the Superintendent’s Designee 
• Stipulated Expulsion Agreement(s) 

 
  The Governing Board is also requested to issue orders consistent with the   
  above referenced findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the   
  possible expulsion or readmission of pupils in the cases of the following   
  students, herein identified by their District-assigned identification numbers:   

603760, 995720, 301648, 402887, 6759, 987263, 995465, and 987371 

12



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 6 

  
  Trustee Velarde-Garcia advised that she must recuse herself due to a conflict of  
  interest. 
 
  President Arredondo opened the floor for public comment on this item. 
 

o Chuck Genseal, 16759 Road 19, Madera; asked if a member of the public sits 
on the hearing panel 

 
  Seeing no others come forward, President Arredondo closed the floor to public  
  comment and returned the item to the Board for questions and comments prior to  
  calling for a motion. 

 
 It was moved by Trustee Seibert, seconded by Clerk Salvador, and carried 
 by majority to approve the findings, conclusions and recommendations as 
 stated above 

 
  Ayes:  Trustees Cogdill, Garibay, Rodriguez, Seibert, Clerk Salvador and  
    President Arredondo  
  Noes:  None 
  Absent:  None 
  Abstained: None 
  Recused: Trustee Velarde-Garcia MOTION NO. 16-2012/13 
     CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT NO. 67-2012/13 
  
 9D. Approval of Commercial Warrant Listing 
  Exhibit A, Motion No. 17-2012/13, Document No. 68-2012/13 
 
  Trustee Garibay advised that he must recuse himself due to a conflict of interest. 
 
  President Arredondo opened the floor for public comment on this item. Seeing no one 
  come forward, President Arredondo closed the floor to public comment and returned 
  the item to the Board for questions and comments prior to calling for a motion. 
 

 It was moved by Trustee Seibert, seconded by Trustee Rodriguez, and carried 
 by majority to approve the commercial warrant listing 

 
  Ayes:  Trustees Cogdill, Rodriguez, Seibert, Velarde-Garcia, Clerk Salvador  
    and President Arredondo  
  Noes:  None 
  Absent:  None 
  Abstained: None 
  Recused: Trustee Garibay   
 
10. Information and Reports 
 

10A. Superintendent’s Time 
o Organizational Structure 

Superintendent Balderas discussed the reorganization taking place within 
Madera Unified. 

13



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 7 

 
o Recognitions   

Superintendent Balderas announced that Madera Unified would recognize the 
following: 

> February: Black History Month 
> May:  Asian Pacific American Heritage Month 
> September: Hispanic Heritage Month 
> November: Native American Heritage Month 

 
11. Announcements 
 President Arredondo announced the Board Workshop scheduled for Tuesday, August 21st at 
 5:30 p.m. in the Board Room. 
 
12. Miscellaneous 
 
 A.  Board Member Committee and Information Reports 
  

o Trustee Garibay attended the Back to School BBQ held at Madera South High 
School and thanked his fellow Breakfast Lions members for handling the grill 
duties. 

o Clerk Salvador reported that he and Trustee Garibay attended the Marshall’s 
department store grand opening. Marshall’s Corporation presented the Madera 
High School Leo Club with a donation at that event.  

o President Arredondo spoke about the difficulties faced and overcome by Madera 
Unified during the past few months. 

o Trustee Rodriguez reported that he attended first day of school at Adams. 
 
13. Advanced Planning 
 
 President Arredondo made the following announcement: 
 Next Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, August 28, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
 Madera Unified School District Boardroom – 1902 Howard Road, Madera, CA 93637 
 
14. Suggested Future Agenda Items 
 Trustee Cogdill asked that Proposition 30 be placed on the agenda so that the Board can hear 
 pros and cons regarding the proposition. President Arredondo asked staff to provide 
 information to the Board on Proposition 30. 
 
15. Adjournment – Motion No. 18–2012/13 
 
 President Arredondo adjourned the Public Session at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________________________  Dated: August 14, 2012 
  Janet Morgan, Senior Administrative Assistant 
   to the Superintendent and Board of Trustees 
 

14



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 8 

MINUTES OF AUGUST 14, 2012 
MOTION NOs. 12 and 13-2012/13 and MOTION NO. 17-2012/13 

RESOLUTION NOs. 06-2012/13 and 07-2012/13 
DOCUMENT NOs.  -2012/13 through 65-2012/13 

and DOCUMENT NO. 68- 2012/13 
 

Recapitulation of Business Transactions and Warrants – Exhibit A NEW BUSINESS 
Staff Changes and Coaches – Exhibit B CONSENT AGENDA 

 
EXHIBIT A – NEW BUSINESS 

APPROVAL OF WARRANTS – MOTION NO. 17-2012/13 
DOCUMENT NO. 68-2012/13 

 

    

15



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 9 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and are acted on by the Board of Trustees 
in one motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board, staff, or the public request for specific 
items to be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Agenda.  Each item on the Consent Agenda approved 
by the Board of Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

 
 

EXHIBIT B – CONSENT AGENDA 
CERTIFICATED HUMAN RESOURCES ITEMS 

MOTION NO. 13-2012/13 
DOCUMENT 63-2012/13 

CERTIFICATED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Lindsey Loll  TSA   Sierra vista 08/09/12-09/14/12 Personal Leave 
         
CERTIFICATED SEPARATIONS 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Nicole Martin  Teacher   MHS  06/02/12  Resignation   
2.  Felix Angel  Teacher   Jefferson  06/02/12  Resignation 
3.  Tricia Funk  Teacher   Special Services 06/02/12  Resignation 
4.  Marla Mills Sansom Vice Principal  Parkwood 08/10/12  Resignation 
5.  Molly Jordan  Teacher (PE Specialist) District  06/02/12  Resignation 
 
CERTIFICATED NEW POSITION 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  DELETED  Coordinator of Special Svs. District  2012/2013 New Position (Special Ed.  
          Funding) 
      
CERTIFICATED EMPLOYMENT      
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
  1.  Miharu Nakamura Teacher   Special Services 2012/2013 Replacement 
  2.  Todd Gamble  Teacher   Eastin Arcola HS 2012/2013 Replacement (40% FTE) 
  3.  Ninon Trimm  Teacher   MHS  2012/2013 Replacement 
  4.  Anthony Nona  Teacher   King  2012/2013 Replacement 
  5.  Douglas Pool  Teacher   King  2012/2013 Replacement 
  6.  Tom Lewis  Teacher   King  2012/2013 Replacement 
  7.  Sean Carlson  Teacher   King  2012/2013 Replacement 
  8.  Elizabeth Young Teacher   King  2012/2013 Replacement 
  9.  Jillian Gamble  Teacher   King  2012/2013 Replacement 
10.  Michelle Crawford Teacher   Washington 2012/2013 Replacement 
11.  Cassandra Golding Teacher   Washington 2012/2013 Replacement 
12.  Anna McLelland Teacher   Washington 2012/2013 Replacement 
13.  Erica Gamino  Teacher   Desmond  2012/2013 Replacement 
14.  Daniel Pearce  Teacher   Desmond  2012/2013 Replacement 
15.  Melinda Riccardi Teacher   Jefferson  2012/2013 Replacement 
16.  Mercedes Ochoa Vice Principal  Nishimoto 2012/2013 Replacement 
17.  DELETED  Vice Principal  Parkwood 2012/2013 Replacement 
18.  Sara Gelenaw  TSA   Parkwood 2012/2013 Replacement (46% FTE) 
 
CERTIFICATED OTHER 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 

 
 
 
 
 

16



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 10 

EXHIBIT B – CLASSIFIED HUMAN RESOURCES ITEMS 
MOTION NO. 13-2012/13 
DOCUMENT 63-2012/13 

CLASSIFIED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
    
CLASSIFIED SEPARATIONS 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Michele Shadle  Health Services Asst. Health Services 07/25/12  Resignation 
2.  Lizette Ybarra  Accounting Tech V  Business Services 08/27/12  Resignation 
 
CLASSIFIED NEW POSITION 
         
    Effective 
Name Assignment Site Date(s) Hours Justification 
1.  One part-time position Clerk II Personnel 2012/2013 3.50 New Position 
  Commission   (General Funding) 
 
CLASSIFIED EMPLOYMENT 
   Effective 
Name Assignment Site Date(s) Hours Justification  
1.  Elizabeth Shearer Paraprofessional Aide Special Services 2012/2013 3.50 New Position 
     (Special Ed. Funding) 
2.  Carmen Barriga Paraprofessional Aide Special Services 2012/2013 6.00 Replacement 
     Special Needs 
3.  Maribel Gil Paraprofessional Aide Special Services 2012/2013 7.00 New Position 
     Special Needs  
     (Special Ed. Funding) 
4.  DELETED Paraprofessional Aide Special Services 2012/2013 7.00 New Position 
     Special Needs  
     (Special Ed. Funding) 
5.  Elvera Arias Health Services  Health Services 2012/2013 3.50 Replacement 
 Assistant 
6.  Estella Cardiel Secretary LaVina 2012/2013 6.00 Replacement 
7.  Esther Ortiz CN Assistant I Child Nutrition 2012/2013 3.00 Replacement 
8.  Marylu Barajas Career Technician MSHS 2012/2013 8.00 Replacement 
9.  Alyssa Arredondo Administrative Asst. II ROP 2012/2013 3.50 Replacement 
 
CLASSIFIED OTHER 
        
   Effective 
Name Assignment Site Date(s) Hours Justification 
1.  One full-time position Administrative Asst. III Personnel 2012/2013 8.00 Closing of vacant  
  Commission   position 
 
COACHES 
None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



MINUTE RECORD of Madera Unified School District Board of Education 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DAY OF AUGUST 2012 

 11 

EXHIBIT C – FIELD TRIPS/EMPLOYEE CONFERENCE REQUESTS 
MOTION NO. 13-2012/13 
DOCUMENT 65-2012/13 

 
8/25/12 

to 
8/26/12 

MSHS Larrivee Leadership/ASB 
students to Leadership 
Retreat 
30 students—6 adults 

Sanger, CA $700 
Transportation 
 
$3000 Lodging 

Student Body  
 
 
Student Body 

School 
Bus 

 

18



 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     August 28, 2012   
 
 
Subject: Request Adoption of Resolution No. 08-2012/13 Regarding Authorized 

Signatures on Designated Madera Unified School District 
Accounts/Documents. 

  
 
Responsible Staff: Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
   Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
 
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
 
Background/ rationale:   
The Madera Unified School District Board of Trustees is requested to approve Resolution No. 
08-2012/13 to authorize signatures on designated Madera Unified School District 
Accounts/Documents. 
 

 
Financial impact:  
None 
 
 

Superintendent’s recommendation: 
Superintendent recommends adoption of the Resolution No. 08-2012/13 
 
 

Supporting documents attached:  
Resolution No. 08-2012/13 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
RESOLUTION NO. 08-2012/13 

 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES ON DESIGNATED 

MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT ACCOUNTS/DOCUMENTS 
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the Madera Unified School District does hereby 
authorize the employees and / or officials listed below to sign for the following designated 
accounts/documents. 
 

GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS 
 
WESTAMERICA BANK 
 
M.U.S.D. Petty Cash Account #0257-30110-1 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Elena Castillo, Budget and Accounting Analyst 
Rosalind Cox, Director of Facilities Planning, Construction Management, & Purchasing 
Arelis Garcia, Lead Budget and Accounting Analyst 
 
 
M.U.S.D. Clearing Account #0257-98291-8 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Elena Castillo, Budget and Accounting Analyst 
Arelis Garcia, Lead Budget and Accounting Analyst 
 

CAFETERIA FUND ACCOUNTS 
 
WESTAMERICA BANK 
 
Madera Unified Child Nutrition Checking Account #0257-30112-7 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Sharon Kimura, Child Nutrition Specialist 
Sandra Perez, Director of Child Nutrition 
Bianca Ramirez, Administrative Assistant 
 

MADERA HIGH SCHOOL ACCOUNTS 
  
WESTAMERICA BANK 
 
Student Body Checking Account #30-5050-1675  
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Kent Albertson, Principal Madera High 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Kristi Castillo, Vice Principal Madera High 
 
 
 
 20



Resolution No. 08-2012/13 
Page 2 
Accounts/Documents 
 
 
Pool Scholarship Account #10-6200-0951  
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Kent Albertson, Principal Madera High 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Kristi Castillo, Vice Principal Madera High 
 
Esparanza Scholarship Account #10-6200-0994 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Kent Albertson, Principal Madera High 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Kristi Castillo, Vice Principal Madera High 
 
Albonico Scholarship Account #10-7001-0655 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Kent Albertson, Principal Madera High 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Kristi Castillo, Vice Principal Madera High 
 
WESTAMERICA BANK 
 
MHS Student Body Savings Account #10-7001-1117 
 (Two Signatures Required) 
 
Kent Albertson, Principal Madera High 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Kristi Castillo, Vice Principal Madera High 
 
MSHS Student Body Checking Account #10-5050-7037 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Sandon Schwartz, Principal Madera South High 
Josh Shapiro, Vice Principal Madera South High 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



Resolution No. 08-2012/13 
Page 3 
Accounts/Documents 
 
WELLS FARGO 
 
Time Certificate of Deposit Account #201-0058400  
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Kent Albertson, Principal Madera High 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Kristi Castillo, Vice Principal Madera High 
 
Time Certificate of Deposit Account #010-5885560 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Kent Albertson, Principal Madera High 
Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Kristi Castillo, Vice Principal Madera High 
 
OTHER STUDENT BODY ACCOUNTS 
 
WEST AMERICA BANK 
Desmond Middle School Account #0257-98130-8 
(Two Signatures Required)  
  
Marvin Baker, Principal Desmond Middle School 
Darlene Stiers, Vice Principal Desmond Middle School 
Nichole Walsh, Vice Principal Desmond Middle School 
 
UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA 
Dixieland School Associated Student Body Checking Account #8020218720 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Kliff Justesen, Principal Dixieland 
Diane Chavira-Pocius, Teacher Dixieland School 
Dave Stevens, ASB Advisor Dixieland School 
 
BANK OF AMERICA 
La Vina Elementary Checking Account #00235-02710 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Patricia Lopez, Principal LaVina Elementary 
Judy Elrod, Administrative Assistant La Vina Elementary 
 
UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA 
Martin Luther King Associated Student Body Checking Account #8020214245 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
Sabrina Rodriguez, Principal Martin Luther King Middle School 
Hilda Castrellon, Vice Principal Martin Luther King Middle School 
Jesus Navarro, Vice Principal Martin Luther King Middle School 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 22



Resolution No. 08-2012/13 
Page 4 
Accounts/Documents 
 
WEST AMERICA 
Eastin Arcola Student Body Account Checking Account #0257-98376-7 
(Two Signatures Required)  
 
John Denno, Principal Eastin Arcola High School 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
Shelly Huerta, Administrative Assistant 
 
WEST AMERICA BANK 
Thomas Jefferson Student Council Account #0257-98117-5 
(Two Signatures Required)  
 
Jesse Carrasco, Principal Thomas Jefferson Middle School 
Isabel Guzman, Vice Principal Thomas Jefferson Middle School 
Sergio Mendez, Vice Principal Thomas Jefferson Middle School 
 
 BANK OF AMERICA 
Washington Associated Student Body Checking Account #0023-01225 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
William Holden, Principal Washington Elementary  
Sylvia Ruz, Administrative Assistant Washington Elementary 
 
WEST AMERICA 
Adult Education Revolving Account #0257-97990-6 
(Two Signatures Required) 
 
David Reygosa, Principal Adult Ed 
Shirley Woods, Vice Principal Adult Ed 
Elena Castillo, Budget and Accounting Analyst 
Teri Bradshaw, Director of Fiscal Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 23



Resolution No. 08-2012/13 
Page 5 
Accounts/Documents 
 
DOCUMENTS 
 
Environmental Agency    Final Claim Applications 
Gustavo Balderas    Gustavo Balderas 
Rosalind Cox     Teri Bradshaw 
      Coordinator of Categorical Programs 
      Anthony Monreal 
      Deborah A. Wood 
        
Grant Applications    Power of Attorney 
Gustavo Balderas    Gustavo Balderas 
Robert Chavez      
Coordinator of Categorical Programs 
Anthony Monreal           
Deborah A. Wood 
 
Purchase Orders    School Applications 
Gustavo Balderas    Gustavo Balderas    
Teri Bradshaw     Teri Bradshaw 
Rosalind Cox     Coordinator of Categorical Programs  
Anthony Monreal    Anthony Monreal  
Sandra Perez     Deborah A. Wood 
Deborah A. Wood          
      
 

    Financial Documents submitted to 
      Madera County Office of Education 
State Allocations    and the State of California 
Gustavo Balderas    Gustavo Balderas 
Teri Bradshaw     Teri Bradshaw 
Rosalind Cox      
         
      
 
 The foregoing Resolution No. 08-2012/13 was adopted this 28th day of August, 2012 by the 
following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
        ABSENT:  
 
 ABSTAINED: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      PRESIDENT, Board of Trustees 
      Madera Unified School District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
CLERK, Board of Trustees 
Madera Unified School District 
 
 24



 
 
 
 
 
 

25



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:    August 28, 2012 
 
Subject:  Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between  
   Madera Unified School District and Linda Tuttle, retired  
   certificated school nurse 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
   Debie Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
  
Background/ rationale:   

• Consultant agreement between Madera Unified School District and Linda Tuttle to 
assist certificated nurses in mandated hearing and vision screening at various sites for 
the 2012-2013 school year.  

 
Financial impact:  

• This contract will not exceed $6370.  Restricted Medi-Cal funds. 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the Consultant Services 
Agreement between Madera Unified School District and Linda Tuttle. 

 
Supporting documents attached:  

• Consultant Services Agreement 

26



 

 MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  
 
This agreement is made and entered into this _____day of _____________, 20___  by and between Madera Unified 
School District (“District”) and                                                                                (“Consultant”). 
 
 

1. Consultant agrees to provide the following specified services: 
 
  

 
 

2. Term.  The Consultant’s services described in Paragraph 1 shall commence on _______________   and shall 
end on ________________ unless earlier terminated pursuant to Paragraph 8. 

  
3. Payment.  District agrees to pay Consultant as follows: 
  
  
  
 
4. Payroll Forms.  Consultant agrees to complete the District’s consultant payroll form.  Consultant agrees that 

failure to properly complete this form in a timely manner may result in nonpayment to consultant. 
 
5. Independent Contractor Status.  Consultant and any and all agents and employees of Consultant are agreed to be 

independent contractors in their performance under this Agreement and are not officers, employees, or agents of 
the District.  Consultant shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 
6. Indemnity.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and save and hold harmless the District, its Board of Trustees, 

officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims, damages, losses, causes of actions, and demands, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in connection with the processing or defense of any 
matter, claim, lawsuit or contest arising out of Consultant’s performance of or failure to perform the work 
required by this Agreement. 

 
7. Insurance.   Consultant agrees to purchase and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement a comprehensive 

general liability insurance policy to protect Consultant from damages because of bodily injury, including death, 
and from claims for damages to property which may arise out of or result from Consultant’s responsibilities 
under this Agreement, whether such acts or omissions be by Consultant or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by Consultant.  This insurance shall name the District as additional insured and shall be written for 
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for 
property damage.  A certificate of insurance shall be filed with the District and shall provide that no changes 
shall be made to such insurance without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the District. 

 
8. Termination of Agreement.  District may terminate this Agreement for any reason upon written notice to 

Consultant.  In the event of early termination, Consultant shall be paid for satisfactory work performed to the 
date of termination.  The District may then proceed with the work in any manner the district deems proper. 

 
9. No Entitlement.  Consultant agrees that it has no entitlement to any future contracts or work from District or to 

any employment or fringe benefits from the District. 
 
10. Taxes.  Payment to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to federal and state taxing authorities 

as required on the IRS Form 1099.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable to 
Consultant.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or federal unemployment 
insurance contributions; and/or state or federal income tax or disability insurance.  Consultant is independently 
responsible for the payment of all applicable taxes. 

 
11. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed only in accordance with the 

laws of the State of California.  If any action is initiated involving the application or interpretation of this 

27



Agreement, venue shall only lie in the appropriate state court in Madera County or federal court in Fresno 
County, California. 

 
12. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Consultant, the 

District and their respective successors and assignees. 
 
13. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such holdings shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement. 
 
14. Amendment.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner whatsoever except by written 

agreements signed by the parties. 
 
15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  There are no oral 

understandings, side agreements, representation or warranties, expressed or implied, not specified in this 
Agreement. 

 
16. Licenses.  Consultant represents that Consultant and all agents and employees of Consultant are licensed by the 

state of California to perform all the services required by this Agreement.  Consultant will maintain all licenses 
in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement. 

 
17. Compliance with Law.  Consultant agrees to perform the services contemplated by this Agreement in a 

professional and a competent manner and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, and regulations 
governing the service to be rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
18. Board Approval.  The parties agree that the effectiveness of the Agreement is contingent upon approval by the 

District’s Board of Trustees. 
 
19. Equipment and Materials.  Consultant shall provide all equipment, materials, and supplies necessary for the 

performance of this Agreement.  This provision may be negotiable as to the needs of specific children. 
 
20. Non-discrimination.  Consultant shall not engage in unlawful discrimination in the employment of persons 

because of race, color national origin, age, ancestry, religion, sex, marital status, medical condition, physical 
handicap, or other bias prohibited by state or federal law. 

 
21. Copyright.  Any product, whether in writing or maintained in any other form produced under this Agreement 

shall be the property of District.  District shall have the right to secure a patent, trademark or copyright and the 
product or information may not be used in any manner without District’s written permission. 

 
22. In accordance with Education Code Section 39656, this contract is not valid or an enforceable obligation against 

the District until approved or ratified by motion of the Governing Board duly passed and adopted. 
 
 
 
Madera Unified School District  Consultant: 
 
   
by:  Deborah A. Wood,  by:_______________________________  
     Associate Superintendent of Educational Services   
 
___________________________________________  __________________________________ 
(Signature)  (Signature)    
 
Date: ______________________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
   Federal ID # _______________________ 
   or 

   SSN _____________________________ 
 

28



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 

Date:   August 28, 2012 
 
Subject: Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between   
 Madera Unified School District and Kathryn Funk, retired   
 certificated school nurse 
 
Responsible Staff:   Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
 Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
    
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
  
Background/ rationale:   

• Consultant agreement between MUSD and Kathryn Funk to assist certificated nurses in 
mandated hearing and vision screening at MUSD sites for the 2012-2013 school year.  

 
Financial impact:  

• This contract will not exceed $6370.  Restricted Medi-Cal funds will be used. 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the Consultant Services Agreement 
between Madera Unified School District and Kathryn Funk. 

 
Supporting documents attached:  

• Consultant Services Agreement 

29



 

 MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  
 
This agreement is made and entered into this _____day of _____________, 20___  by and between Madera Unified 
School District (“District”) and                                                                                (“Consultant”). 
 
 

1. Consultant agrees to provide the following specified services: 
 
  

 
 

2. Term.  The Consultant’s services described in Paragraph 1 shall commence on _______________   and shall 
end on ________________ unless earlier terminated pursuant to Paragraph 8. 

  
3. Payment.  District agrees to pay Consultant as follows: 
  
  
  
 
4. Payroll Forms.  Consultant agrees to complete the District’s consultant payroll form.  Consultant agrees that 

failure to properly complete this form in a timely manner may result in nonpayment to consultant. 
 
5. Independent Contractor Status.  Consultant and any and all agents and employees of Consultant are agreed to be 

independent contractors in their performance under this Agreement and are not officers, employees, or agents of 
the District.  Consultant shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement. 

 
6. Indemnity.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and save and hold harmless the District, its Board of Trustees, 

officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims, damages, losses, causes of actions, and demands, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in connection with the processing or defense of any 
matter, claim, lawsuit or contest arising out of Consultant’s performance of or failure to perform the work 
required by this Agreement. 

 
7. Insurance.   Consultant agrees to purchase and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement a comprehensive 

general liability insurance policy to protect Consultant from damages because of bodily injury, including death, 
and from claims for damages to property which may arise out of or result from Consultant’s responsibilities 
under this Agreement, whether such acts or omissions be by Consultant or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by Consultant.  This insurance shall name the District as additional insured and shall be written for 
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for 
property damage.  A certificate of insurance shall be filed with the District and shall provide that no changes 
shall be made to such insurance without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the District. 

 
8. Termination of Agreement.  District may terminate this Agreement for any reason upon written notice to 

Consultant.  In the event of early termination, Consultant shall be paid for satisfactory work performed to the 
date of termination.  The District may then proceed with the work in any manner the district deems proper. 

 
9. No Entitlement.  Consultant agrees that it has no entitlement to any future contracts or work from District or to 

any employment or fringe benefits from the District. 
 
10. Taxes.  Payment to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to federal and state taxing authorities 

as required on the IRS Form 1099.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable to 
Consultant.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or federal unemployment 
insurance contributions; and/or state or federal income tax or disability insurance.  Consultant is independently 
responsible for the payment of all applicable taxes. 

 
11. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed only in accordance with the 

laws of the State of California.  If any action is initiated involving the application or interpretation of this 

30



Agreement, venue shall only lie in the appropriate state court in Madera County or federal court in Fresno 
County, California. 

 
12. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Consultant, the 

District and their respective successors and assignees. 
 
13. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a Court of competent 

jurisdiction, such holdings shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement. 
 
14. Amendment.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner whatsoever except by written 

agreements signed by the parties. 
 
15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  There are no oral 

understandings, side agreements, representation or warranties, expressed or implied, not specified in this 
Agreement. 

 
16. Licenses.  Consultant represents that Consultant and all agents and employees of Consultant are licensed by the 

state of California to perform all the services required by this Agreement.  Consultant will maintain all licenses 
in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement. 

 
17. Compliance with Law.  Consultant agrees to perform the services contemplated by this Agreement in a 

professional and a competent manner and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, and regulations 
governing the service to be rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
18. Board Approval.  The parties agree that the effectiveness of the Agreement is contingent upon approval by the 

District’s Board of Trustees. 
 
19. Equipment and Materials.  Consultant shall provide all equipment, materials, and supplies necessary for the 

performance of this Agreement.  This provision may be negotiable as to the needs of specific children. 
 
20. Non-discrimination.  Consultant shall not engage in unlawful discrimination in the employment of persons 

because of race, color national origin, age, ancestry, religion, sex, marital status, medical condition, physical 
handicap, or other bias prohibited by state or federal law. 

 
21. Copyright.  Any product, whether in writing or maintained in any other form produced under this Agreement 

shall be the property of District.  District shall have the right to secure a patent, trademark or copyright and the 
product or information may not be used in any manner without District’s written permission. 

 
22. In accordance with Education Code Section 39656, this contract is not valid or an enforceable obligation against 

the District until approved or ratified by motion of the Governing Board duly passed and adopted. 
 
 
 
Madera Unified School District  Consultant: 
 
   
by:  Deborah A. Wood,  by:_______________________________  
     Associate Superintendent of Educational Services   
 
___________________________________________  __________________________________ 
(Signature)  (Signature)    
 
Date: ______________________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
   Federal ID # _______________________ 
   or 

   SSN _____________________________ 
 

31



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     August 28, 2012  
 
Subject: Request approval of Consultant Services Agreement between 

Madera Unified School District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ 
Riverside Publishing.  

 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
   Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
    
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:   

• The Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ Riverside Publishing trainer will provide training to 
our new special education teachers in the area of administering the Woodcock 
Johnson test of achievement, which is given to students referred for special 
education assessment, students requiring triennial assessment and for students 
transitioning into middle and high school. The consultant will also provide training 
on the WJIII Tests of Cognitive Abilities administered by our school psychologists.  

• The term of the contract is for one day of training on September 14, 2012. 
 
Financial impact:  

• Not to exceed $2700 funded through Medi-Cal Billing Option. 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends that the Board approve the Consultant Services 
Agreement between the Madera Unified School District and Houghton Mifflin 
Harcourt/ Riverside Publishing. 

 
Supporting documents attached:  

• MUSD Consultant Services Agreement 
 

32



 
 MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  
 
This agreement is made and entered into this day August 28, 2012 by and between Madera Unified School 
District (“District”) and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/ Riverside Publishing. (“Consultant”). 
 

1. Consultant agrees to provide the following specified services: will provide training to our new special 
education teachers in the area of administering the Woodcock Johnson test of achievement, which is 
given to students referred for special education assessment, students requiring triennial assessment and 
for students transitioning into middle and high school. The consultant will also provide training on the 
WJIII Tests of Cognitive Abilities administered by our school psychologists.  

 
2. Term.  The Consultant’s services described in Paragraph 1 shall commence on (September 14, 2012)      
 and shall end on (September 14, 2012) unless earlier terminated pursuant to Paragraph 8. 
  
2. Payment.  District agrees to pay Consultant as follows: The rates of the contract are as follows:  
  
 Total payment shall not exceed $2700.00 
  
4. Payroll Forms.  Consultant agrees to complete the District’s consultant payroll form.  Consultant agrees 

that failure to properly complete this form in a timely manner may result in nonpayment to consultant. 
 
5. Independent Contractor Status.  Consultant and any and all agents and employees of Consultant are 

agreed to be independent contractors in their performance under this Agreement and are not officers, 
employees, or agents of the District.  Consultant shall retain the right to perform services for others 
during the term of this Agreement. 

 
6. Indemnity.  Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and save and hold harmless the District, its Board of 

Trustees, officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims, damages, losses, causes of actions, and 
demands, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, incurred in connection with the processing or 
defense of any matter, claim, lawsuit or contest arising out of Consultant’s performance of or failure to 
perform the work required by this Agreement. 

 
7. Insurance.   Consultant agrees to purchase and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement a 

comprehensive general liability insurance policy to protect Consultant from damages because of bodily 
injury, including death, and from claims for damages to property which may arise out of or result from 
Consultant’s responsibilities under this Agreement, whether such acts or omissions be by Consultant or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by Consultant.  This insurance shall name the District as 
additional insured and shall be written for not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence 
and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for property damage.  A certificate of insurance shall be filed with 
the District and shall provide that no changes shall be made to such insurance without thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the District. 

 
8. Termination of Agreement.  District may terminate this Agreement for any reason upon written notice to 

Consultant.  In the event of early termination, Consultant shall be paid for satisfactory work performed to 
the date of termination.  The District may then proceed with the work in any manner the district deems 
proper. 

 
9. No Entitlement.  Consultant agrees that it has no entitlement to any future contracts or work from District 

or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District. 
 
10. Taxes.  Payment to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to federal and state taxing 

authorities as required on the IRS Form 1099.  District will not withhold any money from compensation 
payable to Consultant.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or federal 
unemployment insurance contributions; and/or state or federal income tax or disability insurance.  
Consultant is independently responsible for the payment of all applicable taxes. 

 
11. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed only in accordance with 

the laws of the State of California.  If any action is initiated involving the application or interpretation of 

33



this Agreement, venue shall only lie in the appropriate state court in Madera County or federal court in 
Fresno County, California. 

 
12. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Consultant, 

the District and their respective successors and assignees. 
 
13. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a Court of 

competent jurisdiction, such holdings shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision of 
this Agreement. 

 
14. Amendment.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner whatsoever except by 

written agreements signed by the parties. 
 
15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  There are no 

oral understandings, side agreements, representation or warranties, expressed or implied, not specified in 
this Agreement. 

 
16. Licenses.  Consultant represents that Consultant and all agents and employees of Consultant are licensed 

by the state of California to perform all the services required by this Agreement.  Consultant will 
maintain all licenses in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement. 

 
17. Compliance with Law.  Consultant agrees to perform the services contemplated by this Agreement in a 

professional and a competent manner and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, and 
regulations governing the service to be rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
18. Board Approval.  The parties agree that the effectiveness of the Agreement is contingent upon approval 

by the District’s Board of Trustees. 
 
19. Equipment and Materials.  Consultant shall provide all equipment, materials, and supplies necessary for 

the performance of this Agreement.  This provision may be negotiable as to the needs of specific 
children. 

 
20. Non-discrimination.  Consultant shall not engage in unlawful discrimination in the employment of 

persons because of race, color national origin, age, ancestry, religion, sex, marital status, medical 
condition, physical handicap, or other bias prohibited by state or federal law. 

 
21. Copyright.  Any product, whether in writing or maintained in any other form produced under this 

Agreement shall be the property of District.  District shall have the right to secure a patent, trademark or 
copyright and the product or information may not be used in any manner without District’s written 
permission. 

 
22. In accordance with Education Code Section 39656, this contract is not valid or an enforceable obligation 

against the District until approved or ratified by motion of the Governing Board duly passed and adopted. 
 

 
Madera Unified School District  Consultant:   

  
by:  Deborah Wood   
     Associate Superintendent   
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
(Signature)  (Signature)    
 
Date: ____________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
   Federal ID # _______________________ 
   or 

   SSN _____________________________ 

34



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     August 28, 2012   
 
Subject:  Request Approval of individual agreements between Madera Unified School  
   District and thirty three (33) approved Supplemental Educational Services (SES) 
   providers by the California Department of Education to provide tutoring services to 
   students who are enrolled in Program Improvement schools 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
    
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale: 

• The approval will allow eligible students in Program Improvement schools to receive 
supplemental educational services after school by the following SES providers: 

o ! 123 ! Maestros Latinos, Inc.  
o ! A A A ! Academics 
o #1 A+ Student Learning Academy/Center 
o #1 Academia de Servicio de Tutoria 
o #1 Academic Tutoring, Inc.  
o #1 At-Home Tutors, Inc. 
o #123 A+ Score! 
o 100% Learning Fun Center 
o 1-on-1 Learning with Laptops 
o A + Educational Centers 
o A Better Tomorrow Education 
o Aavanza (Extreme Learning DBA Aavanza) 
o Academic Advantage, The 
o Academic Tutoring Services, Inc. 
o Accuracy Temporary Services, DBA ATS Project Suc  
o Ace it! Tutoring 
o Alternatives Unlimited, Inc.  
o Amazing A Academics 
o California Tutoring Company, LLC 
o Cesar Chavez Foundation 
o Club Z! In-Home Tutoring Services, Inc. 
o Community College Foundation, The 
o Cullinan Education Center, Inc.  
o Encourage Tomorrow 
o Fresno CORAL, Inc. 
o Professional Tutors of America, Inc. 
o Reading and Beyond 
o Studentnest.com 
o Sullivan Learning Systems, Inc.  
o Teach-N-Tutor, Inc.  

35



o Total Education Solutions 
o TutorWorks, Inc. 
o Xamaze In Home Tutoring 

   
• SES is a requirement of the Federal Title I Program and funds are set aside for this purpose. 
• Hourly rates vary by SES providers; hourly by individual student or hourly by small group. 
• Total expenditures are dependent on parents’ choice of vender and number of students 

participating.  
• The agreements begin on August 29, 2012 and end June 30, 2013. 

 
Financial impact:  

• 15% of Title I funds allocation.  
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve of the individual agreements between 
Madera Unified School District and thirty three (33) approved Supplemental Educational Services 
Providers. 
 

Supporting documents attached: 
• Sample SES agreement.  

36



SAMPLE

37



SAMPLE

38



SAMPLE

39



SAMPLE

40



SAMPLE

41



SAMPLE

42



SAMPLE

43



SAMPLE

44



SAMPLE

45



SAMPLE

46



SAMPLE

47



SAMPLE

48



SAMPLE

49



SAMPLE

50



SAMPLE

51



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     August 28, 2012  
 
Subject:  Request approval of Change Order #2 for La Vina Paving Project   
 
Responsible Staff: Curtis Manganaan, Director of Maintenance & Operations 
                                 
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:   
 
We reviewed Change Order #2 for the La Vina Paving Project.  The change order request is 
necessitated due to lowering the footings on the playground to match the new certified wood 
chips.  This will create a safer play environment for students. 
 
Financial impact: 
 
Change Order #2 will result in a cost of $3,000.00 (Maintenance Budget). 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 
 
The Superintendent recommends the approval of Change Order #2 for the La Vina Paving 
Project. 
 

Supporting documents attached:  
 
Change Order #2 

52



08/02/2012 19:28 5597329218 RC ENGINEERING PAGE 1214/1215 

6600 W. Harter Ave. IlC 
 I'HONE 559-732-9216 
License NQ. 941986 FAX 559-732-9218
Visalia, CA 93277 

rcgeneralengineering@gmail.com General Engineering Inc. 	 CELL 559-804-0098 

PROPOSAL 


Date: 8/212012 

To: Blair, Church, and Flynn 
451 Clovis Avenue Suite 200 
Clovis, CA 93612 
Attn: AHen S. Westersund 
RE: Lower Concrete footings around Playground and Monkey Bar Posts. CCO#3 

We here propose to furnish all the materials and perfonn all the labor necessary for the completion of: 

ITEM 	 UNIT QUANTITY PRICE/UNIT TOTAL 
1. 	 lower Footings to Match New 

Certified Wood Chips 1 lS $3000.00 $3000.00 

NOTE; All Work Has Been Pre Approved per Rosalind Cox and Allen Westersund prior to proceeding 
with this Change Order on 8/2/2012. 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified and the above work will be performed In accordance with 
the drawings and specifications. The work indicated above will be completed in a substantial workman
like manner} for the total sum of: 

Three Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($3,OOOO.OO) 

Payments to be made: Net 30 

Any alterations or deviation from the above specifications involving extra cost will be executed only upon 
written orders and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate. All agreements contingent 
llPon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control. Workman's Compensation and PubHc Liability 
Insurance on above work to be taken out by RC General Engineering Inc. Cost ofa bond has not been 
allowed for. if needed please contact our office. This quote will remain vaJid for 30 days from the date of 
this notice. 

RespectfuUy submitted: RC General Engineering In~. 

Per: RtAMelLCCiU"'V~ 
Russell Carrell. President 

53

http:3,OOOO.OO
mailto:rcgeneralengineering@gmail.com


AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     August 28, 2012  
 
Subject:  Request approval of Change Order #3 for La Vina Paving Project   
 
Responsible Staff: Curtis Manganaan, Director of Maintenance & Operations 
                                 
 
Agenda Placement:  Consent 
 
Background/ rationale:   
 
We reviewed Change Order #3 for the La Vina Paving Project.  The change order request is 
necessitated due to filing cracked areas and sealing/striping of the parking area inside the 
gate.   This will improve the parking lot area, creating a safer environment for staff. 
 

Financial impact: 
 
Change Order #3 will result in a cost of $2,000.00 (Maintenance Budget). 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 
 
The Superintendent recommends the approval of Change Order #3 for the La Vina Paving 
Project. 
 

Supporting documents attached:  
 
Change Order #3 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



 
 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES STAFFING LIST 
           BOARD AGENDA – AUGUST 28, 2012 

 
 
CERTIFICATED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
         
CERTIFICATED SEPARATIONS 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Melissa Ybarra  Teacher   MSHS  06/02/12  Resignation 
 
CERTIFICATED NEW POSITION 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  One full-time position Coordinator of Special Svs. District  2012/2013 New Position (Special Ed. Funding) 
      
CERTIFICATED EMPLOYMENT      
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
  1.  Kiley Hansen  Elem. PE Specialist  District  2012/2013 Replacement 
  2.  Charlene Torok TSA    Alpha  2012/2013 Replacement (46% FTE) 
  3.  Michael Warffuel Teacher   Special Services 2012/2013 Replacement 
  4.  Emily Savala  TSA   Preschool  2012/2013 New Position (Preschool Funding) 
  5.  Tina Najanian  TSA   Preschool  2012/2013 New Position (First Five Funding 80% FTE/ 
          Preschool Funding 20% FTE) 
  6.  Elvira Bandy  TSA   Preschool  2012/2013 New Position (First Five Funding 65% FTE/ 
           Preschool Funding 35% FTE)  
  7.  Rebecca McHaney Interim Coordinator Special Services 2012/2013 New Position (Special Ed. Funding) 
  8.  Scott Ferguson  TSA   MSHS  2012/2013 Replacement 
  9.  Genine Meraz  Intervention Specialist MSHS  2012/2013 Replacement 
10.  TBA   Vice Principal  Parkwood 2012/2013 Replacement 
           
CERTIFICATED OTHER 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
 
CLASSIFIED LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
None 
    
CLASSIFIED SEPARATIONS 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Justification  
1.  Andi Albertson  Bus Driver  Transportation 08/10/12  Resignation 
2.  Renee Marshall  Bus Driver  Transportation 06/08/12  Resignation 
3.  Janet Morgan  Senior Administrative Asst. District  12/29/12  Retirement (18 Yrs.) 
 
CLASSIFIED NEW POSITION 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Hours  Justification 
1.  One part-time position Classroom Aide  Preschool  2012/2013 3.00  New Position 
            (Preschool Funding) 
2.  One full-time position Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 8.00  New Position 
   Assistant to Physically Impaired      (Special Ed. Funding) 
3.  One full-time position Transportation Router Transportation 2012/2013 8.00  New Position 
            (Transportation Funding) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

106



 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES STAFFING LIST 
           BOARD AGENDA – AUGUST 28, 2012 

 
 
CLASSIFIED EMPLOYMENT 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Hours  Justification  
  1.  Debra Lopez  Library Media Tech I Nishimoto 2012/2013 6.00  Replacement 
  2.  Marisol Iniguez Mendez Accounting Tech V  Business  2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
  3.  Charena Mass  Paraprofessional Aide Special Services 2012/2013 7.00  New Position 
            (Special Ed. Funding) 
  4.  Gloria Vanderlaan Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 7.50  New Position 
   Assistant to Physically Impaired      (Special Ed. Funding) 
  5.  Maribel Gil  Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 7.00  New Position 
   Special Needs        (Special Ed. Funding) 
  6.  Peter Roque  CN Assistant II  Child Nutrition 2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
  7.  Charlene Cane  CN Assistant II  Child Nutrition 2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
  8.  Amber Hernandez CN Assistant I  Child Nutrition 2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
  9.  Angel Vargas  Spanish Translator/  District  2012/2013 8.00  Replacement 
   Interpreter 
10.  Alyssa Arredondo Administrative Asst. II ROP  2012/2013 3.50  Replacement 
11.  Dolores Espinoza Paraprofessional Aide - Special Services 2012/2013 7.00  Replacement 
   Special Needs 
 
CLASSIFIED OTHER 
        Effective 
Name   Assignment  Site  Date(s)  Hours  Justification 
None 
 
COACHES 
None 

107



Madera Unified School District 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Student Overnight or Out of State Field Trip Request 
August 28, 2012 

 
 

  Date        School         Name      Field Trip  –  # Students                 Location                 Cost                               Funding              Vehicle  
           Type 
 

8/21/2012 1 

9/08/12 
to 

9/09/12 

MHS Stanford Cross Country team to Cross 
Country Meet 
14 students—2 adults 

Reno, NV $160 Transportation 
 
$350 Lodging 

MHS Athletic 
 
Madera Cross 
Country 

District Vans 

9/14/12 
to 

9/15/12 

MSHS  Avinelis / 
Williams 

Madera FFA students to 
Chapter Officer Leadership 
Conference 
9 students—2 adults 

Springville, 
CA 

$120 Transportation 
 
$100 Lodging 

Ag. Dept. 
 
Madera FFA 

Ag. Department 

10/20/12 
to 

10/28/12 

MSHS Avinelis / 
Williams 

Madera FFA students to 
National FFA Best Informed 
Greenhand Contest 
17 students—4 adults 

Indianapolis, 
IN 

$8000 Transportation 
 
 
$4500 Lodging 

Madera FFA 
 
 
Madera FFA 

Rental Vehicle / 
Plane 

2/8/13  
to  

2/9/13 

MSHS Avinelis / 
Williams 

Madera FFA students to FFA 
Made for Excellence 
4 students—2 adults 

Visalia, CA $45 Transportation 
 
$400 Lodging 

Ag. Dept. 
 
Madera FFA 

Ag. Dept. 
Vehicles 

2/15/13 
to 

2/16/13 

MSHS Avinelis / 
Williams 

Madera FFA students to WFM 
Section Bowl a Thon 
40 students—6 adults 

Fresno, CA $750 Transportation 
 
$ 0  Lodging 

MSHS Perkins School Bus 

   

108



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:    August 28, 2012 
 
Subject:  Second Reading and Request Approval of Revised Board Policies 

and Administrative Regulations (7000 Series) 
 
Responsible Staff:  Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent  
  Rosalind Cox, Director of Facilities Planning & Purchasing 
   
Agenda Placement:    Old Business 
 
Background/ rationale:   
  

• Revisions/New language is recommended by CSBA on the following Board Policies 
and Administrative Regulations: 
 

o BP 7110 Facilities Master Plan 
o BP 7160 Charter School Facilities 
o AR 7160 Charter School Facilities 
o BP 7214 General Obligation Bonds 
o AR 7214 General Obligation Bonds 

 
 
 
Financial impact: 
None 
 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 
The Superintendent recommends approval of the Board Policies and Administrative 
Regulations.  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
 

• Revised Board Policies and Administrative Regulations 

109



 
Board Policy 
Facilities Master Plan 
 
BP 7110  
Facilities 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the importance of long-range planning for school facilities in 
order to address changes in student enrollment and in the district's educational program needs. 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop, for Board approval, a master plan for district 
facilities which describes the district's anticipated short- and long-term facilities needs and 
priorities. 

(cf. 7000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 
(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing) 
 
Plan Development 

The district's facilities master plan shall be based on an assessment of the condition and 
adequacy of existing facilities, a projection of future enrollments, and alignment of facilities with 
the district's vision for the instructional program. 

(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 

To solicit broad input into the planning process, the Superintendent or designee may establish a 
facilities advisory committee consisting of staff, parents/guardians, and business, local 
government, and other community representatives.  He/she also shall ensure that the public is 
informed of the need for construction and modernization of facilities and of the district's plans 
for facilities. 

 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
 
At least 45 days prior to completion of any facilities plan that relates to the potential expansion of 
existing school sites or the necessity to acquire additional school sites, the Superintendent or 
designee shall notify and provide copies of the plan or any relevant and available information to 
the planning commission or agency of the city or county with land use jurisdiction within the 
district.  (Government Code 65352.2) 
 
If the city or county commission or agency requests a meeting, the Superintendent or designee 
shall meet with them within 15 days following the notification.  Items that the parties may discuss 
at the meeting include, but are not limited to, methods of coordinating planning with proposed 
revitalization efforts and recreation and park programs, options for new school sites, methods of 

110



maximizing the safety of persons traveling to and from the site, and opportunities for financial 
assistance.  (Government Code 65352.2) 
 
The master plan shall be regularly reviewed and updated as necessary to reflect changes in the 
educational program, existing facilities, finances, or demographic data. 

Plan Components 

The facilities master plan shall include: 

1. A statement of purpose, including district goals, philosophy, and related policies 

2. A description of the planning process 

3. Demographics of the community, such as economic trends, migration patterns, 
employment base, residential base, socioeconomic makeup, historical school enrollments, 
and inventory of physical resources and needs 

4. A description of the educational program, such as grade-level organization, class size, 
staffing patterns, technology plans, special programs and support services, and other 
educational specifications 

5. Analysis of the safety, adequacy, and equity of existing facilities and potential for 
expansion, including the adequacy of classrooms, school cafeterias and food preparation 
areas, physical activity areas, playgrounds, parking areas, and other school grounds 

 
(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 
(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection) 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 
(cf. 5142 - Safety) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
 

6. Site selection criteria and process 

7. Development of a capital planning budget and identification of potential funding sources 

8. Policy for reviewing and updating the plan 

Planning shall ensure that school facilities meet the following minimum standards:  (5 CCR 
14001) 

1. Are aligned with the district's educational goals and objectives 

111



(cf. 0000 - Vision) 

2. Provide for maximum site enrollment at school facilities 

3. Are located on a site that meets California Department of Education standards as specified 
in 5 CCR 14010 

(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 

4. Are designed for the environmental comfort and work efficiency of the occupants 

5. Are designed to require a practical minimum of maintenance 

6. Are designed to meet federal, state, and local statutory requirements for structure, fire, and 
public safety 

7. Are designed and engineered with flexibility to accommodate future needs 

Plans for the design and construction of new school facilities also shall meet the standards 
described in 5 CCR 14030, green building standards pursuant to 24 CCR 101 et seq., the 
Americans with Disabilities Act pursuant to 42 USC 12101-12213, and any other requirements 
applicable to the funding source and type of project. 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 
 
To facilitate the efficient use of public resources when planning for new construction or 
modernization of school facilities, the district may consider designs that facilitate joint use of the 
facility with a local governmental agency, public postsecondary institution, or nonprofit 
organization. 

(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements) 

 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
16011 Long range comprehensive master plan 
16322  Department of Education services 
17017.5  Approval of applications for projects 
17070.10-17079.30  Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act 
17251 Powers and duties of CDE 
17260-17268 Plans of schoolhouses 
17280-17317 Field Act 
17365-17374 Fitness for occupancy 
17405 Relocatable structures; lease requirements 

112



35275  New school planning; cooperation with recreation and park authorities 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
53090-53097.5  Regulation of local agencies by counties and cities 
65352.2 Communicating and coordinating of school sites 
65995.6  School facilities needs analysis 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
1859-1859.199 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
14001  Minimum standards 
14010 Site selection standards 
14030-14036  Standards, planning and approval of school facilities 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 
101 et seq. Green building standards code 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity Through Joint Use of Facilities, September 2009 
Facilities Master Planning, Fact Sheet, November 2007 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Schools of the Future Report, September 2011 
Educational Specifications: Linking Design of School Facilities to Educational Program, 1997 
Guide for the Development of a Long-Range Facilities Plan, 1986 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PUBLICATIONS 
An Overview of the State School Facility Programs, rev. October 2011 
School Facility Program Handbook, 2008 
STATE ALLOCATION BOARD PUBLICATIONS 
Public School Construction Cost Reduction Guidelines, 2000 
 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Office of Public School Construction:  http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 
CDE, School Facilities Division:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/facilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted:  December 13, 2011 Madera, California  

113



Board Policy 
Charter School Facilities 
 
BP 7160  
Facilities 
 
The Governing Board believes that all students, including those attending charter schools, should 
have access to adequate facilities that are safe and support student learning. 

Facilities to be used by a charter school shall be specified in the school's charter pursuant to 
Education Code 47605 and also may be addressed in a written memorandum of understanding 
between the district and charter school. 

(cf. 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization) 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
 
As applicable, charter school facilities shall comply with the California Building Standards Code 
adopted by the local building enforcement agency pursuant to 24 CCR 101 et seq. or the Field 
Act pursuant to Education Code 17280-17317 and 17365-17374. (Education Code 47610, 
47610.5) 

Upon request, the Board shall make facilities available to an eligible charter school operating in 
the district, as defined in law and administrative regulation.  In accordance with law, such 
facilities shall be contiguous, furnished, equipped, and sufficient to accommodate all the charter 
school's in-district students in conditions reasonably equivalent to those in which the students 
would be accommodated if they were attending other district schools. The Board shall make 
reasonable efforts to provide the charter school with facilities near where the charter school wishes 
to locate and shall not move the charter school unnecessarily. If the district's preliminary proposal 
or final notification of space does not accommodate the charter school at a single school site, the 
Board shall make a specific finding that the charter school could not be accommodated at a single 
site and shall adopt a written statement of reasons explaining the finding.  (Education Code 
47614; 5 CCR 11969.1-11969.10) 

(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 

The district shall not be required to use unrestricted general fund revenues to rent, buy, or lease 
facilities for charter schools.  (Education Code 47614) 

(cf. 3100 - Budget) 

The Superintendent or designee may assist eligible charter schools in applying for state facilities 
funding for new construction or rehabilitation of facilities pursuant to Education Code 
17078.52-17078.66 and/or for rent and lease expenditures pursuant to Education Code 47614.5. 

114



 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
17070.10-17080  Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998, including: 
17078.52-17078.66  Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds 
17280-17317  Field Act 
46600  Interdistrict attendance agreements 
47600-47616.5  Charter Schools Act of 1992, as amended 
48204  Residency requirements for school attendance 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
53094  Authority to render zoning ordinance inapplicable 
53097.3  Charter school ordinances 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
1859.2  Definitions 
1859.31  Classroom inventory 
1859.160-1859.171  Charter school facilities program, new construction 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11969.1-11969.10  Charter school facilities 
COURT DECISIONS 
Bullis Charter School v. Los Altos School District, (2011) 200 Cal.App.4th 1022 
Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 
Sequoia Union High School District v. Aurora Charter High School (2003) 112 Cal.App.4th 185 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The Role of the Charter School Authorizer, Online Course 
Charter Schools: A Manual for Governance Teams, rev. 2008 
Charter School Facilities and Proposition 39: Legal Implications for School Districts, 2005 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PUBLICATIONS 
School Facility Program Handbook, May 2008 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.charterassociation.org 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools Office:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 
Coalition for Adequate School Housing: http://www.cashnet.org 
Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted:  December 13, 2011 Madera, California  

115

http://www.csba.org/


Administrative Regulation 
Charter School Facilities 
 
AR 7160  
Facilities 
 
 
Definitions 
 
Average daily classroom attendance (ADA) or classroom ADA is ADA for classroom-based 
apportionment as used in Education Code 47612.5.  (5 CCR 11969.2) 
 
In-district classroom ADA is classroom ADA attributable to in-district students.   
 
In-district students are those charter school students who are entitled to attend a district school. 
Students eligible to attend district schools based on an interdistrict attendance agreement or 
parent/guardian employment shall be considered students of the district where they reside.   
(5 CCR 11969.2) 
 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5111.12 – Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
 
Operating in the district means the charter school is either currently providing public education to 
in-district students or has identified at least 80 in-district students who are meaningfully interested 
in enrolling in the charter school for the following year, regardless of whether the district is or is 
proposed to be the chartering entity and whether or not the charter school has a facility inside the 
district's boundaries.  (Education Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.2) 
 
Reasonably equivalent facilities are facilities that are sufficient to accommodate charter school 
students in conditions reasonably equivalent to those in which the students would be 
accommodated if they were attending other public schools of the district. Reasonable 
equivalency shall be determined based on a comparison group of district schools with similar 
grade levels, the capacity of facilities, and the condition of facilities, as described below in the 
section "Submission and Review of Facilities Requests."  (5 CCR 11969.2, 11969.3) 

Furnished and equipped means the facilities include reasonably equivalent furnishing necessary to 
conduct classroom instruction and to provide for student services that directly support classroom 
instruction as found in the comparison group schools established under 5 CCR 11969.3(a) and that 
the facilities have equipment that is reasonably equivalent to the comparison group schools.  
Equipment means property that does not lose its identity when removed from its location and is not 
changed materially or consumed immediately (e.g., within one year).  Equipment has relatively 
permanent value and its purchase increases the total value of the district's physical properties.  
Examples include furniture, vehicles, machinery, motion picture film, videotape, furnishings that 
are not an integral part of the building or building system, and certain intangible assets such as 

116



major software programs.  Furnishings and equipment acquired for a school site with nondistrict 
resources are excluded when determining reasonable equivalence.  (5 CCR 11969.2) 
 
Contiguous facilities are those facilities contained on a school site or immediately adjacent to a 
school site. If the in-district classroom ADA of the charter school cannot be accommodated on 
any single school site, contiguous facilities also include facilities located at more than one site, 
provided that the district minimizes the number of sites assigned and considers student safety.  
If none of the district-operated schools has grade levels similar to the charter school, then a 
contiguous facility shall be an existing facility that is most consistent with the needs of students 
in the grade levels served at the charter school.  (5 CCR 11969.2, 11969.3) 

Conversion charter school is a charter school established through the conversion of an existing 
public school.  (Education Code 47605) 

Eligibility for District Facilities 

A charter school shall be operating in the district, as defined above, before it submits a request 
for facilities. A new or proposed charter school operating n the district is eligible to request 
facilities for a particular fiscal year only if it submits its charter petition before November 1 of 
the fiscal year preceding the year for which facilities are requested.  A new charter school is 
entitled to be allocated and/or provided access to facilities only if it receives approval of its 
charter petition before March 15 of the fiscal year preceding the year for which facilities are 
requested.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 

(cf. 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization) 

Submission and Review of Facilities Requests  
 
The following procedures shall apply to a charter school's request for facilities: 
 
1. On or before November 1, a charter school shall submit a written request for facilities to 
the Superintendent or designee for the next fiscal year.  The request shall include: (Education 
Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
a. Reasonable projections of in-district and total ADA and in-district and total classroom 
ADA, based on ADA claimed for apportionment, if any, in the fiscal year prior to the fiscal year in 
which the facilities request is made, adjusted for expected changes in enrollment in the 
forthcoming fiscal year 
 
Projections of in-district ADA, in-district classroom ADA, and the number of in-district students 
shall be broken down by grade level and by the district school that the student would otherwise 
attend. 
 
Nonclassroom ADA may be included in the ADA calculation only to the extent of instructional 
time that students generating nonclassroom ADA are actually in the classroom under the direct 

117



supervision and control of a charter school employee, and only if the district and charter school 
agree upon the time(s) that the facilities devoted to students generating nonclassroom-based ADA 
will be used. 
 
b. A description of the methodology for the projections 
 
c. If relevant (i.e., when a charter school is not yet open or to the extent an operating charter 
school projects a substantial increase in ADA), documentation of the number of in-district students 
meaningfully interested in attending the charter school that is sufficient for the district to 
determine the reasonableness of the projection, but that need not be verifiable for precise 
arithmetical accuracy 
 
d. The charter school's operational calendar 
 
e. Information regarding the district's school site and/or general geographic area in which the 
charter school wishes to locate 
 
f. Information on the charter school's educational program, if any, that is relevant to 
assignment of facilities 
 
In submitting a facilities request, the charter school shall use a form specified by the district.  The 
charter school shall distribute, or otherwise make available for review, the written request to 
interested parties, including, but not limited to, parents/guardians and school staff. 
 
2. On or before December 1, the district shall review the charter school's projections of 
in-district and total ADA and in-district and total classroom ADA, express any objections in 
writing, and state the projections the district considers reasonable.  If the district does not express 
any objections in writing and state its own projections by the deadline, the charter school's 
projections are no longer subject to challenge and the district shall base its offer of facilities on 
those projections.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
3. On or before January 2, the charter school shall respond to any objections expressed by the 
district and to the district's attendance projections provided pursuant to item #2 above.  The 
charter school shall reaffirm or modify its previous projections as necessary to respond to the 
information received from the district pursuant to item #2.  If the charter school does not respond 
by January 2, the district's projections provided pursuant to item #2 are no longer subject to 
challenge and the district shall base its offer of facilities on those projections. (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
4. The district shall determine what facilities it will offer to the charter school, ensuring that 

the facilities are reasonably equivalent to other district facilities.  (5 CCR 11969.3) 

If a charter school was established through the conversion of an existing public school 
pursuant to Education Code 47605(a)(2), the condition of the facility previously used by 
the district shall be considered to be reasonably equivalent for the first year the charter 
school uses the facility.  (5 CCR 11969.3) 

118



 For any other charter school, reasonable equivalency shall be based on the following 
criteria as detailed in 5 CCR 11969.3:  (5 CCR 11969.3) 

a. A comparison group of district schools with similar grade levels 

 If a charter school's grade-level configuration is different from the configuration 
of the district's schools, the district shall not pay for the modification of a school 
site to accommodate the charter school's configuration. 

b. Capacity, including equivalency of the ratio of teaching stations (classrooms), 
specialized classroom space, and nonteaching space to ADA 

c. Condition of facilities, as determined by assessing such factors as age of facilities 
(from last modernization), quality of materials, and state of maintenance, 
including: 

(1) School site size 

(2) Condition of interior and exterior surfaces 

(3) Condition of mechanical, plumbing, electrical, and fire alarm systems, 
including conformity to applicable codes 

(4) Availability and condition of technology infrastructure 

(5) Condition of the facility as a safe learning environment, including, but not 
limited to, the suitability of lighting, noise mitigation, and size for 
intended use 

(6) Condition of the facility's furnishing and equipment 

(7) Condition of athletic fields and/or play area space 

(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 

 
5. On or before February 1, the district shall prepare a written preliminary proposal regarding 
the space to be allocated to the charter school and/or to which the charter school is to be provided 
access.  At a minimum, the preliminary proposal shall include: (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
 a. The projections of in-district classroom ADA on which the proposal is based 
 
 b. The specific location(s) of the space 
 
c. All conditions pertaining to the space, including a draft of any proposed agreement 
 pertaining to the charter school's use of the space 
 

119



d. The projected pro rata share amount and a description of the methodology used to 
 determine that amount 
 
e. A list and description of the comparison group schools used in developing the district's 
 preliminary proposal and a description of the difference between the preliminary proposal 
 and the charter school's request submitted pursuant to item #1 above 
  
 
6. On or before March 1, the charter school shall respond in writing to the district's 
preliminary proposal made pursuant to item #5 above and shall express any concerns, including 
addressing differences between the preliminary proposal and the charter school's request, and/or 
make a counter proposal.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
7. On or before April 1, having reviewed any concerns and/or counter proposals made by the 
charter school pursuant to item #6 above, the district shall submit, in writing, a final notification of 
the space offered to the charter school.  The notification shall include a response to the charter 
school's concerns and/or counter proposal, if any.  The final notification shall specifically 
identify:  (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
a. The teaching stations, specialized classroom spaces, and nonteaching station spaces 
offered for the exclusive use of the charter school and the teaching stations, specialized classroom 
spaces, and nonteaching spaces to which the charter school is to be provided access on a shared 
basis with district-operated programs 
 
b. Arrangements for sharing any shared space 
 
c. The assumptions of in-district classroom ADA for the charter school upon which the 
allocation is based, and if the assumptions are different than those submitted by the charter school 
pursuant to item #3 above, a written explanation of the reasons for the differences 
 
d. The specific location(s) of the space 
 
e. All conditions pertaining to the space 
 
f. The pro rata share amount 
 
g. The payment schedule for the pro rata amount, which shall take into account the timing of 
revenues from the state and from local property taxes 
 
8. By May 1 or within 30 days after the district notification pursuant to item #7 above, 
whichever is later, the charter school shall notify the district in writing whether or not it intends to 
occupy the offered space.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
The charter school's notification may be withdrawn or modified before this deadline.  After the 
deadline, if the charter school has notified the district that it intends to occupy the offered space, 
the charter school is committed to paying the pro rata share amount as identified.  If the charter 

120



school does not notify the district by this deadline that it intends to occupy the offered space, then 
the space shall remain available for district programs and the charter school shall not be entitled to 
use facilities of the district in the following fiscal year.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
Availability of Facilities 
 
The space allocated to the charter school by the district, or the space to which the district provides 
the charter school access, shall be furnished, equipped, and available for occupancy at least 10 
working days prior to the first day of instruction of the charter school.  For good cause, the district 
may reduce the period of availability to a period of not less than seven working days.  (5 CCR 
11969.9) 
 
Space allocated for use by the charter school, subject to sharing arrangements, shall be available 
for the charter school's entire school year regardless of the district's instructional year or class 
schedule.  The charter school shall not sublet or use the facilities for purposes other than those that 
are consistent with Board policies and district practices without permission of the Superintendent 
or designee.  (5 CCR 11969.5) 
 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 
 
For a conversion charter school, the school site identified in the school's charter shall be made 
available to the charter school for its second year of operation and thereafter upon annual request 
for facilities from the district pursuant to this administrative regulation.  If, as a result of a 
material revision of the charter, either the location of the conversion charter school is changed or 
the district approves the operation of additional sites by the school, then the school may request, 
and the district shall provide, facilities in accordance with law, the revised charter, and this 
administrative regulation. (5 CCR 11969.3) 

Written Agreement Regarding Facilities Operations 

The district and charter school shall negotiate an agreement regarding the use of and payment for 
the space which contains, at a minimum, the information included in the district's final 
notification pursuant to item #7 in the section "Submission and Review of Facilities Requests" 
above.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 

A reciprocal hold-harmless/indemnification provision shall be established between the district 
and the charter school. The charter school shall maintain general liability insurance naming the 
district as an additional insured in order to indemnify the district for any damage and losses. The 
district shall maintain first party property insurance for the facilities allocated to the charter 
school.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 

(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 

Responsibilities for facility maintenance and improvements shall be as follows: (5 CCR 11969.4, 
11969.9) 

121



1. The district shall be responsible for: 

a. Modifications necessary to maintain the facility in accordance with applicable 
building codes pursuant to Education Code 47610 or 47610.5 

b. Replacement of district-provided furnishings and equipment in accordance with 
district schedules and practices 

c. Projects eligible to be included in the district's deferred maintenance plan 

2. The charter school shall be responsible for the ongoing operations and maintenance of 
facilities, furnishings, and equipment. 

Facilities, furnishings, and equipment provided to a charter school by the district shall remain the 
property of the district.  (5 CCR 11969.4) 

The district may charge the charter school, in accordance with 5 CCR 11969.7, for a pro rata share 
of the district's facilities costs for activities related to keeping the physical plant open, comfortable, 
and safe for use and keeping the grounds, buildings, and equipment in working condition. Such 
activities include maintaining safety in buildings, on grounds, and in the vicinity of schools; plant 
maintenance and operations; facilities acquisition and construction; and facilities rents and leases. 
(Education Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.2) 

The charter school shall report actual in-district and total ADA and classroom ADA to the district 
every time that the charter school reports ADA for apportionment purposes. If the charter school 
generates less ADA than projected, the following provisions shall apply to any overallocated 
space:  (Education Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.3, 11969.8, 11969.9) 

1. The charter school shall reimburse the district for the overallocated space as set forth in 5 
CCR 11969.8, unless the district agrees, in response to the notification by the charter 
school of overallocation, to exercise its sole discretion to use the overallocated space for 
district programs. 

2. In the case of a conversion charter school, the overallocated space shall not be subject to 
reimbursement under the following circumstances: 

a. The school notifies the district, by February 1 of its first year of operation, that it 
will have overallocated space in the following fiscal year.  In such cases, the 
district may occupy all or a portion of the space identified.  A charter school that 
wants to recover space surrendered to the district shall apply to the district and the 
district shall evaluate the application in accordance with law and this 
administrative regulation. 

b. Based on the State Board of Education's waiver of attendance area requirements 
in Education Code 47605(d)(1), the district makes a decision, between November 

122



1 and June 30, to change the school's attendance area in the forthcoming fiscal 
year. 

Mediation of Disputes 
 
If a dispute arises between the district and a charter school pursuant to Education Code 47614 or 5 
CCR 11969.1-11969.10 both parties may agree to settle the dispute using mediation.  Mediation 
consists of the following steps:  (5 CCR 11969.10) 
 
1. If both parties agree to mediation, the initiating party shall select a mediator, subject to the 
agreement of the responding party.  If the parties are unable to agree on a mediator, the initiating 
party shall request the CDE to appoint a mediator within seven days to assist the parties in 
resolving the dispute.  The mediator shall meet with the parties as quickly as possible. 
 
2. Within seven days of the selection or appointment of the mediator, the party initiating the 
dispute resolution process shall send a notice to the responding party and the mediator.  The 
notice shall include the following information: 
 
 a. Name, address, and phone numbers of designated representatives of the parties 
 
 b. A statement of the facts of the dispute, including information regarding the parties' 
attempts to resolve the dispute 
 
 c. The specific sections of the statute or regulations that are in dispute 
 
 d. The specific resolution sought by the initiating party 
 
3. Within seven days of receiving the notice, the responding party shall file a written 
response. 
 
4.   The mediation shall be entirely informal in nature.  Each party shall share copies of 
exhibits upon which its case is based with the other party.   The relevant facts shall be elicited in a 
narrative fashion to the extent possible, rather than through examination and cross-examination of 
witnesses. 
 
5. Any agreement reached by the parties shall be in writing and shall not set a precedent for 
any other case. 
 
6. The mediation shall be terminated if the district and the charter school fail to meet within 
the specified timelines, have not reached an agreement within 15 days from the first meeting held 
by the mediator, or if the mediator declares an impasse. 
 
7. The costs of the mediation shall be divided equally between the parties and paid promptly. 
 
Regulation MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  December 13, 2011 Madera, California 

123



Board Policy 
General Obligation Bonds 
 
BP 7214  
Facilities 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that school facilities are an essential component of the 
educational program and that the Board has a responsibility to ensure that the district's facilities 
needs are met in the most cost-effective manner possible. When the Board determines that it is in 
the best interest of district students, it may order an election on the question of whether bonds 
shall be issued for school facilities. 

(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing) 
 
The Board shall determine the appropriate amount of the bond in accordance with law. 
 
Bonds Requiring 55 Percent Approval by Local Voters 
 
The Board may decide to pursue the authorization and issuance of bonds by approval of 55 percent 
majority of the voters pursuant to Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and Article 16, Section 18(b) of the 
California Constitution.  If two-thirds of the Board agree to such an election, the Board shall vote 
to adopt a resolution to incur bonded indebtedness if approved by a 55 percent majority of the 
voters.  (Education Code 15266) 
 
The bond election may only be ordered at a primary or general election, a statewide special 
election, or a regularly scheduled local election at which all of the electors of the school district are 
entitled to vote.  (Education Code 15266) 
 
Bonded indebtedness incurred by the district shall be used only for the construction, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and 
equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities.  
(California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3) and 1(b)(3)(A)) 
 
The proposition approved by the voters shall include the following accountability requirements:  
(California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)) 
 
1. A requirement that proceeds from the sale of the bonds be used only for the purposes 
specified above, as detailed in California Constitution Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3), and not for any 
other purposes including teacher and administrative salaries and other school operating expenses 
 
2. A list of specific school facility projects to be funded and certification that the Board has 
evaluated safety, class size reduction, and information technology needs in developing that list 

124



 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 6151 - Class Size) 
 
3. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent performance audit to ensure 
that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed 
 
4. A requirement that the Board conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the 
proceeds from the sale of the bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended for the school 
facilities projects 
 
If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, the 
Board shall appoint an independent citizens' advisory oversight committee. This committee shall 
be appointed within 60 days of the date that the Board enters the election results in its minutes 
pursuant to Education Code 15274.  (Education Code 15278) 

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the annual, independent performance and 
financial audits conducted pursuant to items #3 and #4 above are issued in accordance with the 
U.S. Comptroller General's Government Auditing Standards.  He/she shall submit the audits to 
the citizens' oversight committee by March 31 of each year. (Education Code 15286) 

 
Bonds Requiring 66.67 Percent Approval by Local Voters 
 
Bonds shall be sold to raise money for the following purposes:  (Education Code 15100) 
 
1. Purchasing school lots 
 
2. Building or purchasing school buildings 
 
3. Making alterations or additions to school building(s) other than as may be necessary for 
current maintenance, operation, or repairs 
 
4. Repairing, restoring, or rebuilding any school building damaged, injured, or destroyed by 
fire or other public calamity 
 
5. Supplying school buildings and grounds with furniture, equipment, or necessary apparatus 
of a permanent nature 
 
6. Permanently improving school grounds 
 

125



7. Refunding any outstanding valid indebtedness of the district, evidenced by bonds or state 
school building aid loans 
 
8. Carrying out sewer or drain projects or purposes authorized in Education Code 17577 
 
9. Purchasing school buses with a useful life of at least 20 years 
 
10. Demolishing or razing any school building with the intent to replace it with another school 
building, whether in the same location or in any other location 
 
Except for refunding any outstanding indebtedness, any of the purposes listed above may be united 
and voted upon as a single proposition by order of the Board and entered into the minutes.  
(Education Code 15100) 
 
The Board may appoint a citizens' oversight committee to review and report to the Board and the 
public as to whether the expenditure of bond revenues complies with the intended purposes of 
the bond. 

Certificate of Results 

If the certificate of election results received by the Board shows that the appropriate majority of 
the voters are in favor of issuing the bonds, the Board shall record that fact in its minutes.  The 
Board shall then certify to the county board of supervisors all proceedings it had in connection 
with the election results.  (Education Code 15124, 15274) 

Resolution Regarding Sale of Bonds 

Following passage of the bond measure by the appropriate majority of voters, the Board shall 
pass a resolution to issue the sale of bonds.  The resolution shall prescribe the total amount of 
bonds to be sold and may also prescribe the maximum acceptable interest rate, not to exceed 
eight percent, and the time(s) when the whole or any part of the principal of the bonds shall be 
payable, which shall not be more than 25 years from the date of the bonds.  (Education Code 
15140) 

Prior to the sale of bonds, the Board shall adopt, as an agenda item at a public meeting, another 
resolution, which includes all of the following items:  (Education Code 15146) 

 

1. Express approval of the method of sale 

2. Statement of the reasons for the method of sale selected 

3. Disclosure of the identity of the bond counsel, and the identities of the bond underwriter 
and the financial adviser if either or both are utilized for the sale, unless these individuals 

126



have not been selected at the time the resolution is adopted, in which case the Board shall 
disclose their identities at the public meeting occurring after they have been selected 

4. Estimates of the costs associated with the bond issuance 

After the sale, the Board shall be presented with the actual cost information and shall disclose 
that information at the Board's next scheduled meeting.  The Board shall ensure that an 
itemized summary of the costs of the bond sale and all necessary information and reports 
regarding the sale are submitted to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission.  
(Education Code 15146) 

 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
7054  Use of district property, campaign purposes 
15100-15254  Bonds for school districts and community college districts 
15264-15288  Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds Act of 2000 
17577  Sewers and drains 
17584.1 Deferred maintenance, reports 
47614  Charter school facilities 
ELECTIONS CODE 
324  General election 
328  Local election 
341  Primary election 
348  Regular election 
356  Special election 
357  Statewide election 
1302  School district election 
15372  Elections official certificate 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
1125-1129  Incompatible activities 
8855  California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission 
53580-53595.5  Bonds 
54952  Definition of legislative body, Brown Act 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 13A, Section 1  Tax limitation 
Article 16, Section 18  Debt limit 
COURT DECISIONS 
San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley 
Unified School District, (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 46 (2005) 
87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 157 (2004) 
 

127



Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and Candidates, Fact Sheet, 
February 2011 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission:  http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac 
CSBA, District and Financial Services, Proposition 39 Bond Performance Audit Program: 
http://www.csba.org/ds/prop39.cfm 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Office of Public School Construction:  http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted:  December 13, 2011 Madera, California  

128

http://www.csba.org/


Administrative Regulation 
General Obligation Bonds 
 
AR 7214  
Facilities 
 
 
Cautionary Notice: As added and amended by SBX3 4 (Ch. 12, Third Extraordinary Session, 
Statutes of 2009), ABX4 2 (Ch. 2, Fourth Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 2009), and SB 70 (Ch. 
7, Statutes of 2011), Education Code 42605 grants districts flexibility in "Tier 3" categorical 
programs. The Madera Unified School District has accepted this flexibility and thus is deemed in 
compliance with the statutory or regulatory program and funding requirements for these programs 
for the 2008-09 through 2014-15 fiscal years. As a result, the district may temporarily suspend 
certain provisions of the following policy or administrative regulation that reflect these 
requirements. However, this flexibility does not affect or alter any existing contract or bargaining 
agreement that the district may have in place. For further information, please contact the 
Superintendent or designee. 
 
Election Notice 
 
Whenever the Governing Board orders an election on the question of whether general obligation 
bonds shall be issued for school facilities, Superintendent or designee shall ensure that election 
notice and ballot requirements are satisfied in accordance with Education Code 15120-15126 and 
15272, as applicable. 
 
Citizens' Oversight Committee 
 
If a district general obligation bond requiring a 55 percent majority is approved by the voters, the 
Board shall appoint an independent citizens' advisory oversight committee.  This committee shall 
be appointed within 60 days of the date that the Board enters the election results in its minutes 
pursuant to Education Code 15274.  (Education Code 15278) 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings) 
 
The citizens' oversight committee shall consist of at least seven members including, but not limited 
to:  (Education Code 15282) 
 
1. One member active in a business organization representing the business community 
 located within the district 
 
2. One member active in a senior citizens organization 
 
3. One member active in a bona fide taxpayers' organization 
 
4. One member who is a parent/guardian of a child enrolled in the district 

129



 
5. One member who is a parent/guardian of a child enrolled in the district and is active in a 
 parent-teacher organization, such as the Parent Teacher Association or school site council 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 1220 – Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations) 
 
No employee, official (board member), vendor, contractor, or consultant of the district shall be 
appointed to the citizens' oversight committee.  (Education Code 15282) 
 
Members of the citizens' oversight committee shall serve for a term of two years without 
compensation and for no more than two consecutive terms.  (Education Code 15282) 
 
The purpose of the citizens' oversight committee shall be to inform the public concerning the 
expenditure of bond revenues.  The committee shall actively review and report on the proper 
expenditure of taxpayers' money for school construction and shall convene to provide oversight 
for, but not limited to, the following:  (Education Code 15278) 
 
1. Ensuring that bond revenues are expended only for the purposes described in Article 13A, 
Section 1(b)(3) of the California Constitution including the construction, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school 
facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities (Education Code 15278) 
 
2. Ensuring that, as prohibited by Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(A) of the California 
Constitution, no funds are used for any teacher and administrative salaries or other school 
operating expenses (Education Code 15278) 
 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
In furtherance of its purpose, the committee may engage in any of the following activities:  
(Education Code 15278) 
 
1. Receiving and reviewing copies of the annual, independent performance and financial 
audits required by Article 13A, Section 1(b)(3)(C) and (D) of the California Constitution 
 
2. Inspecting school facilities and grounds to ensure that bond revenues are expended in 
compliance with the requirements of Article 13(A), Section 1(b)(3) of the California Constitution 
 
3. Receiving and reviewing copies of any deferred maintenance proposals or plans developed 
by the district, including any reports required by Education Code 17584.1 
 
4. Reviewing efforts by the district to maximize bond revenues by implementing cost-saving 
measures including, but not limited to, the following: 
 
a. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of professional fees 

130



b. Mechanisms designed to reduce the costs of site preparation 
 
c. Recommendations regarding the joint use of core facilities 
 
(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements) 
 
d. Mechanisms designed to reduce costs by incorporating efficiencies in school site design 
 
e. Recommendations regarding the use of cost-effective and efficient reusable facility plans 
 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
 
The district shall, without expending bond funds, provide the citizens' oversight committee with 
any necessary technical assistance and shall provide administrative assistance in furtherance of the 
committee's purpose and sufficient resources to publicize the committee's conclusions.  
(Education Code 15280) 
 
All citizens’ oversight committee proceedings shall be open to the public and noticed in the same 
manner as proceedings of the Board.  Committee meetings shall be subject to the provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act. (Education Code 15280; Government Code 54952) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
The oversight committee shall issue regular reports, at least once a year, on the results of its 
activities.  Minutes of the proceedings and all documents received and reports issued shall be a 
matter of public record and shall be made available on the district's web site.  (Education Code 
15280) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
 
Members of the oversight committee shall be subject to prohibitions regarding incompatibility of 
office pursuant to Government Code 1125-1129 and financial interest in contracts pursuant to 
Government Code 1090-1098.  (Education Code 15282) 
 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
Reports 
 
Within 30 days after the end of each fiscal year, the Board shall submit to the County 
Superintendent of Schools a report concerning any bond election(s) containing the following 
information:  (Education Code 15111) 
 
1. The total amount of the bond issue, bonded indebtedness, or other indebtedness involved 
 
2. The percentage of registered electors who voted at the election 
 

131



3. The results of the election, with the percentage of votes cast for and against the proposition 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  December 13, 2011 Madera, California  

132



 

133



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 

Date:    August 28, 2012  
 
Subject:   Second Reading and Approval of Revised Board Policies, Administrative 
    Regulations and Exhibit 
 
Responsible Staff: Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent 
    Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
   
 
Agenda Placement:  Old Business 
 
Background/ rationale:   

• Revisions/New Language are recommended by CSBA on the following Board Policies, 
Administrative Regulations and Exhibits: 

o BP/AR 5126 – Awards for Achievement 
o BP 5131 – Conduct 
o BP 5131.2 – Bullying 
o BP/AR 5141.6 – School Health Services  
o BP/AR 5144.1 – Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
o AR 5144.2 – Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Student with Disabilities) 
o BP 5145.3 – Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
o E 5145.6 – Parent Notification  
o BP/AR 5145.7 – Sexual Harassment  
o BP/AR 6145 – Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 
o AR 6159 – Individualized Education Program 
o BP/AR 6178.1 – Work-Based Learning 

 
Financial impact:  

• None. 
 
Superintendent’s recommendation: 

• The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the Revised Board Policies, 
Administrative Regulations and Exhibit.  

 
Supporting documents attached:  

• Revised Board Policies, Administrative Regulations and Exhibit.  

134



Awards For Achievement 
 

BP 5126(a)  

Students 
 

The Governing Board encourages excellence as a goal for all students and wishes to 

publicly recognize students for exemplary achievements in academic, athletic, 

extracurricular, or community service activities. 

 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 

(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities) 

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 

 

District/School Awards 

 

Student awards may include verbal recognition, a letter, a certificate, a Board resolution, 

public ceremony, trophy, or plaque. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop criteria for the selection of student award 

recipients. 

 

Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 

 

At graduation from high school, special recognition shall be awarded to those students 

whose academic achievements in core curriculum areas have been outstanding. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall identify high school students who have 

demonstrated mastery of the high school curriculum qualifying them for the Golden State 

Seal Merit Diploma.  (Education Code 51454) 

 
(cf. 6162.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting Program) 

 

Biliteracy Award 

 

The district shall present the State Seal of Biliteracy to each graduating high school 

student who has attained a high level of proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing in 

one or more languages in addition to English.  

(Education Code 51460-51464) 

 
(cf. 6142.2 – World/Foreign Language Instruction 

(cf. 6174 – Education for English Language Learners) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

135



BP 5126(b) 

 

Awards For Achievement (continued) 

 
 

Legal Reference: 

 

EDUCATION CODE 

220 Nondiscrimination 

35160  Authority of governing boards 

44015  Awards to employees and students 

51243-51245  Credit for private school foreign language instruction 

51450-51455  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 

51460-51464 State Seal of Biliteracy 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

876  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 

1632  Credit for private school foreign language instruction 

11510-11516 California English Language Development Test 

 

Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www csba.org    

California Department of Education:  http//www.cde.ca.gov 

Californians Together:  http://www.californianstogether.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy        MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted:  December 13, 2011                          Madera, California 

revised: 

136



Madera USD 

Administrative Regulation 

Awards For Achievement 
 

AR 5126(a)  

Students 
 

 

The Superintendent or designee may appoint a committee at each school.  The committee 

shall submit recommendations for student awards to the Superintendent or designee for 

approval. 

 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

 

Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 

 

To be eligible to receive the Golden State Seal Merit Diploma upon high school 

graduation, a student shall complete all requirements for a high school diploma and 

demonstrate, in accordance with the means adopted by the State Board of Education, 

mastery of the curriculum in at least six subject areas, four of which shall be 

mathematics, English language arts, science, and United States history, with the 

remaining two subject matter areas selected by the student. 

(Education Code 51451, 51452; 5 CCR 876) 

 
 (cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 

(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 

 

To demonstrate mastery of these subject areas, the student shall earn a scaled score of 

370 or above on six separate high school California Standards Tests (CST), including: 

 

1. One mathematics exam, including Algebra II, Geometry, or Summative High 

School Mathematics 

 

2. One English language arts exam at grade 9, 10, or 11 

 

3. One science exam, including Biology, Chemistry, Physics, or Earth Science 

 

4. The grade 11 History-Social Science exam (United States history) 

 

5. Two CSTs of the student's choice, which may include World History or any 

additional exams listed in items #1-4 above which have not already been used 

to establish eligibility 

 

AR 5126(b)  

137



 

Awards For Achievement (continued) 
 
(cf. 6162.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting Program) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain appropriate records to identify students 

who are eligible for the merit diploma and shall affix an insignia to the diploma and 

transcript of each student awarded the merit diploma.   

(Education Code 51454) 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall submit an insignia request form to the California 

Department of Education in sufficient time to allow processing of the request prior to the 

high school graduation ceremony. 

 

Biliteracy Award 

 

To be eligible to receive the State Seal of Biliteracy upon graduation, a student shall meet 

all the following criteria: (Education Code 51461) 

 

1. Complete all English language arts requirements for high school graduation  with an 

 overall grade point average (GPA) of 2.0 or above in those classes 

 

2. Pass the CST in English language arts administered in grade 11 at the 

 proficient level or above 

 

3. Demonstrate proficiency in one or more foreign languages, which may include 

 American sign language, by fulfilling one of the following criteria: 

 

 a. Pass foreign language Advanced Placement examination with a score   

  of 3 or higher or an International Baccalaureate examination with a 

  score of 4 or higher 

 
(cf. 6141.5 – Advanced Placement) 

 

 b. Successfully complete a four-year high school course of study in a  

  foreign language, attaining an overall GPA of 3.0 or above in that  

  course of study 

 
(cf. 6142.2 – World/Foreign Language Instruction) 

 

 

 

 

 

AR 5126 (c)  

138



 

Awards For Achievement (continued) 
 

In addition to meeting the criteria in items #1-3 above, a student whose primary language 

is other than English shall attain the early advanced proficiency level or higher on the 

California English Language Development Test (CELDT). 

 

(cf. 6174 – Education for English Language Learners) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain appropriate records to identify high school 

students who qualify for the award and shall affix the insignia to the diploma or transcript 

of each student who earns the award.  

(Education Code 51463) 

 

Notifications 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall annually distribute information about eligibility 

requirements for the Golden State Seal Merit Diploma and State Seal of Biliteracy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation        MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved:  December 13, 2011          Madera, California 

revised:  

139



  

Students BP 5131(a) 
 

CONDUCT 
 

 

The Governing Board believes that all students have the right to be educated in a positive 

learning environment free from disruptions.  Students shall be expected to exhibit appropriate 

conduct that does not infringe upon the rights of others or interfere with the school program 

while on school grounds, going to or coming from school, at school activities, or using 

district transportation. 
 

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school develops standards of conduct 

and discipline consistent with Board policies and administrative regulations.  Students and 

parents/guardians shall be notified of district and school rules related to conduct. 

 

Prohibited student conduct includes, but is not limited to: 

 

1. Conduct that endangers students, staff, or others, including, but not limited to, 

physical violence, possession of a firearm or other weapon, and terrorist threats 

 
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 

(cf. 5142 - Safety) 

 

2. Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying of students or staff, including 

sexual harassment, hate-motivated behavior, cyberbullying, hazing or initiation 

activity, extortion, or any other verbal, written, or physical conduct that causes or 

threatens to cause violence, bodily harm, or substantial disruption 

 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

 

3. Conduct that disrupts the orderly classroom or school environment 

 
(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 

 

4. Willful defiance of staff's authority 

 

5. Damage to or theft of property belonging to students, staff, or the district 

 
(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 

(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 

 

The district shall not be responsible for students' personal belongings which are 

brought on campus or to a school activity and are lost, stolen, or damaged. 

140



 BP 5131(b) 

 

CONDUCT (continued) 

 

6. Obscene acts or use of profane, vulgar, or abusive language 

 
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 

 

7. Possession, use, or being under the influence of tobacco, alcohol, or other prohibited 

drugs 

 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 

(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 

 

8. Possession or use of a laser pointer, unless for a valid instructional or other school-

related purpose (Penal Code 417.27) 

 

Prior to bringing a laser pointer on school premises for a valid instructional or school-

related purpose, a student shall obtain permission from the principal or designee. 

 

9. Use of a cellular/digital telephone, pager, or other mobile communications device 

during instructional time 

 

Such devices shall be turned off in class, except when being used for a valid 

instructional or other school-related purpose as determined by the teacher or other 

district employee, and at any other time directed by a district employee. Any device 

with camera, video, or voice recording function shall not be used in any manner 

which infringes on the privacy rights of any other person. 

 

No student shall be prohibited from possessing or using an electronic signaling device 

that is determined by a licensed physician or surgeon to be essential for the student's 

health and the use of which is limited to purposes related to the student's health.  

(Education Code 48901.5) 

 

10. Plagiarism or dishonesty on school work or tests 

 
(cf. 5131.9 - Academic Honesty) 

(cf. 6162.54 - Test Integrity/Test Preparation) 

(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials) 

 

11. Inappropriate attire 

 
(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming) 

 

12. Tardiness or unexcused absence from school 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 

  

 

 

141



BP 5131(c) 

 

CONDUCT  (continued) 

 

 

13. Failure to remain on school premises in accordance with school rules 
 

(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus) 
 

Employees are expected to provide appropriate supervision to enforce standards of conduct 

and, if they observe or receive a report of a violation of these standards, to immediately 

intervene or call for assistance. If an employee believes a matter has not been resolved, 

he/she shall refer the matter to his/her supervisor or an administrator for further investigation. 

 

When a school official suspects that a search of a student or his/her belongings will turn up 

evidence of the student's violation of the law or school rules, such a search shall be 

conducted in accordance with BP/AR 5145.12 - Search and Seizure. 
 

(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure) 
 

When a student uses any prohibited device, or uses a permitted device in any unethical or 

illegal activity, a district employee may confiscate the device.  The employee shall store the 

item in a secure manner until an appropriate time. 

 

Students who violate district or school rules and regulations may be subject to discipline 

including, but not limited to, suspension, expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, referral 

to a student success team or counseling services, or denial of participation in extracurricular 

or cocurricular activities or other privileges in accordance with Board policy and 

administrative regulation.  The Superintendent or designee shall notify local law enforcement 

as appropriate. 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 

(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities) 

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 
 

Students also may be subject to discipline, in accordance with law, Board policy, or 

administrative regulation, for any off-campus conduct during nonschool hours which poses a 

threat or danger to the safety of students, staff, or district property, or substantially disrupts 

school activities. 

 
 

Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

142



 BP 5131(d) 

 

 

CONDUCT  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 

32280-32289  Comprehensive safety plan 

35181  Governing board authority to set policy on responsibilities of students 

35291-35291.5  Rules 

44807  Duty concerning conduct of students 

48900-48925  Suspension and expulsion 

51512  Prohibition against electronic listening or recording device in classroom without permission 

CIVIL CODE 

1714.1  Liability of parents and guardians for willful misconduct of minor 

PENAL CODE 

288.2  Harmful matter with intent to seduce 

313  Harmful matter 

417.25-417.27  Laser scope or laser pointer 

647  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor 

653.2  Electronic communication devices, threats to safety 

VEHICLE CODE 

23123-23124  Prohibitions against use of electronic devices while driving 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

300-307  Duties of students 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000h-2000h6 Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 

COURT DECISIONS 

J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094 

LaVine v. Blaine School District, (2000, 9th Cir.) 257 F.3d 981 

Emmett v. Kent School District No. 415, (2000) 92 F.Supp. 1088 

Bethel School District No. 403 v. Fraser, (1986) 478 U.S. 675 

New Jersey v. T.L.O., (1985) 469 U.S. 325 

Tinker v. Des Moines Independent Community School District, (1969) 393 U.S. 503 

 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for All Students, Policy Brief, April 2010 

Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Bullying at School, 2003 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 

Center for Safe and Responsible Internet Use: http://cyberbully.org 

National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org 

National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us 

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 

 

Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: December 13, 2011 Madera, California 

revised:  

143



Students BP 5131.2(a) 
 

BULLYING 
 

 

The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school 

attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from physical 

and emotional harm.  District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall 

not tolerate bullying of any student. 

 

No student or group of students shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, 

sexually harass, threaten, intimidate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence 

against any other student or school personnel. 

 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

 

Cyberbullying includes the transmission of harassing communications, direct threats, or other 

harmful texts, sounds, or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies using a 

telephone, computer, or any wireless communication device.  Cyberbullying also includes 

breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that person's identity in order to 

damage that person's reputation. 

 
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 

 

Strategies for bullying prevention and intervention shall be developed with involvement of key 

stakeholders in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation governing the 

development of comprehensive safety plans and shall be incorporated into such plans. 

 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

Bullying Prevention 

 

To the extent possible, district and school strategies shall focus on prevention of bullying by 

establishing clear rules for student conduct and strategies to establish a positive, collaborative 

school climate. Students shall be informed, through student handbooks and other appropriate 

means, of district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms available for reporting 

incidents or threats, and the consequences for perpetrators of bullying. 
 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

 

144



 BP 5131.2(b) 

BULLYING  (continued) 

 

The district may provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other educational settings, 

that promotes effective communication and conflict resolution skills, social skills, 

character/values education, respect for cultural and individual differences, self-esteem 

development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior. 
 

(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 

(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

 

School staff shall receive related professional development, including information about early 

warning signs of harassing/intimidating behaviors and effective prevention and intervention 

strategies. 
 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may 

increase supervision and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, 

playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, cafeterias. 
 

Intervention 
 

Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another 

student is being victimized.  In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for 

students to report threats or incidents confidentially and anonymously. 
 

School staff who witness bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when it is safe 

to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 
 

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and 

perpetrators.  He/she also may involve school counselors, mental health counselors, and/or law 

enforcement. 

 

Complaints and Investigation 

 

Students may submit to a teacher or administrator a verbal or written complaint of conduct they 

consider to be bullying.  Complaints of bullying shall be investigated and resolved in accordance 

with site-level grievance procedures specified in AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 

When a student is reported to be engaging in bullying off campus, the Superintendent or 

designee shall investigate and document the activity and shall identify specific facts or 

circumstances that explain the impact or potential impact on school activity, school attendance, 

or the targeted student's educational performance. 

  

 

145



BP 5131.2(c) 

BULLYING  (continued) 

 

 

When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity 

shall be encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages sent to them that they 

feel constitute cyberbullying and to notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the 

matter may be investigated. 

 

If the student is using a social networking site or service that has terms of use that prohibit 

posting of harmful material, the Superintendent or designee also may file a complaint with the 

Internet site or service to have the material removed. 

 

Discipline 

 

Any student who engages in bullying on school premises, or off campus in a manner that causes 

or is likely to cause a substantial disruption of a school activity or school attendance, shall be 

subject to discipline, which may include suspension or expulsion, in accordance with district 

policies and regulations. 

 
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

146



 

 BP 5131.2(d) 

 

 

BULLYING  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 

32282  Comprehensive safety plan 

35181  Governing board policy on responsibilities of students 

35291-35291.5  Rules 

48900-48925  Suspension or expulsion 

48985 Translation of notices 

PENAL CODE 

647  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor 

647.7  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment 

653.2  Electronic communication devices, threats to safety 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 

254  Universal service discounts (e-rate) 

COURT DECISIONS 

J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094 

Lavine v. Blaine School District, (2002) 279 F.3d 719 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for All Students, Policy Brief, April 2010 

Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 

2008 

Bullying at School, 2003 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Cybersafety for Children: http://www.cybersafety.ca.gov 

California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 

Center for Safe and Responsible Internet Use: http://cyberbully.org 

National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org 

National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: Madera, California 

147



Students BP 5141.6(a) 

 

SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that good physical and mental health is critical to a student's 

ability to learn and believes that all students should have access to comprehensive health 

services.  The district may provide access to health services at or near district schools through the 

establishment of a school health center and/or mobile van(s) that serve multiple campuses. 

 

The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with local and state agencies and 

health care providers to assess the health needs of students in district schools and the community. 

Based on the results of this needs assessment and the availability of resources, the 

Superintendent or designee shall recommend for Board approval the types of health services to 

be provided by the district. 

 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 

(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 

(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 

(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 

(cf. 5141.24 - Specialized Health Care Services) 

(cf. 5141.25 - Availability of Condoms) 

(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing) 

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 

(cf. 5141.33 - Head Lice) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 

 

Board approval shall be required for any proposed use of district resources and facilities to 

support school health services. The Superintendent or designee shall identify funding 

opportunities available through grant programs, private foundations, and partnerships with local 

agencies and organizations. 

 
(cf. 1260 - Educational Foundation) 

(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreement) 

(cf. 3100 - Budget) 

(cf. 7000 - Facilities Master Plan) 

 

The Board may prioritize school health services to schools with the greatest need, including 

schools with medically underserved populations, a high percentage of low-income and uninsured 

children and youth, large numbers of English learners, Academic Performance Index rankings in 

deciles 1-3, and/or a shortage of health professionals in the community. 

148



 BP 5141.6(b) 

 
 

SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES (continued) 

 

 

School health services shall be provided or supervised by a licensed health care professional. The 

Board may employ or contract with health care professionals or partner with community health 

centers to provide the services under the terms of a written contract or memorandum of 

understanding. 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 

 

If a school nurse is employed by the school or district, he/she shall be involved in planning and 

implementing the school health services as appropriate. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate the provision of school health services with 

other student wellness initiatives, including health education, nutrition and physical fitness 

programs, and other activities designed to create a healthy school environment. The 

Superintendent or designee shall encourage joint planning and regular communications among 

health services staff, district administrators, teachers, counselors, other staff, and 

parents/guardians. 
 

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Counseling/Guidance Services) 

 

Consent and Confidentiality 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall obtain written parent/guardian consent prior to providing 

services to a student, except when the student is authorized to consent to the service pursuant to 

Family Code 6920-6929, Health and Safety Code 124260, or other applicable law. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the confidentiality of student health records in 

accordance with law. 
 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 

Payment/Reimbursement for Services 
 

The Board desires that costs not be a barrier to student access to services.  Services may be 

provided free of charge or on a sliding scale in accordance with law. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for billing public and private 

insurance programs and other applicable programs for reimbursement of services as appropriate. 
 

(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 

149



 

 BP 5141.6(c) 

 

 

SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES  (continued) 

 

 

The district shall serve as a Medi-Cal provider to the extent feasible, comply with all related 

legal requirements, and seek reimbursement of costs to the extent allowed by law. 

 

To further encourage student access to health care services, the Superintendent or designee shall 

develop and implement outreach strategies to increase enrollment of eligible students from low- 

to moderate-income families in affordable, comprehensive state or federal health coverage 

programs and local health initiatives.  Such strategies may include, but not be limited to, 

providing information about the Medi-Cal program on the application for free and reduced-price 

meals in accordance with law and providing students and parents/guardians with information 

about the low-cost Healthy Families insurance program. 

 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 

 

Program Evaluation 

 

In order to continuously improve school health services, the Board shall evaluate the 

effectiveness of such services and the extent to which they continue to meet student needs. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the Board with periodic reports that may include, 

but not necessarily be limited to, rates of participation in school health services; changes in 

student outcomes such as school attendance or achievement; feedback from staff and participants 

regarding program accessibility and operations, including accessibility to low-income and 

linguistically and culturally diverse students and families; and program costs and revenues. 

 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

150



 

 

 

 BP 5141.6(d) 

SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES  (continued) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

8800-8807  Healthy Start support services for children 

49073-49079  Privacy of student records 

49423.5  Specialized physical health care services 

49557.2-49558  Eligibility for free and reduced-price meals; sharing  information with Medi-Cal FAMILY 

CODE 

6920-6929  Consent by minor for medical treatment 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

95020  Individualized family service plan 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

104830-104865 School-based application of fluoride or other tooth decay-inhibiting agent 

121020  HIV/AIDS testing and treatment; parental consent for minor under age 12 

123110  Minor's right to access health records 

123115  Limitation on parent/guardian access to minor's health records 

123800-123995  California Children's Services Act 

124025-124110  Child Health and Disability Prevention Program 

124172-124174.6  Public School Health Center Support Program 

124260 Mental health services; consent by minors age 12 and older 

130300-130317  Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

14059.5  Definition of "medically necessary" 

14100.2  Confidentiality of Medi-Cal information 

14115 Medi-Cal claims process 

14124.90  Third-party health coverage 

14132.06  Covered benefits; health services provided by local educational agencies 

14132.47  Administrative claiming process and targeted case management 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 10 

2699.6500-2699.6905  Healthy Families Program 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 

2951  Testing standards for hearing tests 

6800-6874  Child Health and Disability Prevention Program 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 

51009  Confidentiality 

51050-51192  Definitions of Medi-Cal providers and services 

51200  Requirements for providers 

51231.2  Wheelchair van requirements 

51270  Local educational agency provider; conditions for participation 

51304  Limitations on specified benefits 

51309  Psychology, physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech pathology, audiological services 

51323  Medical transportation services 

51351  Targeted case management services 

51360  Local educational agency; types of services 

51491  Local educational agency eligibility for payment 

51535.5  Reimbursement to local educational agency providers 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1232g  Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act (FERPA) 

Legal Reference continued: (see next page) 

151



 BP 5141.6(e) 

 

 

SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES  (continued) 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1320c-9  Prohibition against disclosure of records 

1397aa-1397jj  State Children's Health Insurance Program 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 42 

431.300  Use and disclosure of information on Medicaid applicants and recipients 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 45 

164.500-164.534  Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Expanding Access to School Health Services: Policy Considerations for Governing Boards, Policy Brief, 

November 2008 

Promoting Oral Health for California's Student:  New Role, New Opportunities for Schools, Policy Brief, 

November 2008 

Providing School Health Services in California: Perceptions, Challenges and Needs of District Leadership 

Teams, 2008 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2003 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 

LEA Medi-Cal Provider Manual 

California School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities Manual 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES POLICY LETTERS 

00-06 Managed Care Plan Relationships with Local Education Agency Providers, December 11, 2000 

NATIONAL ASSEMBLY ON SCHOOL-BASED HEALTH CARE PUBLICATIONS 

A Guidebook for Evaluating School-Based Health Centers 

NATIONAL CENTER FOR YOUTH LAW PUBLICATIONS 

Minor Consent, Confidentiality, an Child Abuse Reporting in California, October 2006 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

CSBA, PractiCal Program:  http://www.csba.org/Services/Services/DistrictServices/PractiCal.aspx 

California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccsesa.org 

California Department of Education, Health Services and School Nursing:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hn 

California Department of Health Care Services: http://www.dhcs.ca.gov 

California Department of Public Health: http://www.cdph.ca.gov 

California School Health Centers Association: http://www.schoolhealthcenters.org 

California School Nurses Organization: http://www.csno.org 

Center for Health and Health Care in Schools: http://www.healthinschools.org 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, School Health Policies and Programs (SHPPS) Study: 

http://www.cdc.gov/HealthyYouth/shpps 

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services:  http://www.cms.hhs.gov 

Healthy Families Program:  http://www.healthyfamilies.ca.gov 

National Assembly on School-Based Health Care: http://www.nasbhc.org 

National Center for Youth Law:  http://www.youthlaw.org 

 

 

Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: Madera, California 

152



 

Students AR 5141.6(a) 

 

SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES 

 

Types of Health Services 

 

In accordance with student and community needs and available resources, school health services 

offered by the district may include, but are not limited to: 

 

1. Physical examinations, immunizations, and other preventive medical services. 

 
(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing) 

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
 

2. First aid and administration of medications. 
 

(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 
 

3. Diagnosis and treatment of minor injuries and acute medical conditions. 
 

4. Management of chronic medical conditions. 
 

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 
 

 

5. Referral to and follow-up for specialty care. 
 

6. Emergency response procedures. 
 

(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 
 

7. Nutrition services. 
 

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
 

8. Oral health services that may include preventive services, basic restorative services, and 

referral to specialty services. 

 

9. Mental health services, which may include assessments, crisis intervention, counseling, 

treatment, and referral to a continuum of services including emergency psychiatric care, 

community support programs, inpatient care, and outpatient programs. 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Counseling/Guidance Services) 

 

10. Substance abuse prevention and intervention services. 

 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

153



AR 5141.6(b) 

 

SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES  (continued) 
 

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 

(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 

 

11. Reproductive health services. 

 
(cf. 5141.25 - Availability of Condoms) 

 

12. Screening of students to identify the need for physical, mental, and oral health services. 

 

13. Referrals and linkage to services not offered on-site. 

 

14. Public health and disease surveillance. 

 

15. Individual and family health education. 

 

16. School or districtwide health promotion. 

 

Medi-Cal Billing 

 

In order to provide services as a Medi-Cal provider, the district shall enter into and maintain a 

contract with the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS). (Welfare and 

Institutions Code 14132.06; 22 CCR 51051, 51270) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all practitioners employed by or under contract 

with the district possess the appropriate license, certification, registration, or credential and 

provide only those services that are within their scope of practice. (22 CCR 51190.3, 51270, 

51491) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall submit a claim for Medi-Cal reimbursement whenever the 

district provides a covered preventive, diagnostic, therapeutic, or rehabilitative service  

specified in 22 CCR 51190.4 or 51360 to a Medi-Cal-eligible student under age 22 and/or a 

member of his/her family. (Welfare and Institutions Code 14132.06; 22 CCR 51096, 51098, 

51190.1, 51190.4, 51309, 51360, 51535.5) 

 
(cf. 5141.24 - Specialized Health Care Services) 

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

 

The district shall maintain records and supporting documentation including, but not limited to, 

records of the type and extent of services provided to a Medi-Cal beneficiary in accordance with 

law.  (22 CCR 51270, 51476) 

 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

154



AR 5141.6(c) 

 

 

SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICES (continued) 

 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall submit an annual report to DHCS identifying participants 

in the community collaborative, containing a financial summary including reinvestment 

expenditures, and describing service priorities for the future. (22 CCR 51270) 

 

Any federal funds received by the district as reimbursement for the costs of services under the 

Medi-Cal billing option shall be reinvested in services for students and their families as specified 

in Education Code 8804(g).  The Superintendent or designee shall consult with a local school-

linked services collaborative group, such as that defined in Education Code 8806, regarding 

decisions on reinvestment of federal funds.  (22 CCR 51270) 

 

Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 

 

Designated school staff shall document, on a time survey form, the amount of time spent on 

activities identified by DHCS which are related to the administration of the Medi-Cal program. 

Such activities include, but are not be limited to, outreach, referral of health and mental health 

services, translation services, facilitation of applications, scheduling and arranging emergency 

and medical transportation of eligible individuals, contracting for services, program planning and 

policy development, claims administration, and general administration. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall, on a quarterly basis, submit an invoice to the local 

educational consortium or local governmental agency through which the district has contracted 

to receive reimbursement. 

 

Staff responsible for completing the time survey shall annually participate in training regarding 

eligible activities and the time survey methodology, and shall receive additional training 

whenever there are changes or updates in administrative claiming categories and activities. New 

or reassigned staff shall receive training before beginning their duties completing time surveys. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain an audit file containing original time survey 

documentation and other records specified by DHCS. Such documentation shall be kept for three 

years after the end of the quarter in which expenditures were incurred or, if an audit is in 

progress, until the completion of the audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved: Madera, California 

 

155



Students BP 5144.1(a) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS 

 

The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in 

an orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and 

well-being, and promotes their learning and development.  The Board shall develop rules and 

regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary 

processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension 

and/or expulsion. 

 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

 

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, 

and/or implementing suspension and expulsion shall be those specified in law and administrative 

regulation. 

 

District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, 

consistently, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

 

Except for single acts of a grave nature or offenses for which suspension or expulsion is required 

by law, suspension or expulsion shall be used only when the student involved has a history of 

misconduct and other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct or the 

student's presence causes a continuing danger to himself/herself or others. 

 

To correct the behavior of students who are subject to discipline, the Superintendent or designee, 

to the extent allowed by law, shall use alternative disciplinary measures that keep students in 

school during the school day. 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

 

Alternatives to suspension or expulsion also shall be used with students who are truant, tardy, or 

otherwise absent from assigned school activities. 

 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 

 

Suspended or expelled students shall be denied the privilege of participation in all extracurricular 

activities during the period of suspension or expulsion. 
 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

156



 BP 5144.1(b) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

Due Process 

 

The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and 

expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law.  The Superintendent or 

designee shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and 

administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5) 

 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Individuals with Disabilities)) 
 

Removal from Class by a Teacher and Parental Attendance 

 

When suspending a student from class for committing an obscene act, engaging in habitual 

profanity or vulgarity, disrupting school activities, or otherwise willfully defying valid staff 

authority, the teacher of the class may require any parent/guardian who lives with the student to 

attend a portion of the school day in the class from which the student is being suspended, to 

assist in resolving the classroom behavior problems.  (Education Code 48900.1) 

 

Teachers should reserve the option of required parental attendance for cases in which they have 

determined that it is the best strategy to promote positive interaction between the student and 

his/her parents/guardians and to improve classroom behavior. 

 

Any teacher requiring parental attendance pursuant to this policy shall apply the policy 

uniformly to all students within the classroom.  (Education Code 48900.1) 

 

When a teacher requires parental attendance, the principal shall send a written notice to the 

parent/guardian stating that his/her attendance is required pursuant to law.  (Education Code 

48900.1) 

 

A parent/guardian who has received a written notice shall attend class as specified in the notice. 

After completing the classroom visit and before leaving school premises, the parent/guardian 

also shall meet with the principal or designee.  (Education Code 48900.1) 

 

When a parent/guardian does not respond to the request to attend school, the principal or 

designee shall contact him/her by telephone, mail, or other means that maintains the 

confidentiality of the student's records. 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

District regulations and school-site rules for student discipline shall include procedures for 

implementing parental attendance requirements.  Parents/guardians shall be notified of this 

policy prior to its implementation.  (Education Code 48900.1) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

157



 BP 5144.1(c) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order 

 

In cases where expulsion is mandatory pursuant to Education Code 48915(c), the enforcement of 

an expulsion order shall not be suspended by the Board.  In all other cases of expulsion, the order 

for expulsion may be suspended by the Board, on case-by-case basis, pursuant to the 

requirements of law and administrative regulation. 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

212.5  Sexual harassment 

1981 Enrollment of students in community school 

17292.5 Program for expelled students 

32261  Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985 

35146  Closed sessions (re suspensions) 

35291  Rules (for government and discipline of schools) 

35291.5  Rules and procedures on school discipline 

48660-48667  Community day schools 

48900-48927  Suspension and expulsion 

48950  Speech and other communication 

49073-49079  Privacy of student records 

CIVIL CODE 

47  Privileged communication 

48.8  Defamation liability 

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 

1985-1997  Subpoenas; means of production 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

11455.20  Contempt 

54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

11014.5  Drug paraphernalia 

11053-11058  Standards and schedules 

LABOR CODE 

230.7  Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on behalf of a 

child 

PENAL CODE 

31  Principal of a crime, defined 

240  Assault defined 

241.2  Assault fines 

242  Battery defined 

243.2  Battery on school property 

243.4  Sexual battery 

245  Assault with deadly weapon 

245.6  Hazing 

261  Rape defined 

266c  Unlawful sexual intercourse 

286  Sodomy defined 

             288  Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14  

 

Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 

 

158



BP 5144.1(d) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 
 

 

Legal Reference:  (continued) 

 

288a  Oral copulation 

289  Penetration of genital or anal openings 

626.2  Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission 

626.9  Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995 

626.10  Dirks, daggers, knives, razors or stun guns 

868.5  Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

729.6  Counseling 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 

921  Definitions, firearm 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

7151  Gun free schools 

COURT DECISIONS 

T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4
th

 1267 

Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4
th
 421 

Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of Education 

and Kenneth H., (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321 

Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal.App.3d 807 

Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 1182 

John A. v. San Bernardino School District  (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001) 

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997) 

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997) 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Civil Rights Data Collection Summary, March 2012 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.oag.ca.gov 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-

2012-data-summary.pdf 

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools: 

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: Madera, California 

159



 

Students AR 5144.1(a) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS 

 

Definitions 

 

Suspension from school means removal of a student from ongoing instruction for adjustment 

purposes.  However, suspension does not mean any of the following:  (Education Code 48925) 

 

1. Reassignment to another education program or class at the same school where the student 

will receive continuing instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Governing 

Board for students of the same grade level. 

 

2. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the principal to advise students. 

 

3. Removal from the class, but without reassignment to another class or program, for the 

remainder of the class period without sending the student to the principal or designee as 

provided in Education Code 48910.  Removal from a particular class shall not occur more 

than once every five school days. 

 

Expulsion means removal of a student from the immediate supervision and control, or the 

general supervision, of school personnel.  (Education Code 48925) 

 

Day means a calendar day unless otherwise specifically provided.  (Education Code 48925) 

 

School day means a day upon which the schools of the district are in session or weekdays during 

the summer recess.  (Education Code 48925) 

 

Student includes a student's parent/guardian or legal counsel.  (Education Code 48925) 

 

Principal's designee means one or more administrators or, if there is not a second administrator 

at one school site, a certificated person specifically designated by the principal, in writing, to 

assist with disciplinary procedures.  Only one such person may be designated at any time as the 

principal's primary designee and only one such person may be designated as secondary designee 

for the school year.  The names of such persons shall be on file in the principal's office.  

(Education Code 48911) 

 

School property, for the purposes described in Education Code 48900, includes, but is not 

limited to, electronic files and databases.  (Education Code 48900(u)) 

 

Notice of Regulations 
 

At the beginning of each school year, the principal of each school shall ensure that all students 

and parents/guardians are notified in writing of all school rules related to discipline, including 

suspension and expulsion.  (Education Code 35291, 48900.1, 48980) 
 

160



 

AR 5144.1(b) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 
 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

  

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion 

 

Any student, including a student with disabilities, may be subject to suspension or expulsion 

when it is determined that he/she: 

 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

 

1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person or 

willfully used force or violence upon another person, except in self-defense. (Education 

Code 48900(a)) 

 

A student who aids or abets the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury on 

another person, as defined in Penal Code 31, may be suspended, but not expelled.  

However, such a student may be suspended or expelled pursuant to Education Code 

48900(a) when he/she has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed, as an 

aider or abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great or serious 

bodily injury.  (Education Code 48900(t)) 

 

2. Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous 

object, unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had 

obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with 

the principal or designee's concurrence.  (Education Code 48900(b)) 

 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 

 

3. Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of, any 

controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic 

beverage, or intoxicant of any kind.  (Education Code 48900(c)) 

 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

 

4. Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in 

Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind, and 

then sold, delivered, or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid, substance, or 

material and represented same as such controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, or 

intoxicant.  (Education Code 48900(d)) 

 

5. Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.  (Education Code 48900(e)) 

 

161



 

AR 5144.1(c) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

6. Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property.  (Education 

Code 48900(f)) 

 

7. Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property.  (Education Code 

48900(g)) 

 

8. Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including, 

but not limited to, cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless 

tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel, except that this restriction shall not prohibit a 

student from using or possessing his/her own prescription products.  (Education Code 

48900(h)) 

 
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 

 

9. Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.  (Education 

Code 48900(i)) 

 

10. Unlawfully possessed, offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as 

defined in Health and Safety Code 11014.5.  (Education Code 48900(j)) 

 

11. Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of 

supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel 

engaged in the performance of their duties.  (Education Code 48900(k)) 
 

(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 

 

12. Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.  (Education Code 

48900(l)) 
 

13. Possessed an imitation firearm.  (Education Code 48900(m)) 

 

 Imitation firearm means a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical 

properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the 

replica is a firearm.  (Education Code 48900(m)) 

 

14. Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 

286, 288, 288a, or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4.  

(Education Code 48900(n)) 

 

15. Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in 

a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a  

  

162



 

AR 5144.1(d) 

 
 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

 witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness.  (Education Code 

48900(o)) 

 

16. Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug 

Soma.  (Education Code 48900(p)) 

 

17. Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing.  (Education Code 48900(q)) 

 

 Hazing means a method of initiation or pre initiation into a student organization or body, 

whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational 

institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or 

disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective student.  

Hazing does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events.  (Education Code 

48900(q)) 

 

18. Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property.  (Education Code 

48900.7) 

 

A terrorist threat includes any written or oral statement by a person who willfully 

threatens to commit a crime which will result in death or great bodily injury to another 

person or property damage in excess of $1,000, with the specific intent that the statement 

is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out. (Education 

Code 48900.7) 

 

A student in grades 4-12 is also subject to suspension or recommendation for expulsion when it 

is determined that he/she: 

 

19. Committed sexual harassment as defined in Education Code 212.5.  (Education Code 

48900.2) 

 

Sexual harassment means conduct which, when considered from the perspective of a 

reasonable person of the same gender as the victim, is sufficiently severe or pervasive as 

to have a negative impact upon the victim's academic performance or to create an 

intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. (Education Code 212.5, 

48900.2) 

 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

 

20. Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate violence 

as defined in Education Code 233.  (Education Code 48900.3) 

 

163



 

AR 5144.1(e) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

 

Hate violence means any act punishable under Penal Code 422.6, 422.7, or 422.75.  Such 

acts include injuring or intimidating a victim, interfering with the exercise of a victim's 

civil rights, or damaging a victim's property because of the victim's race, ethnicity, 

religion, nationality, disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or sexual 

orientation; a perception of the presence of any of those characteristics in the victim; or 

the victim's association with a person or group with one or more of those actual or 

perceived characteristics. (Education Code 233; Penal Code 422.55) 

 
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

  

21. Intentionally engaged in harassment, threats, or intimidation against district personnel or 

students that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably 

expected effect of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder, and 

invading the rights of school personnel or students by creating an intimidating or hostile 

educational environment.  (Education Code 48900.4) 

 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

 

22. Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying by means of an 

electronic act, directed toward a student or school personnel.  (Education Code 48900(r)) 

 

Bullying means one or more acts by a student or group of students that constitute sexual 

harassment pursuant to Education Code 48900.2, as defined in item #19 above; hate 

violence pursuant to Education Code 48900.3, as defined in item #20 above; or 

harassment, threats, or intimidation pursuant to Education Code 48900.4, as defined in 

item #21 above.  (Education Code 32261) 

 

Electronic act means the transmission of a communication, including, but not limited to, 

a message, text, sound, image, or post on a social network Internet web site, by means of 

an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or 

other wireless communication device, computer, or pager.  (Education Code 32261) 

 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

 

A student may be suspended or expelled for any of the acts listed above if the act is related to 

school activity or school attendance occurring at any district school or within any other school 

district, at any time, including, but not limited to, the following:  (Education Code 48900) 

 

1. While on school grounds. 

164



 

AR 5144.1(f) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

 

2. While going to or coming from school. 
 

(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 

 

3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus. 
 

(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus) 

 

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity. 

 

 

Removal from Class by a Teacher and Parental Attendance 

 

A teacher may remove any student from his/her class for the remainder of the day and the 

following day for any act listed in "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above.  (Education 

Code 48910) 

 

When removing a student from his/her class, the teacher shall immediately report this action to 

the principal or designee and send the student to the principal or designee for appropriate action.  

If that action requires the continuing presence of the student at school, he/she shall be 

appropriately supervised during the class periods from which he/she has been removed.  

(Education Code 48910) 

 

As soon as possible, the teacher shall ask the student's parent/guardian to attend a parent-teacher 

conference regarding the removal.  A counselor or psychologist may attend the conference if it is 

practicable, and a school administrator shall attend if either the parent/guardian or teacher so 

requests.  (Education Code 48910) 

 

A student removed from class shall not be returned to class during the period of removal without 

the approval of the teacher of the class and the principal.  (Education Code 48910) 

 

A student removed from class shall not be placed in another regular class during the period of 

removal.  However, if a student is assigned to more than one class per day, he/she may be placed 

in any other regular classes except those held at the same time as the class from which the 

student was removed.  (Education Code 48910) 

 

The teacher of any class from which a student is removed may require the student to complete 

any assignments and tests missed during the removal.  (Education Code 48913) 

 

 

165



AR 5144.1(g) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

Pursuant to Board policy, a teacher may require the parent/guardian of a student whom the 

teacher has removed to attend a portion of a school day in his/her child's classroom.  When a  

 

teacher makes this request, the principal shall send the parent/guardian a written notice that the 

parent/guardian's attendance is requested pursuant to law.  (Education Code 48900.1) 

 

The notice shall specify that the attendance may be on either the date the student is scheduled to 

return to class or within one week thereafter. 

 

This notice shall also: 

 

1. Inform the parent/guardian when his/her presence is expected and by what means he/she 

may arrange an alternate date. 

 

2. State that if the parent/guardian does not have a means of transportation to school, he/she 

may ride the school bus with the student. 

  

3. Ask the parent/guardian to meet with the principal after the visit and before leaving 

school, as required by Education Code 48900.1. 
 

Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or Designee 
 

The Superintendent, principal, or designee may suspend a student for any of the acts listed in 

"Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above.  A student may be suspended only when the 

Superintendent or principal has determined that other means of correction have failed to bring 

about proper conduct in the student.  (Education Code 48900.5) 

 

However, the Superintendent, principal, or designee may impose a suspension upon a first 

offense if he/she determines that the student violated items #1-5 listed in "Grounds for 

Suspension and Expulsion" above or if the student's presence causes a danger to persons or 

property or threatens to disrupt the instructional process.  (Education Code 48900.5) 

 

In addition, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall immediately suspend any student 

found at school or at a school activity to be:  (Education Code 48915) 

 

1. Possessing, as verified by a district employee, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm, 

unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a 

certificated school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence. 
 

2. Brandishing a knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g). 
 

3. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058. 

166



AR 5144.1(h) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 
 

4. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as 

defined in item #14 under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above. 

 

5. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921 

 

The Superintendent, principal, or designee may suspend a student from school for not more than 

five consecutive school days unless the suspension is extended pending expulsion.  (Education 

Code 48911) 

 

A student may be suspended from school for not more than 20 school days in any school year 

unless, for purposes of adjustment, the student enrolls in or is transferred to another regular 

school, an opportunity school, or continuation school or class, in which case suspension shall not 

exceed 30 days in any school year.  However, this restriction on the number of days of 

suspension does not apply when the suspension is extended pending an expulsion.  (Education 

Code 48903, 48911, 48912) 
 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

  

The district may count suspensions that occur while a student is enrolled in another school 

district toward the maximum number of days for which the student may be suspended in any 

school year.  (Education Code 48903) 

 

Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures: 

 

1. Informal Conference:  Suspension shall be preceded by an informal conference 

conducted by the Superintendent, principal, or designee with the student and, whenever 

practicable, the teacher, supervisor, or school employee who referred the student to the 

principal.  At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the 

disciplinary action, presented with the evidence against him/her, and given the 

opportunity to present his/her version and evidence in support of his/her defense.  

(Education Code 48911) 
 

 This conference may be omitted if the Superintendent, principal, or designee determines 

that an emergency situation exists involving a clear and present danger to the lives, 

safety, or health of students or school personnel.  If a student is suspended without this 

conference, both the parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the student's right to 

return to school for the purpose of the conference.  The conference shall be held within 

two school days, unless the student waives his/her right to it or is physically unable to 

attend for any reason.  In such a case, the conference shall be held as soon as the student 

is physically able to return to school.  (Education Code 48911) 

 

 

167



AR 5144.1(i) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

2. Administrative Actions:  All requests for student suspension are to be processed by the 

principal or designee.  A school employee shall report the suspension, including the name 

of the student and the cause for the suspension, to the Superintendent or designee.  

(Education Code 48911) 

 

3. Notice to Parents/Guardians:  At the time of the suspension, a school employee shall 

make a reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. 

Whenever a student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the 

suspension.  (Education Code 48911) 

 

 This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student.  (Education Code 

48900.8) 

 

 In addition, the notice may state the date and time when the student may return to school.  

If school officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to 

the suspension, the notice may add that state law requires the parent/guardian to respond 

to such requests without delay. 

 

4. Parent/Guardian Conference:  Whenever a student is suspended, school officials may 

meet with the parent/guardian to discuss the cause(s) and duration of the suspension, the 

school policy involved, and any other pertinent matter.  (Education Code 48914) 

 

 While the parent/guardian is required to respond without delay to a request for a 

conference about his/her child's behavior, no penalties may be imposed on the student for 

the failure of the parent/guardian to attend such a conference.  The student may not be 

denied readmission solely because the parent/guardian failed to attend the conference.  

(Education Code 48911) 

 

5. Extension of Suspension:  If the Board is considering the expulsion of a suspended 

student from any school or the suspension of a student for the balance of the semester 

from continuation school, the Superintendent or designee may, in writing, extend the 

suspension until such time as the Board has made a decision.  (Education Code 48911) 

 

Any extension of the original period of suspension shall be preceded by notice of such extension 

with an offer to hold a conference concerning the extension, giving the student an opportunity to   

be heard.  This conference may be held in conjunction with a meeting requested by the student or 

parent/guardian to challenge the original suspension.  Extension of the suspension may be made 

only if the Superintendent or designee determines, following a meeting in which the student and 

the student's parent/guardian were invited to participate, that the student's presence at the school  

 

 

168



AR 5144.1(j) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

or at an alternative school would endanger persons or property or threaten to disrupt the 

instructional process.  (Education Code 48911) 

 

Suspension by the Board 

 

The Board may suspend a student for any of the acts listed in "Grounds for Suspension and 

Expulsion" above and within the limits specified in "Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or 

Designee" above.  (Education Code 48912) 
 

The Board may suspend a student enrolled in a continuation school or class for a period not 

longer than the remainder of the semester if any of the acts listed in "Grounds for Suspension and 

Expulsion" occurred. The suspension shall meet the requirements of Education Code 48915.  

(Education Code 48912.5) 

 

When the Board is considering a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action (except 

expulsion) against any student, it shall hold closed sessions if a public hearing would lead to 

disclosure of information violating a student's right to privacy under Education Code 49073-

49079.  (Education Code 35146, 48912) 
 

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 

  

The Board shall provide the student and his/her parent/guardian with written notice of the closed 

session by registered or certified mail or personal service.  Upon receiving this notice, the 

student or parent/guardian may request a public meeting, and this request shall be granted if 

made in writing within 48 hours after receipt of the Board's notice.  However, any discussion that 

conflicts with any other student's right to privacy still shall be held in closed session.  (Education 

Code 35146, 48912) 

 

Authority to Expel 

 

A student may be expelled only by the Board.  (Education Code 48918(j)) 

 

The Board shall expel, as required by law, any student found to have committed any offense 

listed below under "Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion."  (Education Code 

48915) 

 

For all other grounds listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion," the Board 

shall order a student expelled upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, principal, or 

designee, only if the Board makes a finding of either or both of the following:  (Education Code 

48915(b) and (e)) 

 

1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about 

proper conduct. 

169



AR 5144.1(k) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing 

danger to the physical safety of the student or others. 

 

Mandatory Recommendation for Expulsion 

 

Unless the Superintendent, principal, or designee finds that expulsion is inappropriate due to 

particular circumstances, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall recommend a student's 

expulsion for any of the following acts:  (Education Code 48915(a)) 

 

1. Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense. 

 

2. Possession of any knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g), explosive, or other 

dangerous object of no reasonable use to the student. 

 

3. Unlawful possession of any controlled substance, as listed in Health and Safety Code 

11053-11058, except for the first offense for the possession of not more than one ounce 

of marijuana, other than concentrated cannabis. 

 

4. Robbery or extortion. 

 

5. Assault or battery, as defined in Penal Code 240 and 242, upon any school employee. 

 

Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion 

 

The Superintendent, principal, or designee shall recommend that the Board expel any student 

found at school or at a school activity to be:  (Education Code 48915(c)) 

 

1. Possessing, as verified by a district employee, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm, 

unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the firearm from a 

certificated school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence. 

 

2. Brandishing a knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g) at another person. 

 

3. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058. 
 

4. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as 

defined in item #14 under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above. 
 

5. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921. 
 

Upon finding that the student committed any of the above acts, the Board shall expel the student.  

(Education Code 48915) 

170



 

AR 5144.1(l) 

 
 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (continued) 

 

Student's Right to Expulsion Hearing 
 

Any student recommended for expulsion shall be entitled to a hearing to determine whether 

he/she should be expelled. The hearing shall be held within 30 school days after the 

Superintendent, principal, or designee determines that the student has committed one of the acts 

listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion."  (Education Code 48918(a)) 

 

The student is entitled to at least one postponement of an expulsion hearing for a period of not 

more than 30 calendar days.  The request for postponement shall be in writing.  Any subsequent 

postponement may be granted at the Board's discretion.  (Education Code 48918(a)) 
 

If the Board finds it impractical during the regular school year to comply with these time 

requirements for conducting an expulsion hearing, the Superintendent or designee may, for good 

cause, extend the time period by an additional five school days.  Reasons for the extension shall 

be included as a part of the record when the expulsion hearing is held.  (Education Code 

48918(a)) 

 

If the Board finds it impractical to comply with the time requirements of the expulsion hearing 

due to a summer recess of Board meetings of more than two weeks, the days during the recess 

shall not be counted as school days. The days not counted during the recess may not exceed 20 

school days, as defined in Education Code 48925.  Unless the student requests in writing that the 

expulsion hearing be postponed, the hearing shall be held not later than 20 calendar days prior to 

the first day of the next school year.  (Education Code 48918(a)) 

 

Once the hearing starts, all matters shall be pursued with reasonable diligence and concluded 

without unnecessary delay.  (Education Code 48918(a)) 

 

After a determination that one of the grounds listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and 

Expulsion" has occurred, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall offer the student and 

his/her parent/guardian the option to waive a hearing and stipulate to the expulsion.  The 

stipulation agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by the student and his/her 

parent/guardian. 

 

Rights of Complaining Witness 

 

An expulsion hearing involving allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery may be postponed 

for one school day in order to accommodate the special physical, mental, or emotional needs of a 

student who is the complaining witness.  (Education Code 48918.5) 

 

Whenever the Superintendent or designee recommends an expulsion hearing that addresses 

allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery, he/she shall give the complaining witness a copy  

171



 

AR 5144.1(m) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (continued) 

 

of the district's suspension and expulsion policy and regulation and shall advise the witness of 

his/her right to:  (Education Code 48918.5) 

 

1. Receive five days' notice of his/her scheduled testimony at the hearing. 

 

2. Have up to two adult support persons of his/her choosing present at the hearing at the 

time he/she testifies. 

 

3. Have a closed hearing during the time he/she testifies. 

 

Whenever any allegation of sexual assault or sexual battery is made, the Superintendent or 

designee shall immediately advise complaining witnesses and accused students to refrain from 

personal or telephone contact with each other during the time when an expulsion process is 

pending.  (Education Code 48918.5) 

 

Written Notice of the Expulsion Hearing 

 

Written notice of the expulsion hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's 

parent/guardian at least 10 calendar days before the date of the hearing.  The notice shall include:  

(Education Code 48900.8, 48918(b)) 

 

1. The date and place of the hearing. 

 

2. A statement of the specific facts, charges, and offense upon which the proposed 

expulsion is based. 

 

3. A copy of district disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation. 

 

4. Notification of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation, pursuant to Education Code 

48915.1, to provide information about the student's status in the district to any other 

district in which the student seeks enrollment.  This obligation applies when a student is 

expelled for acts other than those described in Education Code 48915(a) or (c). 
 

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 

 

5. The opportunity for the student or the student's parent/guardian to appear in person or be 

represented by legal counsel or by a nonattorney advisor. 
 

 Legal counsel means an attorney or lawyer who is admitted to the practice of law in 

California and is an active member of the State Bar of California. 
 

  

 

172



AR 5144.1(n) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

Nonattorney advisor means an individual who is not an attorney or lawyer, but who is familiar 

with the facts of the case and has been selected by the student or student's parent/guardian 

to provide assistance at the hearing. 

 

6. The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing. 
 

7. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing. 

 

8. The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary 

evidence on the student's behalf, including witnesses. 
 

Conduct of Expulsion Hearing 
 

1. Closed Session:  Notwithstanding the provisions of Government Code 54953 and 

Education Code 35145, the Board shall conduct a hearing to consider the expulsion of the 

student in a session closed to the public unless the student requests in writing at least five 

days prior to the hearing that the hearing be a public meeting.  If such a request is made, 

the meeting shall be public unless another student's privacy rights would be violated.  

(Education Code 48918(c)) 

 

 Whether the expulsion hearing is held in closed or public session, the Board may meet in 

closed session to deliberate and determine whether or not the student should be expelled.  

If the Board admits any other person to this closed session, the parent/guardian, the 

student, and the counsel of the student also shall be allowed to attend the closed session.  

(Education Code 48918(c)) 

 

 If a hearing that involves a charge of sexual assault or sexual battery is to be conducted in 

public, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his/her testimony heard in 

closed session when testifying in public would threaten serious psychological harm to the 

witness and when there are no alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm, 

including, but not limited to, videotaped deposition or contemporaneous examination in 

another place communicated to the hearing room by closed-circuit television.  (Education 

Code 48918(c)) 

 

2. Record of Hearing:  A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by 

any means, including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete 

written transcription of the proceedings can be made.  (Education Code 48918(g)) 

 

3. Subpoenas:  Before commencing a student expulsion hearing, the Board may issue 

subpoenas, at the request of either the student or the Superintendent or designee, for the 

personal appearance at the hearing of any person who actually witnessed the action that 

gave rise to the recommendation for expulsion.  After the hearing has commenced, the  

173



AR 5144.1(o) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

 Board or the hearing officer or administrative panel may issue such subpoenas at the 

request of the student or the County Superintendent of Schools or designee.  All 

subpoenas shall be issued in accordance with the Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1985.2 

and enforced in accordance with Government Code 11455.20.  (Education Code 

48918(i)) 

 

 Any objection raised by the student or the Superintendent or designee to the issuance of 

subpoenas may be considered by the Board in closed session, or in open session if so 

requested by the student, before the meeting.  The Board's decision in response to such an 

objection shall be final and binding.  (Education Code 48918(i)) 

 

 If the Board determines, or if the hearing officer or administrative panel finds and 

submits to the Board, that a witness would be subject to unreasonable risk of harm by 

testifying at the hearing, a subpoena shall not be issued to compel the personal attendance 

of that witness at the hearing.  However, that witness may be compelled to testify by 

means of a sworn declaration as described in item #4 below.  (Education Code 48918(i)) 

 

4. Presentation of Evidence: Technical rules of evidence shall not apply to the expulsion 

hearing, but relevant evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of 

evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs.  The 

decision of the Board to expel shall be supported by substantial evidence that the student 

committed any of the acts pursuant to Education Code 48900 and listed in "Grounds for 

Suspension and Expulsion" above.  (Education Code 48918(h)) 

 

 Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing.  While no finding 

shall be based solely on hearsay, sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from 

witnesses whose disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them 

to an unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.  (Education Code 48918(f)) 

 

 In cases where a search of a student's person or property has occurred, evidence 

describing the reasonableness of the search shall be included in the hearing record. 

 

5. Testimony by Complaining Witnesses:  The following procedures shall be observed 

when hearings involve allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery by a student:  

(Education Code 48918, 48918.5)  

 

a. Any complaining witness shall be given five days' notice before being called to 

testify. 

 

 

 

174



AR 5144.1(p) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

b. Any complaining witness shall be entitled to have up to two adult support 

persons, including, but not limited to, a parent/guardian or legal counsel, present 

during his/her testimony. 

 

c. Before a complaining witness testifies, support persons shall be admonished that 

the hearing is confidential. 

 

d. The person presiding over the hearing may remove a support person whom he/she 

finds is disrupting the hearing. 

 

e. If one or both support persons are also witnesses, the hearing shall be conducted 

in accordance with Penal Code 868.5. 

 

f. Evidence of specific instances of prior sexual conduct of a complaining witness 

shall be presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard unless the person 

conducting the hearing determines that extraordinary circumstances require the 

evidence to be heard.  Before such a determination is made, the complaining 

witness shall be given notice and an opportunity to oppose the introduction of this 

evidence.  In the hearing on the admissibility of this evidence, the complaining 

witness shall be entitled to be represented by a parent/guardian, legal counsel, or 

other support person.  Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual 

behavior of a complaining witness shall not be admissible for any purpose. 
 

g. In order to facilitate a free and accurate statement of the experiences of the 

complaining witness and to prevent discouragement of complaints, the district 

shall provide a nonthreatening environment. 

 

(1) The district shall provide a room separate from the hearing room for the 

use of the complaining witness before and during breaks in testimony. 
 

(2) At the discretion of the person conducting the hearing, the complaining 

witness shall be allowed reasonable periods of relief from examination and 

cross-examination during which he/she may leave the hearing room. 
 

(3) The person conducting the hearing may: 
 

(a) Arrange the seating within the hearing room so as to facilitate a 

less intimidating environment for the complaining witness 

 

(b) Limit the time for taking the testimony of a complaining witness to 

the hours he/she is normally in school, if there is no good cause to 

take the testimony during other hours 

 

 

175



AR 5144.1(q) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

(c) Permit one of the support persons to accompany the complaining 

witness to the witness stand. 

 

6. Decision:  The Board's decision as to whether to expel a student shall be made within 40 

school days after the student is removed from his/her school of attendance, unless the 

student requests in writing that the decision be postponed.  (Education Code 48918(a)) 

 

Alternative Expulsion Hearing:  Hearing Officer or Administrative Panel 

 

Instead of conducting an expulsion hearing itself, the Board may contract with the county 

hearing officer or with the Office of Administrative Hearings of the State of California for a 

hearing officer. Alternatively, the Board may appoint an impartial administrative panel 

composed of three or more certificated personnel, none of whom shall be members of the Board 

or on the staff of the school in which the student is enrolled.  (Education Code 48918(d)) 

 

A hearing conducted by the hearing officer or administrative panel shall conform to the same 

procedures applicable to a hearing conducted by the Board as specified above in "Conduct of 

Expulsion Hearing," including the requirement to issue its decision within 40 school days of the 

student's removal from school, unless the student requests that the decision be postponed.  

(Education Code 48918(a) and (d)) 

 

The hearing officer or administrative panel shall, within three school days after the hearing, 

determine whether to recommend expulsion of the student to the Board.  If expulsion is not 

recommended, the expulsion proceeding shall be terminated and the student shall be immediately 

reinstated. The Superintendent or designee shall place the student in a classroom instructional 

program, any other instructional program, a rehabilitation program, or any combination of these 

programs after consulting with district staff, including the student's teachers, and with the 

student's parent/guardian.  The decision to not recommend expulsion shall be final.  (Education 

Code 48918(e)) 

 

If expulsion is recommended, findings of fact in support of the recommendation shall be 

prepared and submitted to the Board.  All findings of fact and recommendations shall be based 

solely on the evidence presented at the hearing. The Board may accept the recommendation 

based either upon a review of the findings of fact and recommendations submitted or upon the 

results of any supplementary hearing the Board may order.  (Education Code 48918(f)) 

 

In accordance with Board policy, the hearing officer or administrative panel may recommend 

that the Board suspend the enforcement of the expulsion for a period of one year.  (Education 

Code 48917, 48918) 

 

 

176



AR 5144.1(r) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

Final Action by the Board 

 

Whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in closed or public session by the Board, a hearing 

officer, or an administrative panel, the final action to expel shall be taken by the Board at a 

public meeting.  (Education Code 48918(j)) 

 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 

 

If the Board conducts the hearing and reaches a decision not to expel, this decision shall be final 

and the student shall be reinstated immediately. 

 

Upon ordering an expulsion, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be reviewed for 

readmission to a school within the district.  For a student expelled for any act listed under 

"Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion" above, this date shall be one year from 

the date the expulsion occurred, except that the Board may set an earlier date on a case-by-case 

basis.  For a student expelled for other acts, this date shall be no later than the last day of the 

semester following the semester in which the expulsion occurred.  If an expulsion is ordered 

during summer session or the intersession period of a year-round program, the Board shall set a 

date when the student shall be reviewed for readmission not later than the last day of the 

semester following the summer session or intersession period in which the expulsion occurred.  

(Education Code 48916) 

 

At the time of the expulsion order, the Board shall recommend a plan for the student's 

rehabilitation, which may include:  (Education Code 48916) 

 

1. Periodic review, as well as assessment at the time of review, for readmission. 

 

2. Recommendations for improved academic performance, tutoring, special education 

assessments, job training, counseling, employment, community service, or other 

rehabilitative programs. 

 

With parent/guardian consent, students who have been expelled for reasons relating to controlled 

substances or alcohol may be required to enroll in a county-sponsored drug rehabilitation 

program before returning to school.  (Education Code 48916.5) 

 

Written Notice to Expel 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the student or 

parent/guardian.  This notice shall include the following: 

 

 

 

 

177



AR 5144.1(s) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

1. The specific offense committed by the student for any of the causes for suspension or 

expulsion listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion"  (Education Code 

48900.8) 

 

2. The fact that a description of readmission procedures will be made available to the 

student and his/her parent/guardian.  (Education Code 48916) 

 

3. Notice of the right to appeal the expulsion to the County Board of Education.  (Education 

Code 48918) 

 

4. Notice of the alternative educational placement to be provided to the student during the 

time of expulsion.  (Education Code 48918) 

 

5. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in which 

the student seeks to enroll of the student's status with the expelling district, pursuant to 

Education Code 48915.1.  (Education Code 48918) 

 

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order 

 

In accordance with Board policy, when deciding whether to suspend the enforcement of an 

expulsion order, the Board shall take into account the following criteria: 

 

1. The student's pattern of behavior. 

 

2. The seriousness of the misconduct. 

 

3. The student's attitude toward the misconduct and his/her willingness to follow a 

rehabilitation program. 

 

The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion shall be governed by the following: 

 

1. The Board may, as a condition of the suspension of enforcement, assign the student to a 

school, class, or program appropriate for the student's rehabilitation.  This rehabilitation 

program may provide for the involvement of the student's parent/guardian in the student's 

education.  However, a parent/guardian's refusal to participate in the rehabilitation 

program shall not be considered in the Board's determination as to whether the student 

has satisfactorily completed the rehabilitation program.  (Education Code 48917) 

  

2. During the period when enforcement of the expulsion order is suspended, the student 

shall be on probationary status.  (Education Code 48917) 

 

178



 

AR 5144.1(t) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

3. The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order may be revoked by the Board if 

the student commits any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" 

above or violates any of the district's rules and regulations governing student conduct.  

(Education Code 48917) 

 

4. When the suspension of enforcement of an expulsion order is revoked, a student may be 

expelled under the terms of the original expulsion order.  (Education Code 48917) 

 

5. Upon satisfactory completion of the rehabilitation assignment, the Board shall reinstate 

the student in a district school.  Upon reinstatement, the Board may order the expunging 

of any or all records of the expulsion proceedings.  (Education Code 48917) 

 

6. The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of any decision to suspend the 

enforcement of an expulsion order during a period of probation to the student or 

parent/guardian.  The notice shall inform the parent/guardian of the right to appeal the 

expulsion to the County Board, the alternative educational placement to be provided to 

the student during the period of expulsion, and the student's or parent/guardian's 

obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks to enroll of his/her status 

with the expelling district, pursuant to Education Code 48915.1(b).  (Education Code 

48918(j)) 

 

7. Suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order shall not affect the time period and 

requirements for the filing of an appeal of the expulsion order with the County Board.  

(Education Code 48917) 

 

Right to Appeal 

 

The student or parent/guardian is entitled to file an appeal of the Board's decision with the 

County Board.  The appeal must be filed within 30 days of the Board's decision to expel, even if 

the expulsion order is suspended and the student is placed on probation.  (Education Code 

48919) 

 

The student shall submit a written request for a copy of the written transcripts and supporting 

documents from the district simultaneously with the filing of the notice of appeal with the 

County Board.  The district shall provide the student with these documents within 10 school days 

following the student's written request.  (Education Code 48919) 

 

 

 

 

 

179



 

AR 5144.1(u) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

Notification to Law Enforcement Authorities 
 

Prior to the suspension or expulsion of any student, the principal or designee shall notify 

appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities of any student acts of assault which may 

have violated Penal Code 245.  (Education Code 48902) 

 

The principal or designee also shall notify appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities 

of any student acts which may involve the possession or sale of narcotics or of a controlled 

substance.  In addition, law enforcement authorities shall be notified regarding any acts by 

students regarding the possession, sale, or furnishment of firearms, explosives, or other 

dangerous weapons in violation of Education Code 48915(c)(1) or (5) or Penal Code 626.9 and 

626.10.  (Education Code 48902) 

 

Within one school day after a student's suspension or expulsion, the principal or designee shall 

notify appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities, by telephone or other appropriate 

means, of any student acts which may violate Education Code 48900(c) or (d), relating to the 

possession, use, offering, or sale of controlled substances, alcohol, or intoxicants of any kind.  

(Education Code 48902) 

 

Post-Expulsion Placements 

 

The Board shall refer expelled students to a program of study that is:  (Education Code 48915, 

48915.01) 

 

1. Appropriately prepared to accommodate students who exhibit discipline problems. 

 

2. Not provided at a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at any 

elementary school, unless the program is offered at a community day school established 

at such a site. 

 

3. Not housed at the school site attended by the student at the time of suspension. 

 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 

 

When the placement described above is not available and when the County Superintendent so 

certifies, students expelled for acts described in items #6-13 and #19-21 under "Grounds for 

Suspension and Expulsion" above may be referred to a program of study that is provided at 

another comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at an elementary school.  

(Education Code 48915) 

 

180



 

AR 5144.1(v) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

The program for a student expelled from any of grades K-6 shall not be combined or merged 

with programs offered to students in any of grades 7-12.  (Education Code 48916.1) 

  

Readmission After Expulsion 

 

Readmission procedures shall be as follows: 

 

1. On the date set by the Board when it ordered the expulsion, the district shall consider 

readmission of the student.  (Education Code 48916) 

 

2. The Superintendent or designee shall hold a conference with the parent/guardian and the 

student.  At the conference the student's rehabilitation plan shall be reviewed and the 

Superintendent or designee shall verify that the provisions of this plan have been met.  

School regulations shall be reviewed and the student and parent/guardian shall be asked 

to indicate in writing their willingness to comply with these regulations. 

 

3. The Superintendent or designee shall transmit to the Board his/her recommendation 

regarding readmission. The Board shall consider this recommendation in closed session if 

information would be disclosed in violation of Education Code 49073-49079.  If a written 

request for open session is received from the parent/guardian or adult student, it shall be 

honored. 

 

4. If the readmission is granted, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student and 

parent/guardian, by registered mail, of the Board's decision regarding readmission. 

 

5. The Board may deny readmission only if it finds that the student has not satisfied the 

conditions of the rehabilitation plan or that the student continues to pose a danger to 

campus safety or to other district students or employees.  (Education Code 48916) 

 

6. If the Board denies the readmission of a student, the Board shall determine either to 

continue the student's placement in the alternative educational program initially selected 

or to place the student in another program that serves expelled students, including 

placement in a county community school.  (Education Code 48916) 

 

7. The Board shall provide written notice to the expelled student and parent/guardian 

describing the reasons for denying readmittance into the regular program.  This notice 

shall indicate the Board's determination of the educational program which the Board has 

chosen.  The student shall enroll in that program unless the parent/guardian chooses to 

enroll the student in another school district.  (Education Code 48916) 

 

181



 

AR 5144.1(w) 

 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 

 

Maintenance of Records 

 

The district shall maintain a record of each suspension and expulsion, including its specific 

cause(s).  (Education Code 48900.8) 

 

Expulsion records of any student shall be maintained in the student's mandatory interim record, 

and sent to any school in which the student subsequently enrolls upon written request by that 

school.  (Education Code 48918(k)) 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall, within five working days, honor any other district's request 

for information about an expulsion from this district.  (Education Code 48915.1) 

 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 

 

Outcome Data 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the following data:  (Education Code 48900.8, 

48916.1) 

 

1. The number of students recommended for expulsion. 

 

2. The specific grounds for each recommended expulsion. 

 

3. Whether the student was subsequently expelled. 

 

4. Whether the expulsion order was suspended. 

 

5. The type of referral made after the expulsion. 

 

6. The disposition of the student after the end of the expulsion period. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved: Madera, California 

182



Students AR 5144.2(a) 
 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES) 

 

A student identified as an individual with a disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities 

Education Act (IDEA), 20 USC 1400-1482, is subject to the same grounds and procedures for 

suspension and expulsion which apply to students without disabilities, except as otherwise 

specified in this administrative regulation. 

 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

 

Suspension 

 

The Superintendent or designee may suspend a student with a disability for up to 10 consecutive 

school days for a single incident of misconduct, and for up to 20 school days in a school year, as 

long as the suspension(s) does not constitute a change in placement pursuant to 34 CFR 300.536.  

(Education Code 48903; 34 CFR 300.530) 

 

The principal or designee shall monitor the number of days, including portions of days, in which 

a student with a valid individualized education program (IEP) has been suspended during the 

school year. 

 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall determine, on a case-by-case basis, whether a pattern of 

removals of a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons 

constitutes a change of placement.  A change of placement shall be deemed to have occurred 

under either of the following circumstances:  (34 CFR 300.536) 

 

1. The removal is for more than 10 consecutive school days. 

 

2. The student has been subjected to a series of removals that constitute a pattern because of 

all of the following: 

 

a. The series of removals total more than 10 school days in a school year. 

 

b. The student's behavior is substantially similar to his/her behavior in previous 

incidents that resulted in the series of removals. 

 

c. Additional factors, such as the length of each removal, the total amount of time 

the student has been removed, and the proximity of the removals to one another, 

indicate a change of placement. 

 

If a student's removal is determined to be a change of placement as specified in items #1-2 

above, or the student is suspended for more than 10 school days in the same school year, the 

student's IEP team shall determine the appropriate educational services.  Such services shall be 

  

183



AR 5144.2(b) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES)  
(continued) 

 

designed to enable the student to continue to participate in the general education curriculum in 

another setting, to progress toward meeting the goals set out in his/her IEP, and to address the 

student's behavior violation so that it does not recur.  (20 USC 1412(a)(1)(A); 34 CFR 300.530) 

 

If the IEP of a student with a disability requires the district to provide the student with 

transportation, the district shall provide the student with an alternative form of transportation at 

no cost to him/her or to his/her parent/guardian when he/she is to be excluded from school bus 

transportation.  (Education Code 48915.5) 

 
(cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities) 

 

Interim Alternative Educational Placement Due to Dangerous Behavior 

 

The district may unilaterally place a student with a disability in an appropriate interim alternative 

educational setting for up to 45 school days, without regard to whether the behavior is a 

manifestation of the student's disability, when the student commits one of the following acts 

while at school, going to or from school, or at a school-related function:  (20 USC 

1415(k)(1)(G); 34 CFR 300.530) 

 

1. Carries or possesses a weapon, as defined in 18 USC 930. 

 

2. Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs. 

 

3. Sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance as identified in 21 USC 812(c), 

Schedules I-V. 

 

4. Inflicts serious bodily injury upon another person as defined in 18 USC 1365. 

 

The student's interim alternative educational setting shall be determined by his/her IEP team. (20 

USC 1415(k)(1)(G); 34 CFR 300.531). 

 

On the date the decision to take disciplinary action is made, the student's parent/guardian shall be 

notified of the decision and provided the procedural safeguards notice pursuant to 34 CFR 

300.504.  (20 USC 1415(k)(1)(H); 34 CFR 300.530). 

 

A student who has been removed from his/her current placement because of dangerous behavior 

shall receive services, although in another setting, to the extent necessary to allow him/her to 

participate in the general education curriculum and to progress toward meeting the  

goals set out in his/her IEP. As appropriate, the student shall also receive a functional behavioral 

assessment and behavioral intervention services and modifications that are designed to address 

the behavior violation so that it does not recur. (20 USC 1415(k)(1)(D); 34 CFR 300.530). 

  

184



AR 5144.2(c) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES)  
(continued) 

 

Manifestation Determination 

 

The following procedural safeguards shall apply when a student with a disability is suspended 

for more than 10 consecutive school days, when a series of removals of a student constitutes a 

pattern, or when a change of placement of a student is contemplated due to a violation of the 

district's code of conduct: 

 

1. Notice: On the date the decision to take disciplinary action is made, the student's 

parent/guardian shall be notified of the decision and provided the procedural safeguards 

notice pursuant to 34 CFR 300.504.  (20 USC 1415(k)(1)(H); 34 CFR 300.530) 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education) 

 

2. Manifestation Determination Review:  Immediately if possible, but in no case later 

than 10 school days after the date the decision to take disciplinary action is made, a 

manifestation determination review shall be made of the relationship between the 

student's disability and the behavior subject to the disciplinary action. (20 USC 

1415(k)(1)(E); 34 CFR 300.530) 

 

At the manifestation determination review, the district, the student's parent/guardian, and 

relevant members of the IEP team (as determined by the district and parent/guardian) 

shall review all relevant information in the student's file, including the student's IEP, any 

teacher observations, and any relevant information provided by the parents/guardians, to 

determine whether the conduct in question was either of the following:  (20 USC 

1415(k)(1)(E); 34 CFR 300.530) 

 

a. Caused by or had a direct and substantial relationship to the student's disability. 

 

b. A direct result of the district's failure to implement the student's IEP, in which 

case the district shall take immediate steps to remedy those deficiencies. 

 

If the manifestation review team determines that either of the above conditions applies, 

the student's conduct shall then be determined to be a manifestation of his/her disability.  

(20 USC 1415(k)(1)(E); 34 CFR 300.530) 

 

3. Determination that Behavior is a Manifestation of the Student's Disability:  When 

the student's conduct has been determined to be a manifestation of his/her disability, the 

IEP team shall conduct a functional behavioral assessment, unless one had been 

conducted before the occurrence of the behavior that resulted in the change of placement, 

and shall implement a behavioral intervention plan for the student.  If a behavioral 

intervention plan has already been developed, the IEP team shall review the behavioral 

185



 

AR 5144.2(d) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES) 
(continued) 

 

 intervention plan and modify it as necessary to address the behavior. (20 USC 

1415(k)(1)(F); 34 CFR 300.530) 

 

The student shall be returned to the placement from which he/she was removed, unless 

the parent/guardian and Superintendent or designee agree to a change of placement as 

part of the modification of the behavioral intervention plan. (20 USC 1415(k)(1)(F); 34 

CFR 300.530) 

 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 

 

4. Determination that Behavior is Not a Manifestation of the Student's Disability: 

When it has been determined that the student's conduct was not a manifestation of his/her 

disability, the student may be disciplined in accordance with the procedures for students 

without disabilities.  However, the student's IEP team shall determine services necessary 

to enable him/her to participate in the general education curriculum in another setting and 

to allow him/her to progress toward meeting the goals set out in his/her IEP.  (20 USC 

1415(k)(1)(D); 34 CFR 300.530) 

 

 As appropriate, the student also shall receive a functional behavioral assessment and 

behavioral intervention services and modifications that are designed to address the 

behavior violation so that it does not recur.  (20 USC 1415(k)(1)(D); 34 CFR 300.530) 
 

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 

 

Due Process Appeals 

 

If the parent/guardian disagrees with any district decision regarding placement under 34 CFR 

300.530 (suspension and removal for dangerous circumstances) or 34 CFR 300.531 (interim 

alternative placement), or the manifestation determination under 34 CFR 300.530(e), he/she may 

appeal the decision by requesting a hearing.  The district may request a hearing if the district 

believes that maintaining the student's current placement is substantially likely to result in injury 

to the student or others. In order to request a due process hearing, the requesting party shall file a 

complaint pursuant to 34 CFR 300.507 and 300.508(a) and (b).  (20 USC 1415(k)(3); 34 CFR 

300.532) 

  

Whenever a hearing is requested as specified above, the parent/guardian or the district shall have 

an opportunity for an expedited due process hearing consistent with requirements specified in 34 

CFR 300.507, 300.508 (a)-(c), and 300.510-300.514. 

 

 

186



AR 5144.2(e) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES) 
(continued) 

 

If the student's parent/guardian or the district has initiated a due process hearing under 34 CFR 

300.532 as detailed above, the student shall remain in the interim alternative educational setting 

pending the decision of the hearing officer or until the expiration of the 45-day time period, 

whichever occurs first, unless the parent/guardian and district agree otherwise.  (20 USC 

1415(k)(4); 34 CFR 300.533) 

 

Readmission 

 

Readmission procedures for students with disabilities shall be the same as those adopted for 

students without disabilities. Upon readmission of a student with disabilities, an IEP team 

meeting shall be convened to review and, as necessary, modify the student's IEP. 

 

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order 

 

The Governing Board's criteria for suspending the enforcement of an expulsion order shall be 

applied to students with disabilities in the same manner as they are applied to all other students.  

(Education Code 48917) 

 

Notification to Law Enforcement Authorities 

 

Law enforcement notification requirements involving students with disabilities shall be the same 

as those specified for all students in AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process. 

 

When giving any required notification concerning a student with disabilities to any law 

enforcement official, the principal or designee shall require the law enforcement official to 

certify in writing that he/she will not disclose the student's information or records to any other 

person without the prior written consent of the student's parent/guardian.  (Education Code 

49076) 

 
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 

 

Report to County Superintendent of Schools 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the County Superintendent of Schools when any 

special education student has been expelled or suspended for more than 10 school days.  The 

report shall include the student's name, last known address, and the reason for the action.  

(Education Code 48203) 

  

 

 

 

 

187



AR 5144.2(f) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES)  
(continued) 

 

Procedures for Students Not Yet Eligible for Special Education Services 

 

A student who has not been determined to be eligible for special education and related services 

and who has violated the district's code of student conduct may nevertheless assert any of the 

protections under IDEA, if the district had knowledge of the student's disability.  (20 USC 

1415(k)(5); 34 CFR 300.534) 

 

Knowledge means that, before the occurrence of the behavior that precipitated the disciplinary 

action, one of the following occurred:  (20 USC 1415(k)(5); 34 CFR 300.534) 

 

1. The parent/guardian, in writing, has expressed concern to district supervisory or 

administrative personnel, or to a teacher of the student, that the student is in need of 

special education or related services. 

 

2. The parent/guardian has requested an evaluation of the student for special education 

pursuant to 20 USC 1414(a)(1)(B) or 34 CFR 300.300-300.311. 

 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 

 

3. The teacher of the student or other district personnel has expressed specific concerns 

directly to the district's director of special education or other supervisory district 

personnel about a pattern of behavior demonstrated by the student. 

 

However, the district shall not be deemed to have knowledge of a student's disability if the 

student's parent/guardian has not allowed him/her to be evaluated for special education services 

or has refused services or, after evaluating the student pursuant to 34 CFR 300.300-300.311, the 

district determined that he/she was not an individual with a disability. 

 

When the district is deemed to not have knowledge of a student's disability, the student shall be 

disciplined in accordance with procedures established for students without disabilities who 

engage in comparable behavior.  (20 USC 1415(k)(5); 34 CFR 300.534) 

 

If a request is made for an evaluation of a student during the time period in which the student is 

subject to disciplinary measures pursuant to 34 CFR 300.530, the evaluation shall be conducted 

in an expedited manner.  Until the evaluation is completed, the student shall remain in the 

educational placement determined by school authorities.  (20 USC 1415(k)(5); 34 CFR 300.534) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

35146  Closed sessions re: suspensions 

35291  Rules of governing board 

48203  Reports of severance of attendance of disabled students 

48900-48925  Suspension and expulsion  

188



AR 5144.2(g) 

 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS (STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES)  
(continued) 

 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

49076  Access to student records 

56000  Special education; legislative findings and declarations 

56320  Educational needs; requirements 

56321  Development or revision of individualized education program 

56329  Independent educational assessment 

56340-56347  Individualized education program teams 

56505  State hearing 

PENAL CODE 

245  Assault with deadly weapon 

626.2  Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission 

626.9  Gun-Free School Zone Act 

626.10  Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 

930  Weapons 

1365  Serious bodily injury 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1412  State eligibility 

1415  Procedural safeguards 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 21 

812  Controlled substances 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

706  Definitions 

794  Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

104.35  Evaluation and placement 

104.36  Procedural safeguards 

300.1-300.818  Assistance to states for the education of students with disabilities, especially: 

300.530-300.537  Discipline procedures 

COURT DECISIONS 

Schaffer v. Weast, (2005) 546 U.S. 549 

Parents of Student W. v. Puyallup School District, (1994 9th Cir.) 31 F.3d 1489 

M.P. v. Governing Board of Grossmont Union High School District, (1994) 858 F.Supp. 1044 

Honig v. Doe, (1988) 484 U.S. 305 
 

Management Resources: 

FEDERAL REGISTER 

Rules and Regulations, August 14, 2006, Vol. 71, Number 156, pages 46539-46845 

WEB SITES 

California Department of Education, Special Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se 

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education Programs: 

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep 

 

 

 

 

Regulation MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved: December 13, 2011 Madera, California 

revised:  

189

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osers/osep


Students BP 5145.3(a) 

 

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT 

 

 

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal 

access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support programs, 

services, and activities.  The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, unlawful 

discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying of any student based on the student's 

actual race, color, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or 

parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, or 

gender expression; the perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a 

person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 

 

Prohibited discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying includes physical, verbal, 

nonverbal, or written conduct based on one of the categories listed above that is so severe and 

pervasive that it affects a student's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational 

program or activity; creates an intimidating, threatening, hostile, or offensive educational 

environment; has the effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with a student's academic 

performance; or otherwise adversely affects a student's educational opportunities. 

 

The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any student who files a complaint or 

report regarding an incident of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide age-appropriate training and information to 

students, parents/guardians, and employees regarding discrimination, harassment, intimidation, 

and bullying, including, but not limited to, the district's nondiscrimination policy, what 

constitutes prohibited behavior, how to report incidents, and to whom such reports should be 

made. 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

In providing instruction, guidance, supervision, or other services to district students, employees 

and volunteers shall carefully guard against segregating or stereotyping students. 

 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

190



 

 BP 5145.3(b) 

 

 

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

The principal or designee shall develop a plan to provide students with appropriate 

accommodations when necessary for their protection from threatened or potentially harassing or 

discriminatory behavior. 

 

Students who engage in discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying, or retaliation in 

violation of law, Board policy, or administrative regulation shall be subject to appropriate 

discipline, up to and including counseling, suspension, and/or expulsion.  Any employee who 

permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying, or retaliation 

shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 

 
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21- Professional Standards) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 

 

Grievance Procedures 

 

The following position is designated Coordinator for Nondiscrimination to handle complaints 

regarding discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, and to answer inquiries 

regarding the district's nondiscrimination policies: 

 

Human Resources 

1902 Howard Road 

Madera, CA  93637 

559-675-4500 

 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

Any student who feels that he/she has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, 

or bullying should immediately contact the Coordinator, the principal, or any other staff member.  

In addition, any student who observes any such incident should report the incident to the 

Coordinator or principal, whether or not the victim files a complaint. 

 

Any school employee who observes an incident of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or 

bullying shall report the incident to the Coordinator or principal, whether or not the victim files a 

complaint 

191



 

 BP 5145.3(c) 

 

 

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

In addition, the employee shall immediately intervene when safe to do so. (Education Code 

234.1) 

 

Upon receiving a complaint of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, the 

Coordinator shall immediately investigate the complaint in accordance with the site-level 

grievance procedures specified in AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

 

Within 30 days of receiving the district's report, the complainant may appeal to the Board if 

he/she disagrees with the resolution of the complaint. The Board shall make a decision at its next 

regular meeting and its decision shall be final. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the student handbook clearly describes the 

district's nondiscrimination policy, procedures for filing a complaint regarding discrimination, 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying, and the resources that are available to students who feel 

that they have been the victim of any such behavior.  The district's policy shall also be posted on 

the district web site or any other location that is easily accessible to students. 

 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 

(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 

 

When required pursuant to Education Code 48985, complaint forms shall be translated into the 

student's primary language. 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

192



 BP 5145.3(d) 

 

 

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 

48900.3  Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence 

48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 

48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 

48907  Student exercise of free expression 

48950  Freedom of speech 

48985  Translation of notices 

49020-49023  Athletic programs 

51500  Prohibited instruction or activity 

51501  Prohibited means of instruction 

60044  Prohibited instructional materials 

CIVIL CODE 

1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 

PENAL CODE 

422.55  Definition of hate crime 

422.6  Crimes, harassment 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4687  Uniform Complaint Procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 

2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 

104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 

106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 

106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 

COURT DECISIONS 

Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 

Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 

 

 

 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

193



BP 5145.3(e) 

 

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for All Students, Policy Brief, April 2010 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION LEGAL ADVISORIES 

California Student Safety and Violence Prevention - Laws and Regulations, April 2004 

FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS 

Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common Ground, 

2006 

NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 

Dealing with Legal Matters Surrounding Students' Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity, 2004 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 

Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org 

First Amendment Center:  http://www.firstamendment.org 

National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: Madera, California 

194



            E 5145.6(a) 

 

Students 

 

Parental Notifications 

 

Cautionary Notice: As added and amended by SBX3 4 (Ch. 12, Third Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 

2009), ABX4 2 (Ch. 2, Fourth Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 2009), and SB 70 (Ch. 7, Statutes of 

2011), Education Code 42605 grants districts flexibility in "Tier 3" categorical programs and provides 

that districts are deemed in compliance with the program and funding requirements for these programs 

for the 2008-09 through 2014-15 fiscal years.  

 

Cautionary Notice 2010-13:  AB 1610 (Ch. 724, Statutes of 2010) amended Education Code 37252.2 

and Government Code 17581.5 to relieve districts from the obligation, until July 1, 2013, to perform any 

activities that are deemed to be reimbursable state mandates under those section.  As a result, certain 

provisions of the following policy or administrative regulation that reflect those requirements may be 

suspended. 

 

*** Note:  The following exhibit lists those notices which the law requires be provided to 

parents/guardians.  Unless otherwise indicated, code numbers below refer to Education Code 

sections.*** 

 

I.  Annually 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 17612, 48980.3 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 3514.2 

Subject: Use of pesticide product, active ingredients, Internet address to access information 

 

When to notify: Annually by February 1 

Education or other legal code: 35256  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 0510 

Subject: School Accountability Report Card provided 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 35291, 48980 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144, AR 5144.1 

Subject: District and site discipline rules 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 46010.1  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5113 

Subject: Absence for confidential medical services 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980  

195



E 5145.6(b) 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 6111 

Subject: Schedule of minimum days 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 231.5; 5 CCR 4917 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5145.7 

Subject: Sexual harassment policy as related to students 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 32255-32255.6 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5145.8 

Subject: Right to refrain from harmful or destructive use of animals 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 35160.5, 46600-46611, 48204 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5111.1, AR 5116.1, AR 5117 

Subject: All statutory attendance options, available local attendance options, options for meeting 

residency 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 46014 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5113,m AR 5113 

Subject: Absence for religious purposes, if Board has adopted resolution allowing such absence 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 48205 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5113, AR 5113, AR 6154 

Subject: Excused absences; grade/credit cannot be reduced due to excused absence if work or test has 

been completed 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 48206.3, 48207, 48208 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6183 

Subject: Availability of home/hospital instruction for students with temporary disabilities 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 49403 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5141.31 

Subject: Consent to school immunization program 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 49423, 49480 

196



E 5145.6(c) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.21 

Subject: Administration of prescribed medication 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 49451; 20 USC 1232h 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.3 

Subject: Right to refuse consent to physical examination 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 49472 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5143 

Subject: Availability of insurance 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 49063  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125, AR 5125.3 

Subject: Challenge, review, and expunging of records 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 49063, 49069; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.7 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125 

Subject: Student records: inspect and review, access, types, location, persons responsible, location of 

log, access criteria, cost of copies, amendment requests, criteria to determine legitimate educational 

interest, course prospectus availability 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 49063, 49073; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.37 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125.1 

Subject: Release of directory information 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 49520, 48980; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.5 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 3553 

Subject: Free and reduced price meals 

 

When to notify: Annually 

Education or other legal code: 56301 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 6164.4 

Subject: Parental rights re: special education identification, referral, assessment, instructional planning, 

implementation and review, and procedures for initiating a referral for assessment 

 

197



E 5145.6(d) 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 58501, 48980 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6181 

Subject: Alternative schools 

 

When to notify: Annually 

Education or other legal code: Health & Safety Code 104855 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.6 

Subject: Availability of dental fluoride treatment; opportunity to accept or deny treatment 

 

 

When to notify: Annually 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 4622 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 1312.3 

Subject: Uniform complaint procedures, available appeals, civil law remedies, and identity of 

coordinator 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 1232h 

AR 5022, BP 6162.8 

Subject: Notice of privacy policy and dates of activities re: survey, health examination, or collection of 

personal information for marketing; process to opt out of such activities 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year, if district receives Title I funds 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 6311; 34 CFR 200.61 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 4112.24, AR 4222 

Subject: Right to request information re: professional qualifications of child's teacher and 

paraprofessional 

 

When to notify: Annually, if district schools have been identified for program improvement or 

corrective action 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 6316 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 0520.2 

Subject: Availability of supplemental educational services, identity of providers, description of services, 

qualifications, effectiveness of providers 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year 

Education or other legal code: 34 CFR 104.8, 106.9 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 0410, BP 6178 

Subject: Nondiscrimination  

 

 

198



E 5145.6(e) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: Annually to parent, teacher, and employee organizations or, in their absence, individuals  

Education or other legal code: 40 CFR 763.84, 763.93 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 3514 

Subject: Availability of asbestos management plan; any inspections, response actions or post-response 

actions planned or in progress 

 

II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career 

 

When to notify: Beginning in grade 7, at least once prior to course selection and career counseling  

Education or other legal code: 221.5, 48980 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6164.2 

Subject: Course selection and selection and career counseling  

 

When to notify: When child first enrolls in a public school, if the school offers a fingerprinting program 

Education or other legal code: 32390, 48980 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5142.1 

Subject: Fingerprinting program 

 

When to notify: Upon registration in K-6, if students have not previously been transported 

Education or other legal code:  39831.5 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 3543 

Subject: School bus safety rules and information, list of stops, rules of conduct, red light crossing 

instructions, bus danger zones, walking to and from stops 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year for high school students, if high school is open campus 

Education or other legal code: 44808.5, 48980 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5112.5 

Subject: students have not previously Open campus 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year in grades 9-12, if district allows career technical 

education (CTE) course to satisfy graduation requirement 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 51225.3 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6146.1 

Subject: How each high school graduation requirement does or does not satisfy college entrance a-g 

course criteria; list of district CTE courses that satisfy a-g course criteria 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year, for high school students 

Education or other legal code: 48980, 52244 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6141.5 

Subject: Availability of state funds to cover costs of advanced placement exam fees 

 

199



E 5145.6(f) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year in grades 9-12 and when high school student transfers 

into the district  

Education or other legal code: 48980, 60850 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6162.52 

Subject: Requirement to pass the high school exit exam including: date of exam, requirements for 

passing, consequences of not passing, and that passing is a condition of graduation 

 

When to notify: When students entering grade 7 

Education or other legal code: 49452.7  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.3 

Subject: Specified information on type 2 diabetes 

 

When to notify: When in kindergarten, or first grade if not previously enrolled in public school 

Education or other legal code: 49452.8  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.32  

Subject: Requirement for oral health assessment, explanation of law, importance of oral health, agency 

contact, privacy rights 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year for students in grades 9-12 

Education or other legal code: 51229, 48980 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6143 

Subject: College admission requirements, UC and CSU web sites that list certified courses, description 

of CTE, CDE Internet address, how students may meet with counselors 

 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each school year for students in grades 7-12 

Education or other legal code: 51938, 48980  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6142.1 

Subject: Explanation of sex and HIV/AIDS instruction; right to view A/V materials, who's teaching, 

request specific Education Code sections, right to excuse 

 

When to notify: Within 20 working days of receiving results of standardized achievement tests 

Education or other legal code: 60641;  5 CCR 863 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6162.51 

Subject: Results of tests; test purpose, individual score and intended use 

 

When to notify: When child is enrolled in kindergarten  

Education or other legal code: Health & Safety Code 124100 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.32 

Subject: Health screening examination 

200



E 5145.6(g) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: To students in grades 11-12, early enough to enable registration for fall test 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 11523 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6146.2 

Subject: Notice of proficiency examination provided under Education Code 48412 

 

When to notify: To secondary students, if district receives Title I funds 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 7908 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125.1 

Subject: Notice that parents may request district to not release name, address, phone number of child to 

military recruiters without prior written consent 

 

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  

 

When to notify: Upon receipt of a complaint alleging discrimination 

Education or other legal code: 262.3 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 1312.3 

Subject: Civil law remedies available to complainants 

 

When to notify: When student has been placed in structured English immersion program 

Education or other legal code: 310, 5 CCR 11309 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6174 

Subject: Placement of child in program and opportunity to apply for parental exception waiver 

 

When to notify: When student is identified as English learner and district receives Title III funds, not 

440; later than 30 days after beginning of school year 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 7012 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6174 

Subject: Student's identification for program for English learners; any failure of district to meet annual 

measurable achievement objectives 

 

When to notify: Before high school student attends specialized secondary program on a university 

campus 

Education or other legal code: 17288  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: None 

Subject: University campus buildings may not meet Education Code requirements for structural safety 

 

When to notify: At least 72 hours before use of pesticide product use of pesticide product not included in 

annual list 

Education or other legal code: 17612 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 3514.2 

Subject: Intended use of pesticide product 

201



E 5145.6(h) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: To members of athletic teams 

Education or other legal code:  32221.5 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5143 

Subject: Offer of insurance; no-cost and low-cost program options 

 

If school has lost its WASC accreditation status 

Education or other legal code: 35178.4  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 6190 

Subject: Loss of status, potential consequences 

 

When to notify: At least six months before implementing a schoolwide uniform policy 

Education or other legal code: 35183  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5132 

Subject: Dress code policy requiring schoolwide uniform 

 

When to notify: Beginning of each term, when student has not passed the exit exam by the end of grade 

12 

Education or other legal code: 37254  

AR 6179 

Subject: Availability of intensive instruction and services for two consecutive academic years and right 

to file complaint 

 

When to notify: Before implementing a year-round schedule 

Education or other legal code: 37616  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 6117 

Subject: Year-round schedule 

 

When to notify: When interdistrict transfer is requested and not approved or denied within 30 days 

Education or other legal code: 46601  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5117 

Subject: Appeal process 

 

When to notify: Before early entry to  kindergarten, if offered  

Education or other legal code: 48000  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5111 

Subject: Effects, advantages and disadvantages of early entry 

 

When to notify: When student identified as being at risk of retention 

Education or other legal code: 48070.5  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5123 

Subject: Student at risk of retention 

202



E 5145.6(i) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: When student excluded due to quarantine, contagious or infectious disease, danger to 

safety or health 

Education or other legal code: 48213  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5112.2, BP 5141.33 

Subject: Student has been excluded from school 

 

When to notify: Before student is excluded for lack of immunization 

Education or other legal code: 48216  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.31 

Subject: Two weeks to submit evidence of immunization or exemption; referral to medical care 

 

When to notify: When a student is classified a truant 

Education or other legal code: 48260.5, 48262 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5113.1 

Subject: Truancy, parental obligation, availability of alternative programs, student consequences, need 

for conference 

 

When to notify: When a truant is referred to a SARB or probation department 

Education or other legal code: 48263  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5113.1 

Subject: Name and address of SARB or probation department and reason for referral 

 

When to notify: When a school is identified on the state's Open Enrollment List 

Education or other legal code: 48354;  5 CCR 4702 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5118 

Subject: Student's option to transfer to another school 

 

When to notify: Within 60 days of receiving application for transfer out of open enrollment school 

Education or other legal code: 48357; 5 CCR 4702 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5118 

Subject: Whether student's transfer application is accepted or rejected; reasons for rejection 

 

When to notify: Prior to involuntary transfer prior to continuation school 

Education or other legal code: 48432.5 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6184 

Subject: Right to require meeting to involuntary transfer to continuation school 

 

When to notify: When student is removed from class and teacher requires parental attendance at school 

Education or other legal code: 48900.1  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5144.1, AR 5144.1 

Subject: Parental attendance required; timeline for attendance 

203



E 5145.6(j) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: Prior to withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 

Education or other legal code: 48904  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125.2 

Subject: Damaged school property 

 

 

When to notify: When withholding grades, diplomas or transcripts from transferring student 

Education or other legal code: 48904.3  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125.2 

Subject: Next school will continue withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 

 

When to notify: When student is released to peace officer 

Education or other legal code: 48906  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5145.11 

Subject: Release of student to peace officer 

 

When to notify: At time of suspension  

Education or other legal code: 48911  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5144.1, AR 5144.1 

Subject: Notice of suspension 

 

When to notify: When original period of suspension is extended 

Education or other legal code: 48911  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144.1 

Subject: Extension of suspension 

 

When to notify: Before holding a closed session re: suspension 

Education or other legal code: 48912  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144.1 

Subject: Intent to hold a closed session re: suspension 

 

When to notify: When student expelled from another district for certain acts seeks admission 

Education or other legal code: 48915.1, 48918 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 5119 

Subject: Hearing re: possible danger presented by expelled student 

 

When to notify: When readmission is  denies 

Education or other legal code: 48916  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144.1 

Subject: Reasons for denial; determination of assigned program 

 

204



E 5145.6(k) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: When expulsion occurs 

Education or other legal code: 48916  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144.1 

Subject: Description of readmission procedures 

 

When to notify: 10 calendar days before expulsion hearing 

Education or other legal code: 48918  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144.1 

Subject: Notice of expulsion hearing 

 

When to notify: When expulsion or suspension of expulsion occurs 

Education or other legal code: 48918  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144.1 

Subject: Decision to expel; right to appeal to county board; obligation to inform new district of status 

 

When to notify: One month before the scheduled minimum day  

Education or other legal code: 48980  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 6111 

Subject: When minimum days scheduled after beginning of the school year 

 

When to notify: When parents request guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site 

Education or other legal code: 48987  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.4 

Subject: Guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse at a school site with local child protective 

agencies 

 

When student in danger of failing a course 

Education or other legal code: 49067  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5121 

Subject: Student in danger of failing a course 

 

When student transfers from another district or private school 

Education or other legal code: 49068  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125 

Subject: Right to receive copy of student's record and to challenge its content 

 

When to notify: Within 24 hours of release of information to a judge or probation officer 

Education or other legal code: 49076  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125 

Subject: Release of student record to a judge or probation officer for conducting truancy mediation 

program or for presenting  evidence at a truancy petition 

205



E 5145.6(l) 

 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: Before release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena 

Education or other legal code: 49077  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125 

Subject: Release of information pursuant to court order or subpoena 

 

When to notify: When screening results in suspicion that student has scoliosis 

Education or other legal code: 49452.5  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.3 

Subject: Scoliosis screening 

 

When to notify: When test results in discovery of visual or hearing defects 

Education or other legal code: 49456  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5141.3 

Subject: Vision or hearing test 

 

When to notify: Annually to parents/guardians of student athletes before their first practice or 

competition 

Education or other legal code: 49475  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6145.2 

Subject: Information on concussions and head injuries 

 

When to notify: Before any test questioning personal beliefs 

Education or other legal code: 51513  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5022 

Subject: Permission for test, survey questioning personal beliefs 

 

When to notify: Within 14 days of instruction if arrangement made for guest speaker after beginning of 

school year 

Education or other legal code: 51938 AR  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: 6142.1 

Subject: Instruction in HIV/AIDS or sexual health education by guest speaker or outside consultant 

 

When to notify: Prior to administering survey regarding health risks and behaviors to students in 7-12 

Education or other legal code: 51938  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5022 

Subject: Notice that the survey will be administered 

 

 

When to notify: Upon assessment and reassessment of English proficiency and enrollment in program of 

education for English language learners 

Education or other legal code: 52164.1, 52164.3, 52173; 5 CCR 11303 

206



E 5145.6(m) 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6174 

Subject: Assessment results; program of education for English language learners 

 

When to notify: When migrant education program is established 

Education or other legal code: 54444.2  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: BP 6175, AR 6175 

Subject: Parent advisory council membership composition 

 

When to notify: When child participates in licensed child care and development program 

Education or other legal code: Health & Safety Code 1596.857 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5148 

Subject: Parent right to enter facility 

 

When to notify: When sharing student immunization information with an immunization system 

Education or other legal code: Health & Safety Code 120440 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125 

Subject: Types of information to be shared, name and address of agency, acceptable use of the 

information, right to examine, right to refuse to share 

 

When to notify: When hearing is requested by person asked to leave school premises 

Education or other legal code: Penal Code 627.5 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 3515.2 

Subject: Notice of hearing 

 

When to notify: Prior to student participation in gifted and talented program 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 3831 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6172 

Subject: Gifted and talented student program 

 

When to notify: When providing written decision in response to a complaint re: discrimination; special 

education, or noncompliance with law regulating educational programs 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 4631 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 1312.3 

Subject: Appeal rights and procedures 

 

When to notify: Within 30 calendar days of receipt of CELDT results 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 11511.5 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6174 

Subject: CELDT test results 

 

When to notify: When child participates in licensed child care and development program 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 18066 

207



E 5145.6(n) 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5148 

Subject: Policies re: unexcused absences 

 

When to notify: When district substantively changes policy on student privacy rights 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 1232h 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5022 

Subject: Notice of any substantive change in policy or regulation 

 

When to notify: For districts receiving Title I funds, when child has been taught for four or more 

consecutive weeks by a teacher who is not "highly qualified" 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 6311 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 4112.24 

Subject:  Timely notice to parent of child's assignment 

 

When to notify: When school identified for program improvement or corrective action, within 30 days 

of failure to make annual yearly progress 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 6312 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 0520.2 

Subject:  Notice of failure to parents of English language learners 

 

When to notify: For districts receiving Title I funds, not later than 30 days after beginning of school 

year,  to parents of English learners  

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 6312 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6174 

Subject:  Reasons for placement, level of proficiency, instructional methods, how program meets child's 

strengths and teaches English, exit requirements, right to choose another  program 

 

When to notify: When school identified for program improvement or corrective action 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 6316 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 0520.2, AR 5116.1 

Subject:  Explanation of identification, reasons, how problem will be addressed, how parents can 

become involved, transfer option, availability of supplemental services 

 

When to notify: When district identified for program improvement 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 6316 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 0520.3 

Subject:  Explanation status, reasons for identification, how parents can participate in upgrading district 

 

When to notify: For schools receiving Title I funds, upon development of parent involvement policy 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 6318 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6020 

Subject:  Notice of policy 

208



E 5145.6(o) 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

When to notify: When household is selected for verification of eligibility for free or reduced-price meals 

Education or other legal code: 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 246.6a 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 3553 

Subject:  Notice of need to submit verification information; any subsequent change in benefits; right to 

appeal 

 

When to notify: When student transfers out of state and records are disclosed without consent pursuant 

to 34 CFR 99.30 

Education or other legal code: 34 CFR 99.34 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5125 

Subject:  Right to review records 

 

IV.  Special Education Notices 

 

When to notify: Prior to conducting initial evaluation 

Education or other legal code: 56301, 56321, 56321.5, 56321.6, 56329; 34 CFR 300.502 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6164.4 

Subject:  Proposed evaluation plan, related parental rights, prior written notice 

 

When to notify: 24 hours before IEP when district intending to record 

Education or other legal code: 56341.1, 34 CFR 300.322 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159 

Subject:  Intention to audio-record IEP meeting 

 

When to notify: Early enough to ensure opportunity for parent to attend IEP meeting 

Education or other legal code: 56341.5; 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159 

Subject:  Time, purpose, location, who in attendance, participation of others with special knowledge, 

transition statements if appropriate 

 

When to notify: When parent orally requests review of IEP 

Education or other legal code: 56343.5  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159 

Subject:  Need for written request 

 

When to notify: For student receiving exit exam waiver, prior to receipt of diploma 

Education or other legal code: 60852.4  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6162.52 

Subject:  Right to FAPE 

 

When to notify: When student is selected to be assessed with the California Modified Assessment 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 850 

209



E 5145.6(p) 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6162.51 

Subject:  Notice that the student's achievement will be measured based on modified achievement 

standard 

 

When to notify: Before functional behavioral assessment begins 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 3052  

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159.4 

Subject:  Notification and consent 

 

When to notify: Before modification of behavioral intervention plan 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 3052 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159.4 

Subject:  Need for modification, right to question modification 

 

When to notify: Within one school day of emergency intervention or serious property damage 

Education or other legal code: 5 CCR 3052 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159.4 

Subject:  Emergency intervention 

 

When to notify: Whenever there is a proposal or refusal to initiate or change the identification, 

evaluation, placement, or FAPE, including when parent/guardian revokes consent for services 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 1415(c); 34 CFR 300.300, 300.503 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159, AR 6159.1 

Subject:  Prior written notice 

 

When to notify: Initial referral for evaluation 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 1415(d); 34 CFR 300.503 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159.1 

Subject:  Prior written notice and procedural safeguards notice 

 

When to notify: Registration of complaint 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 1415(d); 34 CFR 300.504 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159.1 

Subject:  Procedural safeguards notice 

 

When to notify: Disciplinary action taken for dangerous behavior 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 1415(k); 34 CFR 300.530 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144.2 

Subject:  Decision and procedural safeguards notice 

 

When to notify: Suspension or change of placement for more than 10 days 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 1415(k); 34 CFR 300.530 

210



E 5145.6(q) 

 

Parental Notifications (continued) 

 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 5144.2 

Subject:  Decision and procedural safeguards notice 

 

When to notify: Upon requesting a due process hearing 

Education or other legal code: 20 USC 1415(k); 34 CFR 300.508 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6159.1 

Subject:  Child's name, address, school, description of problem, proposed resolution 

 

When to notify: Eligibility for services under Section 504 

Education or other legal code: 34 CFR 104.32, 104.36 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR 6164.6 

Subject:  Procedural safeguards, district responsibilities 

 

V.  Classroom Notices 

 

When to notify: In each classroom in each school 

Education or other legal code: 35186 

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation: AR/E 1312.4 

Subject:  Complaint rights re: sufficiency of instructional materials, teacher vacancy and misassignment, 

maintenance of facilities, and, for classrooms with grades 10-12, right of students who did not pass exit 

exam to receive intensive instruction after grade 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit        MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

version:  December 13, 2011           Madera, California 

revised:  

211



Students BP 5145.7(a) 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
 

The Governing Board is committed to maintaining a safe school environment that is free from 

harassment and discrimination.  The Board prohibits sexual harassment of students at school or 

at school-sponsored or school-related activities.  The Board also prohibits retaliatory behavior or 

action against any person who files a complaint, testifies, or otherwise participates in district 

complaint processes. 
 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 

 

Instruction/Information 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district students receive age-appropriate 

instruction and information on sexual harassment. Such instruction and information shall 

include: 

 

1. What acts and behavior constitute sexual harassment, including the fact that sexual 

harassment could occur between people of the same sex and could involve sexual 

violence. 

 

2. A clear message that students do not have to endure sexual harassment. 

 

3. Encouragement to report observed instances of sexual harassment, even where the victim 

of the harassment has not complained. 

 

4. Information about the district's procedure for investigating complaints and the person(s) 

to whom a report of sexual harassment should be made. 

 

5. Information about the rights of students and parents/guardians to file a criminal 

complaint, as applicable. 

 

Complaint Process 

 

Any student who feels that he/she is being or has been sexually harassed on school grounds or at 

a school-sponsored or school-related activity (e.g., by a visiting athlete or coach) shall 

immediately contact his/her teacher or any other employee.  An employee who receives such a 

complaint shall report it in accordance with administrative regulation. 

 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

212



 

 BP 5145.7(b) 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT (continued) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any complaints regarding sexual harassment are 

immediately investigated in accordance with administrative regulation. When the Superintendent 

or designee has determined that harassment has occurred, he/she shall take prompt, appropriate 

action to end the harassment and to address its effects on the victim. 

 

Disciplinary Actions 

 

Any student who engages in sexual harassment or sexual violence at school or at a school-

sponsored or school-related activity is in violation of this policy and shall be subject to 

disciplinary action.  For students in grades 4-12, disciplinary action may include suspension 

and/or expulsion, provided that, in imposing such discipline, the entire circumstances of the 

incident(s) shall be taken into account. 

 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

 

Confidentiality and Record-Keeping 

 

All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential except as 

necessary to carry out the investigation or take other subsequent necessary action.  (5 CCR 4964) 

 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of sexual harassment 

to enable the district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive harassing behavior in the 

schools. 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

213



 BP 5145.7(c) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 

48900  Grounds for suspension or expulsion 

48900.2  Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment 

48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 

48980  Notice at beginning of term 

CIVIL CODE 

51.9  Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional relationships 

1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12950.1  Sexual harassment training 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1681-1688  Title IX, discrimination 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1983  Civil action for deprivation of rights 

2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 

2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

106.1-106.71 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs 

COURT DECISIONS 

Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 

Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130 

Reese v. Jefferson School District, (2001, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736 

Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, (1999) 526 U.S. 629 

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 524 U.S. 274 

Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey, (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473 

Doe v. Petaluma City School District, (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for All Students, Policy Brief, April 2010 

OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Sexual Violence, April 4, 2011 

Sexual Harassment:  It's Not Academic, September 2008 

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance, January 2001 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 

 

 

Policy MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: December 13, 2011 Madera, California 

revised:  

214



Students          AR 5145.7(a) 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
 

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, 

unwanted requests for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a 

sexual nature made against another person of the same or opposite sex in the educational setting, 

when made on the basis of sex and under any of the following conditions:  (Education Code 

212.5; 5 CCR 4916) 

 

1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of a 

student's academic status or progress. 
 

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by a student is used as the basis for academic 

decisions affecting the student. 

 

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the student's 

academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational 

environment. 

 

4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the student is used as the basis for any 

decision affecting the student regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or 

activities available at or through any district program or activity. 
 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 

 

Examples of types of conduct which are prohibited in the district and which may constitute 

sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
 

1. Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations, or propositions. 
 

2. Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or 

sexually degrading descriptions. 

 

3. Graphic verbal comments about an individual's body or overly personal conversation. 

 

4. Sexual jokes, derogatory posters, notes, stories, cartoons, drawings, pictures, obscene 

 gestures, or computer-generated images of a sexual nature. 

 

5. Spreading sexual rumors. 

 

6. Teasing or sexual remarks about students enrolled in a predominantly single-sex class. 

 

7. Massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or brushing the body. 

 

215



AR 5145.7(b) 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

8. Touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way. 

  

9. Impeding or blocking movements or any physical interference with school activities 

when directed at an individual on the basis of sex. 

 

10. Displaying sexually suggestive objects. 

 

11. Sexual assault, sexual battery, or sexual coercion. 

 

School-Level Complaint Process/Grievance Procedure 

 

Complaints of sexual harassment, or any behavior prohibited by the district's 

Nondiscrimination/Harassment policy - BP 5145.3, shall be handled in accordance with the 

following procedure: 

 

1. Notice and Receipt of Complaint:  Any student who believes he/she has been subjected 

to sexual harassment or who has witnessed sexual harassment may file a complaint with 

any school employee. Within 24 hours of receiving a complaint, the school employee 

shall report it to the district Coordinator for Nondiscrimination/Principal. In addition, any 

school employee who observes any incident of sexual harassment involving a student 

shall, within 24 hours, report this observation to the Coordinator/Principal, whether or not 

the victim files a complaint. 

 

In any case of sexual harassment involving the Coordinator/Principal to whom the 

complaint would ordinarily be made, the employee who receives the student's report or 

who observes the incident shall instead report to the Superintendent or designee. 

 

2. Initiation of Investigation:  The Coordinator/Principal shall initiate an impartial 

investigation of an allegation of sexual harassment within five school days of receiving 

notice of the harassing behavior, regardless of whether a formal complaint has been filed.  

The district shall be considered to have "notice" of the need for an investigation upon 

receipt of information from a student who believes he/she has been subjected to 

harassment, the student's parent/guardian, an employee who received a complaint from a 

student, or any employee or student who witnessed the behavior. 

 

 If the Coordinator/Principal receives an anonymous complaint or media report about 

alleged sexual harassment, he/she shall determine whether it is reasonable to pursue an 

investigation considering the specificity and reliability of the information, the seriousness 

of the alleged incident, and whether any individuals can be identified who were subjected 

to the alleged harassment. 

 

  

 

216



AR 5145.7(c) 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

3. Initial Interview with Student:  When a student or parent/guardian has complained or 

provided information about sexual harassment, the Coordinator/Principal shall describe 

the district's grievance procedure and discuss what actions are being sought by the 

student in response to the complaint.  The student who is complaining shall have an 

opportunity to describe the incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant 

information, provide other evidence of the harassment, and put his/her complaint in 

writing. If the student requests confidentiality, he/she shall be informed that such a 

request may limit the district's ability to investigate. 

 

4. Investigation Process: The Coordinator/Principal shall keep the complaint and 

allegation confidential, except as necessary to carry out the investigation or take other 

subsequent necessary action.  (5 CCR 4964) 

 

 The Coordinator/Principal shall interview individuals who are relevant to the 

investigation, including, but not limited to, the student who is complaining, the person 

accused of harassment, anyone who witnessed the reported harassment, and anyone 

mentioned as having relevant information.  The Coordinator/Principal may take other 

steps such as reviewing any records, notes, or statements related to the harassment or 

visiting the location where the harassment is alleged to have taken place. 

 

When necessary to carry out his/her investigation or to protect student safety, the 

Coordinator/Principal also may discuss the complaint with the Superintendent or 

designee, the parent/guardian of the student who complained, the parent/guardian of the 

alleged harasser if the alleged harasser is a student, a teacher or staff member whose 

knowledge of the students involved may help in determining who is telling the truth, law 

enforcement and/or child protective services, and district legal counsel or the district's 

risk manager. 

 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

 

5. Interim Measures:  The Coordinator/Principal shall determine whether interim measures 

are necessary during and pending the results of the investigation, such as placing students 

in separate classes or transferring a student to a class taught by a different teacher. 

 

6. Optional Mediation:  In cases of student-on-student harassment, when the student who 

complained and the alleged harasser so agree, the Coordinator/Principal may arrange for 

them to resolve the complaint informally with the help of a counselor, teacher, 

administrator, or trained mediator.  The student who complained shall never be asked to 

work out the problem directly with the accused person unless such help is provided and 

both parties agree, and he/she shall be advised of the right to end the informal process at 

any time. 
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution) 

  

217



AR 5145.7(d) 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

7. Factors in Reaching a Determination:  In reaching a decision about the complaint, the 

Coordinator/Principal may take into account: 

 

a. Statements made by the persons identified above. 

 

b. The details and consistency of each person's account. 

 

c. Evidence of how the complaining student reacted to the incident. 

 

d. Evidence of any past instances of harassment by the alleged harasser. 

 

e. Evidence of any past harassment complaints that were found to be untrue. 

 

To judge the severity of the harassment, the Coordinator/Principal may take into 

consideration: 

 

a. How the misconduct affected one or more students' education. 

 

b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct. 

 

c. The identity, age, and sex of the harasser and the student who complained, and the 

relationship between them. 

 

d. The number of persons engaged in the harassing conduct and at whom the 

harassment was directed. 

 

e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they 

occurred. 

 

f. Other incidents at the school involving different students. 

 

8. Written Report on Findings and Follow-Up:  No more than 30 days after receiving the 

complaint, the Coordinator/Principal shall conclude the investigation and prepare a 

written a report of his/her findings.  This timeline may be extended for good cause.  If an 

extension is needed, the Coordinator/Principal shall notify the student who complained 

and explain the reasons for the extension. 

 

 The report shall include the decision and the reasons for the decision and shall summarize 

the steps taken during the investigation. If it is determined that harassment occurred, the 

report shall also include any corrective actions that have or will be taken  

 

  

218



AR 5145.7(e) 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

to address the harassment and prevent any retaliation or further harassment.  This report 

shall be presented to the student who complained, the person accused, the 

parents/guardians of the student who complained and the student who was accused, and 

the Superintendent or designee. 

 

 In addition, the Coordinator/Principal shall ensure that the harassed student and his/her 

parent/guardian are informed of the procedures for reporting any subsequent problems.  

The Coordinator/Principal shall make follow-up inquiries to see if there have been any 

new incidents or retaliation and shall keep a record of this information. 

 

Enforcement of District Policy 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce the district's sexual 

harassment policy.  As needed, these actions may include any of the following: 

 

1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti. 

 
(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 

 

2. Providing training to students, staff, and parents/guardians about how to recognize 

harassment and how to respond. 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

3. Disseminating and/or summarizing the district's policy and regulation regarding sexual 

harassment. 

 

4. Consistent with the laws regarding the confidentiality of student and personnel records, 

communicating the school's response to parents/guardians and the community. 

 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action. 

 

 In addition, disciplinary measures may be taken against any person who is found to have 

made a complaint of sexual harassment which he/she knew was not true. 

 
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

219



 AR 5145.7(f) 
 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

Notifications 

 

A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and regulation shall: 

 

1. Be included in the notifications that are sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of each 

school year.  (Education Code 48980; 5 CCR 4917) 
 

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

2. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building or other area 

where notices of district rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct are 

posted, including school web sites. (Education Code 231.5) 

 

3. Be provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new students at the 

beginning of each quarter, semester, or summer session. (Education Code 231.5) 

 

4. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's 

comprehensive rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct. (Education Code 

231.5) 
 

5. Be included in the student handbook. 

 

6. Be provided to employees and employee organizations. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved: December 13, 2011 Madera, California 

revised:  

220



 

Instruction           BP 6145(a) 

 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities 

 

 

The Madera Unified School District Governing Board recognizes that extracurricular and cocurricular 

activities enrich the educational and social development of students and enhance students’ feelings of 

connectedness with the schools. The District shall encourage and support student participation in 

extracurricular and cocurricular activities without compromising the integrity and purpose of the 

educational program. 

 

No extracurricular or cocurricular program or activity shall be provided or conducted separately on the 

basis of any actual or perceived characteristic listed as a prohibited category of discrimination in state or 

federal law, nor shall any student's participation in an extracurricular or cocurricular activity be required 

or refused on those bases.  Prerequisites for student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular 

activities shall be limited to those that have been demonstrated to be essential to the success of the 

activity.  (5 CCR 4925) 

 

It is important that every student, coach and advisor be an exemplary role model for the school, 

community and each other, and that each student, coach and advisor reflect the strong value the 

Governing Board places upon character. The coach, advisor and student must recognize that the purpose 

of activities is to promote the physical, mental, moral, and emotional well being of the individual 

student. For all extracurricular and cocurricular activities at grades 7-12, including sports, the 

coach/advisor, student and parent shall sign and follow the District's Extracurricular and Cocurricular 

Code of Conduct, Exhibit 6145. 

 

Students shall not be charged any fees in order to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular 

activities. It is the Governing Board's policy to offer opportunities for participation in extracurricular and 

cocurricular activities to students on as equal a basis as is practicable and in accordance with applicable 

federal and state laws. No District student's participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities 

shall be required or refused based on the student's gender, sexual orientation, ethnic group identification, 

race, ancestry, national origin, religion, color, or mental or physical disability. (5 CCR 4925) 

 

The Superintendent shall establish Administrative Regulations that set forth Codes of Conduct for 

coaches and advisors, students, parents, spectators and officials. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

 

Any complaint regarding the District's athletic program shall be filed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 

- Uniform Complaint Procedures. 

 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

             

 

221



 

BP6145(b) 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities (continued) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

35145  Public meetings 

35160.5  District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation 

35179  Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia 

35181  Students' responsibilities 

48850  Participation of foster youth in extracurricular activities and interscholastic sports 

48930-48938  Student organizations 

49024  Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 

49700-49704  Education of children of military families 

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

Article 9, Section 5 Common school system 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

350  Fees not permitted 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial assistance 

5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of pupils 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 

COURT DECISIONS 

Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Student Fees Litigation Update, ELA Advisory, May 20, 2011 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Pupil Fees, Deposits, or Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 11-01, November 9, 2011 

CALIFORNIA TASK FORCE REPORT TO THE LEGISLATURE 

Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children:  Preliminary Final Report, March 2009 

COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING CODED CORRESPONDENCE 

WEB SITES. 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Association of Directors of Activities:  http://www.cadal.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy        MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted:  December 13, 2011           Madera, California 

revised:  

222



Instruction           AR 6145(a) 

 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities 
 

Definitions 

 

For purposes of applying eligibility criteria for student participation, extracurricular and cocurricular 

activities shall be defined as follows:  (Education Code 35160.5) 

 

1. Extracurricular activities are not part of the regular school curriculum, are not graded, do not 

offer credit, do not take place during classroom time, and have all of the following 

characteristics: 

 

a. The program is supervised or financed by the school district. 

 

b. Students participating in the program represent the school district. 

 

c. Students exercise some degree of freedom in the selection, planning, or control of the 

program. 

 

d. The program includes both preparation for performance and performance before an 

audience or spectators. 

 

2. Cocurricular activities are programs that may be associated with the curriculum in a regular 

classroom. 

 

 An activity is not an extracurricular or cocurricular activity if either of the following conditions 

 applies:  (Education Code 35160.5) 

 

1. It is a teacher-graded or required program or activity for a course which satisfies the 

entrance requirements for admission to the California State University or the University 

of California. 

 
 (cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

 

2. It is a program that has as its primary goal the improvement of academic or educational 

achievement of students. 

 

Supervision 

 

All extracurricular activities conducted under the name or auspices of a district school or any class or 

organization of the school, regardless of where the activities are held, shall be under the direct 

supervision of certificated employees.  (5 CCR 5531) 

 

Any noncertificated person working with students in a district-sponsored extracurricular student activity 

program shall possess an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the Commission on Teacher  

 

223



AR6145(b) 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities (continued) 

 

Credentialing or shall have cleared a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal 

background check prior to beginning his/her duties, in accordance with BP 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary 

Athletic Team Coaches.  (Education Code 49024) 

 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 

(cf. 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 

(cf. 4212.5 - Criminal Record Check) 

 

Extra-curricular and co-curricular activities in the District shall be conducted in accordance with the 

general program parameters. 

 

General Program Parameters 

 

1.  Participation and Involvement. 

 

Involve the participation of pertinent District staff, student and parents in the development and 

planning of a program or activity. School employees (if willing), facilities, supplies and 

equipment may be made available to support a program or activity. 

 

2.  Responsiveness 

 

 Be responsive to the articulated needs of students. 

 

3.  Guidance and Supervision 

 

The principal or his or her designee shall be responsible for the organization of all student 

activities. The principal or vice principal shall provide adequate supervision, administer student 

finances, and approve all student activities with the assistance of delegated members of the 

faculty. 

 

4.  Guard Against Exploitation 

 

 Guard against the exploitation of students. 

 

5.  Continuing Evaluation 

 

 Provide for the continuing evaluation of the program or activity. 

 

6.  Open and Informed 

 

 Assure that all programs and activities are open to all students and that all students are fully 

 informed of the opportunities open to them, except where eligibility requirements are necessary 

 or desirable. 

 

224



AR6145(c) 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities (continued) 

 

7.  Principles and Character 

 

 Reflect District principles and character, the role of students and coaches/advisor as role models, 

 and guard against undue influence and the recruiting of participation from outside and within the 

 District. 

 

8.  Compliance with School Rules 

 

Ensure that all extracurricular and cocurricular program and activity advisors, coaches, and 

supervisors monitor compliance with and enforce school rules, including Board Policies and 

Administrative Regulations in a uniform manner at any and all program or activity events, 

meetings and functions. A violation of school rules by one or more students shall not be a basis 

for restricting the rights and opportunities of other students who have not violated the rule(s). 

These opportunities include, but are not limited to, continuing to conduct or attend meetings of 

any events or functions, any extracurricular and cocurricular activity. However, such 

opportunities may be restricted for all students in an extracurricular or cocurricular activity if 

multiple school rule violations create a pattern or practice, or there is wide spread student 

involvement in the violation(s), or there is a likelihood of a disruption on school campus or 

continued violation of school rules as determined by the Superintendent or designee. Any student 

who violates school rules may be subject to disciplinary action, including expulsion, suspension 

from school, or revocation of the privileges of participating in extracurricular and cocurricular 

activities. 

 

9.  Students with Disabilities 

 

Provide extracurricular and cocurricular activities in such a manner as is necessary to afford 

students with exceptional needs an equal opportunity for participation in such services and 

activities. 

 

10. Annual Notice of District Student Clubs 

 

Require annual notice be sent to parent/guardian of each student regarding student clubs that the 

District recognizes at the student's school during the academic year.  The parental notice form 

will list, without drawing attention to any particular club, all active student clubs at the pertinent 

school, with the club name, a brief description of the club prepared by the principal or designee, 

and the name of the club's advisor.  The parental notice form will, without drawing attention to 

any particular club, advise the parent/guardian of his or her right to inform the school of any 

student club in which the parent/guardian does not wish his or her student to participate, advise 

the parent/guardian that consent will be presumed without written notice to the contrary. 

 

The viewpoints and speech expressed at meetings of the student clubs do not necessarily reflect 

the views of Madera Unified School District or its Governing Board. 

 

225



AR 6145(d) 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities (continued) 

 

If eligible under applicable District eligibility standards, a student will have the opportunity to 

join one or more such clubs and to attend and participate in the meetings of any club that he or 

she joins.  However, the parent has the right to inform the school in writing of any particular 

student club in which they do not wish their child to participate.  Consent to participate will be 

presumed without written notice to the contrary. 

 

Eligibility Requirements 

 

1.   Academic Eligibility Grades 7-12 

 

To reflect the Board's desire that interscholastic athletics, extracurricular and cocurricular 

activities supplement, and not detract from, the academic achievement of District students, each 

program or activity for students in grades 7-12 shall include the following academic standards: 

 

a. Students participating in grades 9-12 cocurricular activities must be currently enrolled in 

the equivalent of 20 semester units of class work. 

 

b. Students participating in extracurricular and cocurricular activities must achieve a grade 

point average of 2.0 in each defined grading period preceding the period of participation. 

 

c. Two "F" grades in a grading period will result in ineligibility for the next quarter. 

 

(1) The grades 7-8 eligibility-grading periods shall be the first quarter, second 

quarter, third quarter, and fourth quarter. 

 

(2) The 9-12 eligibility-grading periods shall be the first quarter, fall semester, third 

quarter, and spring semester. 

 

(3) The grading periods shall be considered consecutive and uninterrupted. 

Therefore, the last grading period of the previous year shall be the basis for 

determining eligibility for the start of the following year. This does not apply to 

incoming 7th Graders. 

 

(4) The fourth quarter grade of the 7th grade year shall be the basis for determining 

first quarter eligibility for the following year for 8th grade students. 

 

(5) The fourth quarter grade of the 8th grade year shall be the basis for determining 

first quarter eligibility for the following year for 9th grade students.  For those 

entering 9th grade not meeting the academic eligibility, see "probationary 

periods." 

 

 

 

226



AR 6145(e) 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities (continued) 

 

 d. Summer School Grades: 

 

  Summer school grades shall be included to determine eligibility. In calculating eligibility, 

  a summer school semester grade will replace the grade of a "like" semester course taken  

  previously. 

 

(1) Grades/units earned in summer school classes, which do not replace grades, 

earned previously in "like" courses will be averaged with grades from the 

previous grading period (quarter grades in 7-8, fall and spring semester grades 

in 9-12). 

 

(2) Summer school grades shall not impair a student's academic eligibility 

achieved in the previous grading period (quarter in grades 7-8; semester in 

grades 9-12). 

 

(3) Notwithstanding the above, the eligibility date for each grading period will be 

the second Monday after the grading period ends. This shall apply to the 

student who is waiting to become eligible and to the student who is being 

declared ineligible. 

 

(4) An INCOMPLETE GRADE (1) will not be counted for eligibility purposes 

until that incomplete grade has been replaced by a permanent letter grade 

(within ten days after end of grading period) as per Madera Unified High 

School's policy. 

 

e. Probationary Period Eligibility 

 

(1) The Superintendent or designee may authorize probation period of one quarter. 

 

(2) Students granted probationary eligibility must meet the required standards by 

the end of the probationary period in order to remain eligible for participation 

in extracurricular or cocurricular activities. 

 

2. Attendance Eligibility Grades 7-12 

 

a. A participant must attend school for a minimum of 4 periods or the equivalent on the day of 

or day prior if the event occurs on a Saturday or will be prohibited from participating in the 

activity. Administrative prior approval is required for an excused absence occurring the day 

of the event, or day prior if the event occurs on a Saturday. 

 

b. Attendance at practice, rehearsal, scrimmages, meetings, performances and games is 

compulsory. Absences not approved by the coach/advisor may result in disciplinary action 

and possible removal from the extracurricular or cocurricular activity. 

227



AR 6145(f) 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities (continued) 

 

c. Any participant who is suspended from school may not participate in any extracurricular or 

cocurricular event, practice, or rehearsal during the duration of the suspension. 

 

3.  Behavior Eligibility Grades 7-12 

 

a. Students in extracurricular or cocurricular activities must agree to and abide by all 

expectations and be subject to all consequences and eligibility requirements reset forth in 

Extracurricular and Cocurricular Code of Conduct, which is set forth in the Exhibit to this 

Regulation. 

 

b. Definitions regarding the period of ineligibility defined in this extracurricular and 

CoCurricular code of conduct supersede those in the MUSD Student Behavior Manual.  

If the weeks of ineligibility are longer than the weeks remaining in the current school 

year, ineligibility will extend into the following school year. 

 

c. Review of violation of Extracurricular and Cocurricular Code of Conduct (Grades 9-12 

ONLY) 

 

(1) An Extracurricular and Cocurricular Code of Conduct Appeals 

 

Panel will be established at each school to hear appeals regarding disputed 

extra-curricular or co-curricular violations not covered by the Student Behavior 

Manual or Extracurricular and Cocurricular Code of Conduct. 

 

(2) The Extracurricular and Cocurricular Appeals Panel voting members shall be, 

the athletic director, activities director and an administrator/designee.  Also 

may be in attendance, as non-voting members; a neutral coach or advisor 

selected by the athletic or activities director, a teacher selected by the principal, 

a counselor, the student, and the student's parent/s or guardians. 

 

(3) The hearing on a student's appeal shall be closed to the public and non-voting 

school and District staff and officials except as noted herein. The 

coach/coaches of the athlete involved should be in attendance as non-voting 

observers. All members of the Extracurricular and Cocurricular Appeals Panel 

must be present to hear and act on any appeal or case brought before them. 

 

(4) At the hearing, the athlete shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary 

action and the evidence against him/her and the parent(s)/guardian(s) and 

participant shall be given an opportunity to present their version and evidence 

on their behalf. 

 

 

 

228



AR6145(g) 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities (continued) 

 

(5) At the conclusion of the hearing, the Extracurricular and Cocurricular Appeals 

Panel will meet in closed session outside the presence of the student, his/her 

parents or guardians, and other non-voting school and District staff and 

officials permitted to attend the hearing for the purpose of deliberating and 

determining the Appeal Board's recommendation to the principal. 

 

(6) The chairperson of the Appeals Panel shall provide in a written report to the 

principal, the recommendation of the Extracurricular and Cocurricular Appeals 

Panel. The report must include the athlete's written statement and facts 

presented at the hearing. 

 

(7) After evaluating the recommendations of the Extracurricular and Cocurricular 

Appeals Panel, the principal will have the final decision regarding the appeal 

and will notify the participant, parents and the participant's program advisor or 

coach of the decision. 

 

 

(8) If the Extracurricular and Cocurricular Appeals Panel determines that the 

student should be recommended for ineligibility under this regulation, the 

Appeals Panel may recommend, permitting, the student to reduce up to half the 

non-privilege period if the student complies with the Appeal Board's 

recommended rehabilitation plan. 

 

(9) Simple traffic violations such as parking or speeding are not considered 

violations of the Code of Conduct for which extracurricular and cocurricular 

privileges may be revoked. 

 

(10) Students may be credited for non-privilege time served while waiting 

dispensation of a felony case. (The Appeals Panel may recommend the 

imposition of consequences of a misdemeanor offense for a potential felony 

matter pending the dispensation of the case in court. If the offense is upheld by 

the court as a felony conviction, the District's Governing Board may impose 

additional consequences. 

 

d. Repeat Offenders 

 

(1) Code of Conduct under this policy and regulation violations are cumulative 

throughout a student's high school years. 

 

(2) When a student has a 2nd or 3rd hearing, even if it is for a different violation, 

they will face 2nd or 3rd time consequences. 

 

e.  Non-Privilege Duration 

229



 

AR 6145(h) 

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities (continued) 

 

(1) The Extracurricular and Cocurricular Appeals Panel will recommend a 

minimum non-privilege time of ten (10) school days or fourteen (14) calendar 

days (the lesser of the two options) for each student appearing before them for 

whom extracurricular and cocurricular privilege revocation is recommended. 

The Appeals Panel may decide to permit the student to reduce up to half of this 

non-privilege period if the student completes an Appeals Panel rehabilitation 

plan/Work Back. 

 

(2) A student who has violated the Extracurricular and Cocurricular Code of 

Conduct is not to be allowed to participate during his/her first five days of non-

privilege.  If the non-privilege time is longer than ten (10) days, the 

Extracurricular and Cocurricular Appeals Panel will determine when the 

athlete can rejoin his/her team for practice. 

 

(3) "Work Back" is defined as two (2) hours of campus service equaling one (1) 

day of non-privilege. 

 

f.  Earning Back Time 

 

 Every two hours of work equals one day. Students may assist janitors, etc. Earning back 

 time will be at the discretion of the site administrator and approved prior to accrual of 

 hours. The administrator or designee must obtain documentation. 

 

g. Probation 

 

  Students are not permitted consecutive quarters of probation. 

 

  Code of Conduct Matrix 

 

  Refer to Exhibit 6145, Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities Code of Conduct  

  Matrix 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation       MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved:  December 13, 2011          Madera, California 

revised:      

230



Instruction AR 6159(a) 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM 

 

 

At the beginning of each school year, the district shall have an individualized education 

program (IEP) in effect for each student with a disability within district jurisdiction.  The IEP 

shall be a written statement designed by the IEP team to meet the unique educational needs 

of a student with a disability.  (Education Code 56344; 34 CFR 300.323) 

 

Members of the IEP Team 

 

The IEP team for any student with a disability shall include the following members:  

(Education Code 56341, 56341.5; 20 USC 1414(d)(1); 34 CFR 300.321) 

 

1. One or both of the student's parents/guardians and/or a representative selected by 

them. 

 

2. If the student is or may be participating in the regular education program, at least one 

of the student's regular education teachers designated by the Superintendent or 

designee to represent the student's teachers. 

 

The regular education teacher shall, to the extent appropriate, participate in the 

development, review, and revision of the student's IEP, including assisting in the 

determination of appropriate positive behavioral interventions, supports, and other 

strategies for the student, and supplementary aids and services, program 

modifications, and supports for school personnel that will be provided for the student, 

consistent with 34 CFR 300.320.  (Education Code 56341; 20 USC 1414(d)(3)(C); 34 

CFR 300.324) 

 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 

 

3. At least one of the student's special education teachers or, where appropriate, special 

education providers. 

 

4. A representative of the district who is: 

 

a. Qualified to provide or supervise the provision of specially designed 

instruction to meet the unique needs of students with disabilities. 

 

b. Knowledgeable about the general education curriculum. 

 

c. Knowledgeable about the availability of district and/or special education local 

plan area (SELPA) resources. 

 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 

 

5. An individual who can interpret the instructional implications of assessment results. 

 

231



 AR 6159(b) 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM (continued) 

 

 

This individual may already be a member of the team as described in items #2-4 

above or in item #6 below. 

 

6. At the discretion of the parent/guardian or the Superintendent or designee, other 

individuals who have knowledge or special expertise regarding the student, including 

related services personnel, as appropriate. 
 

 The determination of whether the individual has knowledge or special expertise 

regarding the student shall be made by the party who invites the individual to be a 

member of the IEP team. 
 

7. Whenever appropriate, the student with a disability. 

 

In the development, review, or revision of his/her IEP, the student shall be allowed to 

provide confidential input to any representative of his/her IEP team.  (Education Code 

56341.5) 
 

8. When the student is suspected of having a specific learning disability, at least one 

individual who is qualified to conduct individual diagnostic examinations of the 

student such as a school psychologist, speech language pathologist, or remedial 

reading teacher. 

 

 In accordance with 34 CFR 300.310, at least one team member other than the 

student's regular education teacher shall observe the student's academic performance 

and behavior in the areas of difficulty in his/her learning environment, including in 

the regular classroom setting.  If the child is younger than five years or not enrolled in 

school, a team member shall observe the child in an environment appropriate for a 

child of that age. 

 

In the following circumstances, the Superintendent or designee shall invite other specified 

individuals to an IEP team meeting: 

 

 

1. When the student has been placed in a group home by the juvenile court, a 

representative of the group home shall be invited to attend IEP team meetings.  

(Education Code 56341.2) 

 

2. Whenever the IEP team is meeting to consider the student's postsecondary goals and 

the transition services needed to assist him/her in reaching the goals as stated in 

Education Code 56345(a)(8), the following individuals shall be invited to attend:  (34 

CFR 300.321) 

 

a. The student, regardless of his/her age. 

 

 

232



 AR 6159(c) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

 

  If the student does not attend the IEP team meeting, the Superintendent or 

designee shall take other steps to ensure that the student's preferences and 

interests are considered. 

 

b. To the extent appropriate, and with the consent of the parent/guardian, a 

representative of any other agency that is likely to be responsible for 

providing or paying for the transition services. 

 

3. If the student was previously served under the Early Education for Individuals with 

Exceptional Needs (Education Code 56425-56432) or the California Early 

Intervention Services Act (Government Code 95000-95004), and upon request of the 

student's parent/guardian, the Superintendent or designee shall invite the Infant and 

Toddlers with Disabilities Coordinator or other representative of the early education 

or early intervention system to the initial IEP team meeting to assist with the smooth 

transition of services.  (Education Code 56341; 20 USC 1414(d)(1)(D); 34 CFR 

300.321) 

 

A member of the IEP team shall not be required to attend an IEP team meeting, in whole or 

in part, if the parent/guardian and the district agree, in writing, that the attendance of the 

member is not necessary because the member's area of the curriculum or related services is 

not being modified or discussed at the meeting.  Even if the meeting involves a discussion of 

the IEP team member's area of the curriculum or related service, the member may be excused 

from the meeting if the parent/guardian, in writing, and the district consent to the excusal 

after conferring with the member and the member submits to the parent/guardian and team 

written input into the development of the IEP prior to the meeting.  (Education Code 56341; 

20 USC 1414(d)(1)(C); 34 CFR 300.321) 

 

Contents of the IEP 

 

The IEP shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following:  (Education Code 56043, 

56345, 56345.1; 20 USC 1414(d)(1)(A); 34 CFR 300.320) 

 

1. A statement of the present levels of the student's academic achievement and 

functional performance, including: 

 

a. The manner in which the student's disability affects his/her involvement and 

progress in the general education curriculum (i.e., the same curriculum as for 

nondisabled students). 

 

b. For a preschool child, as appropriate, the manner in which the disability 

affects his/her participation in appropriate activities. 

 

 

233



 AR 6159(d) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

c. For a student with a disability who takes alternate assessments aligned to 

alternate achievement standards, a description of benchmarks or short-term 

objectives. 

 

2. A statement of measurable annual goals, including academic and functional goals, 

designed to: 

 

a. Meet the student's needs that result from his/her disability in order to enable 

the student to be involved in and progress in the general education curriculum. 

 

b. Meet each of the student's other educational needs that result from his/her 

disability. 

 

3. A description of the manner in which the student's progress toward meeting the 

annual goals described in item #2 above will be measured and when the district will 

provide periodic reports on the progress the student is making toward meeting the 

annual goals, such as through the use of quarterly or other periodic reports, 

concurrent with the issuance of report cards. 

 

4. A statement of the special education instruction and related services and 

supplementary aids and services, based on peer-reviewed research to the extent 

practicable, to be provided to the student or on behalf of the student, and a statement 

of the program modifications or supports for school personnel that will be provided to 

enable the student to: 

 

a. Advance appropriately toward attaining the annual goals. 

 

b. Be involved and make progress in the general education curriculum in 

accordance with item #1 above and to participate in extracurricular and other 

nonacademic activities. 

 

c. Be educated and participate with other students with disabilities and 

nondisabled students in the activities described in the IEP. 

 
(cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities) 

 

5. An explanation of the extent, if any, to which the student will not participate with 

nondisabled students in the regular class and in extracurricular and other 

nonacademic activities described in the IEP. 

 

6. A statement of any appropriate individual accommodations necessary to measure the 

academic achievement and functional performance of the student on state and 

districtwide assessments. 

  

234



AR 6159(e) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM (continued) 

 

If the IEP team determines that the student shall take an alternate assessment instead 

of a particular regular state or districtwide assessment, the student's IEP also shall 

include a statement of the reason that he/she cannot participate in the regular 

assessment and the reason that the particular alternate assessment selected is 

appropriate for him/her. 

 
(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities) 

(cf. 6162.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting Program) 

(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 
 

7. The projected date for the beginning of the services and modifications described in 

item #4 above and the anticipated frequency, location, and duration of those services 

and modifications. 

 

8. Beginning not later than the first IEP to be in effect when the student is 16 years of 

age, or younger if determined appropriate by the IEP team, and updated annually 

thereafter, the following: 

 

 a. Appropriate measurable postsecondary goals based upon age-appropriate 

transition assessments related to training, education, employment, and where 

appropriate, independent living skills. 

 

 b. The transition services, including courses of study, needed to assist the student 

in reaching those goals. 

 

9. Beginning at least one year before the student reaches age 18, a statement that the 

student has been informed of his/her rights, if any, that will transfer to him/her upon 

reaching age 18, pursuant to Education Code 56041.5. 

 

Where appropriate, the IEP shall also include:  (Education Code 56345) 

 

1. For a student in grades 7-12, any alternative means and modes necessary for the 

student to complete the district's prescribed course of study and to meet or exceed 

proficiency standards required for graduation. 

 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 

 

2. Linguistically appropriate goals, objectives, programs, and services for a student 

whose native language is not English. 

 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

 

 

  

235



AR 6159(f) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

 

3. Extended school year services when the IEP team determines, on an individual basis, 

that the services are necessary for the provision of a free appropriate public education 

(FAPE). 

 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 

(cf. 6177 - Summer School) 

 

4. Provision for transition into the regular education program if the student is to be 

transferred from a special class or center or nonpublic, nonsectarian school into a 

regular education program in a public school for any part of the school day, including 

descriptions of activities intended to: 

 

a. Integrate the student into the regular education program, including indications 

of the nature of each activity and the time spent on the activity each day or 

week. 

 

b. Support the transition of the student from the special education program into 

the regular education program. 

 
(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 

 

5. Specialized services, materials, and equipment for a student with low incidence 

disabilities, consistent with the guidelines pursuant to Education Code 56136. 

 

Development of the IEP 

 

Within 30 days of a determination that a student needs special education and related services, 

the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a meeting to develop an initial IEP is 

conducted.  (34 CFR 300.323) 

 

Any IEP required as a result of an assessment of a student shall be developed within 60 days 

from the date of receipt of the parent/guardian's written consent for assessment, unless the 

parent/guardian agrees, in writing, to an extension.  Days between the student's regular 

school sessions, terms, or vacation of more than five school days shall not be counted.  In the 

case of school vacations, the 60-day time limit shall recommence on the date that the 

student's school days reconvene.  (Education Code 56344) 

 

However, when the IEP is required as a result of an assessment of a student for whom a 

referral has been made 30 days or less prior to the end of the preceding regular school year, 

the IEP shall be developed within 30 days after the commencement of the subsequent regular 

school year.  (Education Code 56344) 

 

236



 AR 6159(g) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

 

In developing the IEP, the IEP team shall consider all of the following:  (Education Code 

56341.1, 56345; 20 USC 1414(d)(3)(A); 34 CFR 300.324) 

 

1. The strengths of the student. 

 

2. The concerns of the parents/guardians for enhancing the education of their child. 

 

3. The results of the initial or most recent assessment of the student. 

 

4. The academic, developmental, and functional needs of the student. 

 

5. In the case of a student whose behavior impedes his/her learning or that of others, the 

use of positive behavioral interventions and supports and other strategies to address 

that behavior. 

 

6. In the case of a student with limited English proficiency, the language needs of the 

student as such needs relate to the student's IEP. 
 

7. In the case of a student who is blind or visually impaired, the need to provide for 

instruction in Braille and instruction in the use of Braille. 
 

 However, such instruction need not be included in the IEP if the IEP team determines 

that instruction in Braille or the use of Braille is not appropriate for the student.  This 

determination shall be based upon an assessment of the student's reading and writing 

skills, his/her future needs for instruction in Braille or the use of Braille, and other 

appropriate reading and writing media. 

 

8. The communication needs of the student and, in the case of a student who is deaf or 

hard of hearing, the student's language and communication needs, opportunities for 

direct communications with peers and professional personnel in the student's 

language and communication mode, academic level, and full range of needs, 

including opportunities for direct instruction in the student's language and 

communication mode. 
 

The team shall also consider the related services and program options that provide the 

student with an equal opportunity for communication access, as described in 

Education Code 56345. 
 

9. Whether the student requires assistive technology devices and services. 

 

If, in considering the special factors in items #1-9 above, the IEP team determines that the 

student needs a particular device or service, including an intervention, accommodation, or 

other program modification, in order to receive FAPE, the team shall include a statement to 

that effect in the student's IEP.  (Education Code 56341.1) 

237



 AR 6159(h) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

 

Provision of Special Education and Related Services 
 

The district shall ensure that, as soon as possible following development of the IEP, special 

education services and related services are made available to the student in accordance with 

his/her IEP.  (Education Code 56344; 34 CFR 300.323) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the student's IEP is accessible to each 

regular education teacher, special education teacher, related service provider, and any other 

service provider who is responsible for its implementation.  The Superintendent or designee 

also shall ensure that such teachers and providers are informed of their specific 

responsibilities related to implementing the IEP and the specific accommodations, 

modifications, and supports that must be provided to the student in accordance with the IEP. 

(34 CFR 300.323) 

 

Review and Revision of the IEP 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the IEP team reviews the IEP periodically, 

but at least annually, in order to: (Education Code 56043, 56341.1, 56380; 20 USC 

1414(d)(4); 34 CFR 300.324) 

 

1. Determine whether the annual goals for the student are being achieved. 

 

2. Revise the IEP, as appropriate, to address: 

 

 a. Any lack of expected progress toward the annual goals and in the general 

education curriculum, where appropriate. 

 

 b. The results of any reassessment conducted pursuant to Education Code 56381. 

 

 c. Information about the student provided to or by the parents/guardians 

regarding review of evaluation data pursuant to 34 CFR 300.305(a)(2) and 

Education Code 56381(b). 

 

 d. The student's anticipated needs. 

          e. Any other relevant matter. 

 

3. Consider the special factors listed in items #5-9 above under "Development of the 

IEP," when reviewing the IEP of any student with a disability to whom one of those 

factors may apply. 

 

The IEP team shall also meet at any other time upon request by the student's parent/guardian 

or teacher to review or revise the IEP.  (Education Code 56343) 

  

238



AR 6159(i) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

 

When a parent/guardian requests an IEP team meeting to review the IEP, the team shall meet 

within 30 days of receiving the parent/guardian's written request, not counting days between 

the student's regular school sessions or terms or days of school vacation in excess of five 

school days. If a parent/guardian makes an oral request, the district shall notify the 

parent/guardian of the need for a written request and the procedure for filing such a request.  

(Education Code 56043, 56343.5) 

 

A regular education or special education teacher may request a review of the classroom 

assignment of a student with a disability by submitting a written request to the 

Superintendent or designee.  The Superintendent or designee shall consider the request 

within 20 days of receiving it, not counting days when school is not in session or, for year-

round schools, days when the school is off track.  If the review indicates a need for change in 

the student's placement, instruction, and/or related services, the Superintendent or designee 

shall convene an IEP team meeting, which shall be held within 30 days of the Superintendent 

or designee's review, not counting days when school is not in session or days when school is 

off track, unless the student's parent/guardian consents in writing to an extension of time. 

 

If a participating agency other than the district fails to provide the transition services 

described in the student's IEP, the team shall reconvene to identify alternative strategies to 

meet the transition service objectives set out for the student in the IEP.  (Education Code 

56345.1; 20 USC 1414(d); 34 CFR 300.324) 

 

If a student with a disability residing in a licensed children's institution or foster family home 

has been placed by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school, the Superintendent or 

designee shall conduct an annual evaluation as part of the IEP process of whether the 

placement is the least restrictive environment that is appropriate to meet the student's needs.  

(Education Code 56157) 

 
(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education) 

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

 

When an IEP calls for a residential placement as a result of a review by an expanded IEP 

team, the IEP shall include a provision for a review, at least every six months, by the full IEP 

team of the case progress, the continuing need for out-of-home placement, the extent of 

compliance with the IEP, and progress toward alleviating the need for out-of-home care.  

(Education Code 56043) 

 

To the extent possible, the Superintendent or designee shall encourage the consolidation of 

reassessment meetings and other IEP team meetings for a student.  (20 USC 1414(d)(3)(A); 

34 CFR 300.324) 

 

 

 

239



 AR 6159(j) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

 

When a change is necessary to a student's IEP after the annual IEP team meeting for the 

school year has been held, the parent/guardian and the Superintendent or designee may agree 

not to convene an IEP team meeting for the purpose of making the change and instead may 

develop a written document to amend or modify the student's current IEP.  The IEP team 

shall be informed of any such changes.  Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall 

provide the parent/guardian with a revised copy of the IEP with the incorporated 

amendments.  (20 USC 1414(d)(3)(D); 34 CFR 300.324) 

 

Audio Recording of IEP Team Meetings 

 

Parents/guardians and the Superintendent or designee shall have the right to audio record the 

proceedings of IEP team meetings, provided members of the IEP team are notified of this 

intent at least 24 hours before the meeting.  If the Superintendent or designee gives notice of 

intent to audio record a meeting and the parent/guardian objects or refuses to attend because 

the meeting would be audio recorded, the meeting shall not be audio recorded.  

Parents/guardians also have the right to:  (Education Code 56341.1) 

 

1. Inspect and review the audio recordings. 

 

2. Request that an audio recording be amended if they believe it contains information 

that is inaccurate, misleading, or in violation of the student's privacy rights or other 

rights. 

 

3. Challenge, in a hearing, information that the parents/guardians believe is inaccurate, 

misleading, or in violation of the student's privacy rights or other rights. 

 

Parent/Guardian Participation and Other Rights 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall take steps to ensure that one or both of the 

parents/guardians of the student with a disability are present at each IEP team meeting or are 

afforded the opportunity to participate. These steps shall include notifying the 

parents/guardians of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have the opportunity to 

attend and scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed upon time and place.  (Education 

Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall send parents/guardians notices of IEP team meetings 

that:  (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 

 

1. Indicate the purpose, time, and location of the meeting. 

 

2. Indicate who will be in attendance at the meeting. 

 

 

240



 AR 6159(k) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

 

3. Inform them of: 

 

a. Their right to bring to the meeting other individuals who have knowledge or 

special expertise about the student, pursuant to Education Code 56341(b)(6). 

 

b. The provision of Education Code 56341(i) relating to the participation of the 

Infant and Toddlers with Disabilities Coordinator at the initial IEP team 

meeting, if the student was previously served under Early Education for 

Individuals with Exceptional Needs (Education Code 56425-56432) or the 

California Early Intervention Services Act (Government Code 95000-95004). 

 

In addition, when the IEP team meeting is to consider the development, review, or revision of 

the IEP of a student with a disability who is 16 years of age or older, or younger than 16 if 

deemed appropriate by the IEP team, the Superintendent or designee's notice to the student's 

parents/guardians shall include the following:  (Education Code 56341.5) 

 

1. An indication that a purpose of the meeting will be the consideration of 

postsecondary goals and transition services for the student pursuant to Education 

Code 56345.1, 20 USC 1414(d)(1)(A)(i)(VIII), and 34 CFR 300.320(b). 

 

2. An indication that the student is invited to the IEP team meeting. 

 

3. Identification of any other agency that will be invited to send a representative. 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

At each IEP team meeting convened by the district, the district administrator or specialist on 

the team shall inform the parent/guardian and student of the federal and state procedural 

safeguards included in the notice of parental rights provided pursuant to Education Code 

56321.  (Education Code 56500.1) 

 
(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education) 

 

The parent/guardian shall have the right and opportunity to examine all of his/her child's 

school records upon request, before any IEP meeting, and in connection with any hearing or 

resolution session on matters affecting his/her child, including, but not limited to, initial 

formal assessment, procedural safeguards, and due process.  Upon receipt of an oral or 

written request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide complete copies of the records 

within five business days. (Education Code 56043, 56504) 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

 

 

241



 AR 6159(l) 

 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM  (continued) 

 

 

The parent/guardian shall have the right to present information to the IEP team in person or 

through a representative and the right to participate in meetings that relate to eligibility for 

special education and related services, recommendations, and program planning.  (Education 

Code 56341.1) 

 

If neither parent/guardian can attend the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall use 

other methods to ensure parent/guardian participation, including video conferences or 

individual or conference telephone calls.  (Education Code 56341.5; 20 USC 1414(f); 34 

CFR 300.322) 

 

An IEP team meeting may be conducted without a parent/guardian in attendance if the 

Superintendent or designee is unable to convince the parent/guardian that he/she should 

attend.  In such a case, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of the attempts 

to arrange a mutually agreed upon time and place for the meeting, including:  (Education 

Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 

 

1. Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls. 

 

2. Copies of correspondence sent to the parent/guardian and any responses received. 

 

3. Detailed records of visits made to the parent/guardian's home or place of employment 

and the results of those visits. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall take any action necessary to ensure that the 

parents/guardians understand the proceedings of the meeting, including arranging for an 

interpreter for parents/guardians with deafness or whose native language is not English.  

(Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall give the parents/guardians of a student with a disability 

a copy of his/her child's IEP at no cost.  (Education Code 56341.5; 34 CFR 300.322) 

 

Parent/Guardian Consent for Provision of Special Education and Services 

 

Before providing special education and related services to any student, the Superintendent or 

designee shall seek to obtain informed consent of the student's parent/guardian pursuant to 20 

USC 1414(a)(1).  The district shall not provide services by utilizing the due process hearing 

procedures pursuant to 20 USC 1415(f) if the parent/guardian refuses to consent to the 

initiation of services.  If the parent/guardian does not consent to all of the components of the 

IEP, then those components to which the parent/guardian has consented shall be 

implemented so as not to delay providing instruction and services to the student.  (Education 

Code 56346) 

  

AR 6159(m) 

242



 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM (continued) 

 

 

If the Superintendent or designee determines that a part of a proposed IEP to which the 

parent/guardian does not consent is necessary in order to provide the student with FAPE, a 

due process hearing shall be initiated in accordance with 20 USC 1415(f).  While the due 

process hearing is pending, the student shall remain in the current placement unless the 

parent/guardian and the Superintendent or designee agree otherwise.  (Education Code 

56346) 

 

If at any time subsequent to the initial provision of services, the student's parent/guardian, in 

writing, revokes consent for the continued provision of special education services, the 

Superintendent or designee shall provide prior written notice within a reasonable time before 

ceasing to provide services to the student.  The Superintendent or designee shall not request a 

due process hearing or pursue mediation in order to require an agreement or ruling that 

services be provided to the student.  (Education Code 56346; 34 CFR 300.300, 300.503) 

 

Prior to the discontinuation of services, the Superintendent or designee may offer to meet 

with the parents/guardians to discuss concerns for the student's education.  However, this 

meeting shall be voluntary on the part of the parent/guardian and shall not delay the 

implementation of the parent/guardian's request for discontinuation of services.  In addition, 

the Superintendent or designee shall send a letter to the parent/guardian confirming the 

parent/guardian's decision to discontinue all services. 

 

When the district ceases to provide special education services in response to the 

parent/guardian's revocation of consent, the student shall be classified as a general education 

student. 

 

Transfer Students 

 

To facilitate the transition of a student with a disability who is transferring into the district, 

the Superintendent or designee shall take reasonable steps to promptly obtain the student's 

records, including his/her IEP and the supporting documents related to the provision of 

special education services.  (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323) 

 

If the student transfers into the district from another school district within the same SELPA 

during the school year, the district shall continue to provide services comparable to those 

described in the student's existing IEP, unless his/her parent/guardian and the district agree to 

develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP that is consistent with state and federal law.  

(Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323) 

 

If the student transfers into the district from a school district outside of the district's SELPA 

during the school year, the district shall provide the student with FAPE, including services  

comparable to those described in the previous district's IEP. Within 30 days, the 

Superintendent or designee shall, in consultation with the student's parents/guardians, adopt  

 

 

243



AR 6159(n) 

 

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM (continued) 

 

 

the previous district's IEP or shall develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP that is consistent 

with state and federal law.  (Education Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323) 

 

If the student transfers into the district from an out-of-state district during the school year, the 

district shall provide the student with FAPE, including services comparable to the out-of-

state district's IEP, in consultation with the parent/guardian, until such time as the 

Superintendent or designee conducts an assessment, if it determines that such an assessment 

is necessary, and develops, adopts, and implements a new IEP, if appropriate.  (Education 

Code 56325; 34 CFR 300.323) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation                          MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved: December 13, 2011 Madera, California 

revised:   

244



Instruction         BP 6178.1(a) 

 

Work Experience Education 
 

The Governing Board desires to facilitate the preparation of secondary school students 

for college and career by providing work-based learning opportunities which link 

classroom learning with real-world experiences. Work-based learning opportunities 

offered by the district shall be designed to teach the skills, attitudes, and knowledge 

necessary for successful employment and to reinforce mastery of both academic and 

career technical education (CTE) standards. 

 
 (cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

 

Work-based learning opportunities offered by the district may include paid and/or unpaid 

work experiences, including, but not limited to, work experience education as defined in 

Education Code 51764, cooperative CTE or community classrooms as defined in 

Education Code 52372.1, job shadowing as defined in Education Code 51769, student 

internships, apprenticeships, service learning, employment in social/civic or school-based 

enterprises, and technology-based or other simulated work experiences. 

 
 (cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall involve local businesses or business organizations 

in planning and implementing work-based learning opportunities that support the 

district's vision and goals for student learning and local workforce development efforts.  

He/she also may work with postsecondary institutions, community organizations, and 

others to identify opportunities for work-based learning. 

 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 

(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

When required by law, the Superintendent or designee shall develop a written training 

agreement with the employer that describes the conditions and requirements to be met by 

all parties and shall develop an individual training plan for each student which outlines 

the objectives or competencies that the student is expected to accomplish at the work site.  

(5 CCR 10070-10071, 10087, 10108) 

 

District staff shall coordinate with the workplace supervisor or mentor to ensure 

appropriate guidance and supervision of participating students and maximum educational  

benefit from placement in the program. 

 

245



BP 6178.1(b) 

 

Work Experience Education (continued) 
 

A minor student shall be issued a work permit before beginning employment through a 

paid work-based learning program in accordance with law, Board policy, and 

administrative regulation.  (Education Code 49113, 49160) 

 
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits) 

 

All laws or rules applicable to minors in employment relationships shall be applicable to 

students enrolled in work-based learning programs.  (Education Code 51763) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any student participating in a work-

based learning program off school grounds is covered under the employer's or district's 

insurance, as applicable, in the event the student is injured. 

 
(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 

(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any teacher/coordinator of a work-based 

learning program possesses the appropriate credential issued by the Commission on 

Teacher Credentialing.  (5 CCR 10075, 10080, 10100) 

 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records for each student's participation in 

the program, including, but not limited to, the student's individualized training plan, 

his/her employment hours and job site, work permit if applicable, employer's report of 

student's attendance and job performance, the teacher/coordinator's consultations and 

observations, and the student's grade and credits earned. 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board regarding program 

implementation and effectiveness, including, but not limited to, rates of student 

participation in work-based learning programs and assessment results of participating 

students. 

 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

35208  Liability insurance 

46144  Minimum school day for work experience program 

46147  Exception for minimum day; students in last semester or quarter of grade 12 

46300   Method of computing ADA 

48402  Enrollment in continuation education, minors not regularly employed 

246



BP 6178.1(c) 

 

Work Experience Education (continued) 
 

49110-49119  Permits to work 

49160 Permits to work, duties of employer 

51760-51769.5  Work experience education 

52300-52499.66  Career technical education 

54690-54697  Partnership academies 

56026  Students with exceptional needs 

52372.1 Community classrooms and cooperative career technical education programs 

LABOR CODE 

1285-1312  Employment of minors 

1391-1394  Working hours for minors 

3070-3099.5  Apprenticeship 

3200-6002  Workers' compensation and insurance 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

1635  Credit for work experience education 

10070-10075  Work experience education 

10080-10090  Community classrooms 

10100-10111  Cooperative career technical education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

2301-2414  Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 

570.35a  Work experience programs 

 

Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Multiple Pathways to Student Success: Envisioning the New California High School, 2010 

2008-2012 California State Plan for Career Technical Education, 2008 

Career Technical Education Framework for California Public Schools: Grades Seven Through 

Twelve, 2007 

Work Experience Education Guide 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS PUBLICATIONS 

Child Labor Laws, 2000 

WEST ED PUBLICATIONS 

Work-Based Learning in California: Opportunities and Models for Expansion, 2009 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Association of Work Experience Educators: http://www.cawee.org 

California Department of Education, Work Experience Education:  

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/we 

California Department of Industrial Relations: http://www.dir.ca.gov 

Linked Learning Alliance: http://www.linkedlearning.org 

WestEd: http://www.wested.org 

 

 

Policy       MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted:  December 13, 2011                     Madera, California 

revised:  

247



Instruction         AR 6178.1(a) 

 

 

Work Experience Education 
 

 

Work Experiences and Related Instruction 

 

The district's work experience education (WEE) program shall consist of one or more of 

the following types of unpaid and paid on-the-job experiences:  (Education Code 51764;5 

CCR 10071) 

 

1. Exploratory WEE which provides students with a combination of classroom 

instruction in WEE and unpaid opportunities to observe and sample 

systematically a variety of conditions of work for the purpose of ascertaining their 

interest and suitability for the occupation they are exploring.  The length of 

exploratory work experience assignments may vary depending on the aptitude of 

the student, the occupation being explored, the facilities of the work station, and 

the job classification.  A student may not participate in an exploratory work 

experience assignment if he/she receives pay for like work at the same work 

station or similar job outside of the WEE program. 

 

2. General WEE which has as its purpose the application of basic skills of reading, 

writing, and computation and which enables students to acquire general and 

specific occupational skills through a combination of supervised paid employment 

in any occupational field and related classroom instruction in WEE. 

 

3. Career technical WEE which reinforces and extends career learning opportunities 

for students through a combination of related classroom instruction in WEE and 

supervised paid employment in the occupation for which their career technical 

course in school prepares them. 

 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and present to the Governing Board for 

approval a district plan for WEE in accordance with 5 CCR 10070. 

 

Employment opportunities may be provided by any public or private employer in areas 

within or outside the district, either within California or in a contiguous state.  (Education 

Code 51768) 

 

The student-teacher ratio in the WEE program shall not exceed 125 students per full-time 

equivalent certificated teacher-coordinator.  (Education Code 46300) 

 

 

248



AR6178.1(b) 

 

Work Experience Education (continued) 
 

The minimum day for students enrolled in a WEE program shall be four periods totaling 

at least 180 minutes in duration, unless the school or student meets one of the conditions 

specified in Education Code 46144 or 46147.  (Education Code 46144, 46147) 

 
(cf. 6112 - School Day) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

 

A WEE program offered during the summer shall be conducted in the same time period 

as the regular summer school program and shall conform to all appropriate laws and 

regulations applicable to WEE. 

 
(cf. 6177 - Summer School) 

 

A student shall be granted up to 40 semester periods of credit for WEE within the 

following limits:  (Education Code 51760.3; 5 CCR 1635) 

 

1. For exploratory WEE, the student may earn 10 semester periods for each 

semester, with a maximum of 20 semester periods earned in two semesters. 

 

2. For either general or vocational WEE, the student may earn 10 semester 

periods for each semester, with a maximum of 40 semester periods. 

 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 

 

In order to receive credit for satisfactory completion of a general or career technical WEE 

program, a student shall be age 16 years or older.  However, a student who is under age 

16 may be granted credit under any of the following conditions:  (Education Code 

51760.3) 

 

1. The student is enrolled in grade 11 or higher. 

 

2. The principal certifies that the student needs the program in order to pursue 

employment opportunities or to encourage the student’s continuing enrollment 

as  a full-time student. 
 

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

 

The student is a student with disabilities who has an individualized education program 

prescribes the type of training for which participation in a WEE program is deemed 

appropriate. 

 

 

 

249



AR6178.1(c) 

 

Work Experience Education (continued) 
 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

 

 

Cooperative Career Technical Education Program/Community Classrooms 

 

To be eligible for program participation, a student shall be concurrently enrolled in a 

career technical education (CTE) course or program approved by the California 

Department of Education and shall meet other criteria specified in 5 CCR 10103 as 

applicable.  (5 CCR 10082, 10103) 

 

Teachers assigned to the program shall locate and select training stations to provide 

participating students with unpaid on-the-job learning experiences in the specific 

occupation related to the approved course or program.  (5 CCR 10086, 10107) 

 

Related classroom instruction shall be provided in at least one instructional period per 

week, with a minimum equivalency of three instructional periods, of at least 50 minutes 

each, per week.  (5 CCR 10085, 10106) 

 

Cooperative CTE Program 

 

The cooperative CTE program teacher shall make at least one visitation every four weeks 

to each employer to ensure that the provisions of the training agreement are being met 

and that students are acquiring the competencies identified in their individual training 

plans.  One out of every two visits to the training station shall include an observation of 

the student engaged in on-the-job training experiences.  (5 CCR 10109) 

 

Community Classrooms 

 

The community classroom teacher shall make at least one visitation every three weeks to 

consult with the work supervisor, observe students at the training station, provide 

instruction, and ensure that students are acquiring the competencies identified in their 

individual training plans.  Each visitation shall include an observation of the student 

engaged in on-the-job training experiences.  (5 CCR 10088) 

 

Students shall be granted academic credit for satisfactory completion of the program. The 

teacher shall be responsible for evaluating the student's performance in the CTE course 

and, with the assistance of the employer, the student's participation at the training station.  

(5 CCR 10081, 10102) 

 

 

 

 

 

250



AR6178.1(d) 

 

Work Experience Education (continued) 

 

Job Shadowing 

 

The program coordinator shall identify job shadowing placements with the goal of  

providing students with exposure to a broad range of career options and employment 

settings. 

 

The program coordinator shall supervise job shadowing activities, including the 

coordination of the student's and employer's schedules and consultation with the student's 

other teachers when necessary. 

 

Participating students may attend job shadowing opportunities for no less than three 

hours and no more than 25 hours in one semester, intersession, or summer school session.  

(Education Code 51769) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation     MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved:  December 13, 2011        Madera, California 

revised:  

251



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:    August 28, 2012 
 
Subject:  Request Approval of the Madera Unified School District Strategic 

Plan 
 
Responsible Staff:  Gustavo Balderas, Superintendent  
    
Agenda Placement:    Old Business 
 
Background/ rationale:   
 
The 2012-2015 Madera Strategic Plan will set a roadmap for student learning and achievement.  
Thirty-five school district employees and community stakeholders developed the plan throughout 
the 2011-12 school year.  Ongoing input and feedback from other school staff, elected officials, 
parents, students, and our Board of Trustees helped in the drafting the final version of the plan.  
Our Goal 
Madera: Unified to ensure every student is educated for COLLEGE, equipped for CAREER, and 
empowered with CHARACTER. 
Four Pillars 
The four pillars of the Strategic Plan, the building blocks of the Madera Unified School District's 
core instructional practice, include: 

• Equitable access to rigorous high-level programs 
• Data-driven professional learning and collaboration  
• Safe and Healthy Environments for Learning and Work  
• Strong Relationships with Families and Community 

 
Vital Signs 
 
Seven vital signs will be monitored and analyzed to assess how well the District is progressing 
towards the achievement of the four pillars.  These seven vital signs include: 
 
1.  Self-responsibility, self-discipline and initiative 
2.  Critical thinking and problem-solving 
3.  Proficiency in all subjects 
4.  Meaningful participation in class, school and community 
5.  Acquisition of positive life skills 
6.  Closing the :"achievement gap" and accelerating learning for all student groups 
7.  Successful transitions from school-level to school level 
 
Madera: Unified for Student Success! 
 
Financial impact: 
None 
 
 

252



Superintendent’s recommendation: 
The Superintendent recommends approval of the Madera Unified Strategic Plan 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 
 

• Madera Unified Strategic Plan 

253



2012-2015 Strategic Plan 
Madera Unified School District 

Madera, California 

 

 

 

 

 
Madera: Unified for Student Success! 

 

 

 

Gustavo Balderas  

Superintendent of Schools 

 

 

 

August 2012 

254



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PERFORMANCE Fact, Inc., led by Mutiu O. Fagbayi (President/CEO), facilitated and compiled 

this Strategic Plan.   PERFORMANCE Fact, Inc. provides tools and technical assistance to 

state education departments, districts, schools and related institutions regarding strategic 

planning and school improvement, leadership development and building trust.  

 

PERFORMANCE Fact, Inc. 

333 Hegenberger Road, Suite 204, Oakland, CA 94621 

Phone: (510) 568-7944 

Fax: (510) 568-7991 

 

Website: www.performancefact.com 
Email: contact@performancefact.com 

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
Gustavo Balderas 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ricardo Arredondo  

Lynn Cogdill  

Robert E. Garibay 

Jose Rodriguez  

Michael Salvador  

Ray G. Seibert 

Maria Velarde-Garcia 

Madera: Unified for Student Success! 
 

2012 –2015 Strategic Plan 

Madera Unified School District 

Madera, California 

2
255

http://www.performancefact.com/


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

  Page 

One About Madera Unified School District 

 

5 

Two Executive Summary 

 

12 

Three The Planning Process  

 

14 

Four 

 

Assessment of Current State 
 

 Analysis of current state of student achievement 

 Student voice – What they said 

 Reflection on professional practices 

 Assessment of Current State of Standards-aligned 

Instructional System 

 Assessment of Current State of Operations, Supports 

and Services 

 Feedback from Madera USD stakeholders and partners 

 

18 

Five 

 

The Recommendations 
 

 The Goal and Vital Signs of student learning 

 The Four Pillars and Core Commitments 

 The Key Actions 

 

40 

Six Appendix 
 

 Members of the Core Planning Team 

 2012-2015 Instructional Focus 

 

 

54 

 

3
256



 

 

 
 

“Never doubt that a small group of 

thoughtful, committed citizens can 

change the world.  Indeed, it is the 

only thing that ever has.” 

- Margaret Mead 

 
 

This Strategic Plan is a statement of the 

aspirations of the Madera Community for 

all our students. 

 

Like all plans, it must be implemented well, 

through good times and lean, before its 

promise can become a reality for our 

children and our community. 

 

Although there will be challenges along 

the way, it is our hope that Madera will 

always have a “small group of thoughtful, 

committed citizens” who will lead and 

motivate us all to follow-through on the 

aspirations we have expressed in this 

Strategic Plan. 

 

And in doing so, we will remain  

Madera: Unified for Student Success! 

4
257



 

 

CHAPTER ONE 

About Madera 

Unified School 

District 

 
During the 2011-2012 school year, Madera 

Unified School District enrolled approximately 

19,800 students, an increase of almost 1,000 

students compared to five years earlier.  Our 

students reflect the make-up of our 

community. 

 

 83 out of every 100 students (83.2%) were 

Latino/Hispanic. 

 2 out of every 100 students (2.3%) were 

Black or African American. 

 About 9 out of every 100 students (8.6%) 

were non-Hispanic White. 

 32 out of every 100 students (31.6%) were 

English language learners. 

 6 out of every 100 students (6.1%) were 

Special Education students. 

 83 out of every 100 students (82.6%) 

came from socio-economically 

disadvantaged, or low-income homes. 

 Out of every 100 students, about 51 were 

Male, and 49 Female. 

 

In the past five years, growth in student 

enrollment occurred primarily with the 

Latino/Hispanic subgroup, and, to a lesser 

extent, with the Asian population.  In 

contrast, enrollment of African American and 

White subgroups dropped appreciably 

between 2007 and 2012. 

 

Madera USD maintains 25 school sites.  There 

are 13 Kindergarten-to-Grade 6 elementary 

buildings; 3 Grades 7-8 middle schools; 3 K-8 

sites; 2 high schools; and 4 Alternative 

Education/Preschool sites. 

 

Madera USD employed about 1,571 people 

during 2011-2012 school year.  Of these, 875 

were teachers, 613 support personnel, and 

83 were school and district-level 

administrators.  

 

5
258



Regarding student achievement and school 

performance, the results have been mixed 

based on the data for the past three years 

(2008-2011).  

 At the Elementary level, the number of 

students who met or exceeded the state 

standards (“proficient/advanced”) in 

Mathematics oscillated between 11 out 

of every 20 students and 12 out of every 

20 students during the past three years.  

In Reading/Language Arts, the number of 

“proficient/advanced” students varied 

between 8 out of every 20 and 10 out of 

every 20 in Grades 2, 4, 5, and 6 

 Student performance in Mathematics 

beyond the Elementary grades has been 

particularly low during the past few years. 

About 5 out of every 20 students passed 

the Algebra I tests; about 1 in 20 passed 

the Algebra II tests; and fewer than 3 out 

of every 20 were “proficient/advanced” 

in Geometry. 

 On the California High School Exit Exams 

(CAHSEE), slightly less than half of 

students who took the tests passed the 

CHSEE  between 2008-2011. 

 Twenty-five out of 26 schools in the district 

did “not meet AYP” in 2011.  

Consequently, nearly all the schools in 

the district have been designated “PI” – 

or “Program Improvement” – schools.  

The district as a whole did “not meet 

AYP” and has been designated a “PI 3” 

school system. 

 Six out of 26 schools in Madera USD had 

“API” scores above 800, the level at 

which a school is considered “high 

performing” by the California 

Department of Education.  

 

Although there have been pockets of 

significant gains in student achievement in 

recent years and many more schools are 

making some progress, our district has a long 

way to go to ensure successful learning for 

our students.  That goal unifies our school and 

our community.  This Strategic Plan – Madera: 

Unified for Student Success – is our roadmap 

for that journey. 

 

 

 

6
259



 

7
260



 

8
261



 

9
262



 

10
263



 

11
264



 

CHAPTER TWO 

Executive Summary 
This strategic plan is a call to action for the 

Madera Community.  It is a statement of our 

hopes and dreams for our schools and the 

education of all our students, without 

exception. A broad cross-section of Madera 

parents, students, educators, and community 

leaders participated in the development of this 

strategic plan. 

 

 

The Goal and Vital Signs of Student 

Learning 
 

In Madera, we are committed to educating the whole child through high expectations, 

community collaboration and shared responsibility for each student’s health, safety, and 

success in life. 

 

Our Goal 

 

Madera: Unified to ensure every student is educated for College, equipped for Career, and 

empowered with Character. 

 

The Vital Signs of Student Growth & Development 

  

We want our students to experience continuous academic growth, embody academic 

tenacity, and to model socio-emotional resiliency.  Therefore, we will monitor and thoroughly 

analyze: 

 

1. Self-responsibility, self-discipline and initiative 

 

2. Critical thinking and problem-solving 

 

3. Proficiency in all subjects 

 

4. Meaningful participation in class, school and community 

 

5. Acquisition of positive life skills 

 

6. Closing the “achievement gap” and accelerating learning for all student groups 

 

7. Successful transitions from level-to-level (Prekindergarten-Elementary-Secondary-post-

Secondary) 

12
265



 

 

The “Four Pillars”  
 

Our FOUR PILLARS are the building blocks of our professional practices; they frame what we must 

do well in every classroom, in every school, and system-wide to ensure success for all students, 

without exception. 

 

 

Our first Pillar – EQUITABLE ACCESS TO RIGOROUS HIGH-LEVEL PROGRAMS – ensures that 

curriculum, standards-based instruction, and programs provide all students with equitable 

access and opportunity for achievement.   

 

Our second Pillar – DATA-DRIVEN PROFESSIONAL LEARNING & COLLABORATION – promotes 

meaningful collaboration and professional learning to improve and shift practices in every 

classroom, every school, and every district-level department. 

 

Our third Pillar – SAFE AND HEALTHY ENVIRONMENTS FOR LEARNING & WORK – focuses on school-

level and district-wide culture and structures that support the personal safety of the students, 

staff and community with fair and consistent expectations. 

 

Our fourth Pillar – STRONG RELATIONSHIPS WITH FAMILIES & COMMUNITY – recognizes that schools 

can’t do it alone.  Therefore, we will initiate and sustain relationships among home-school-

community through shared responsibility for student success, proactive communication and 

meaningful stakeholder “voice.”  

 

The Four Pillars and corresponding Commitments provide a consistent framework for day-to-day 

action, allocating resources, assessing the impact of taxpayers’ investments in our public 

schools, and accelerating student achievement in Madera schools. 

 

 

 

Getting Desired Results Demands Discipline! 
 

This strategic plan is the beginning, not the end.  Realizing our hopes and dreams for our students 

and our community rests on disciplined implementation of the priorities outlined in this plan.  That 

takes each of us doing our part well, and all of us working together to ensure success for all 

students.   

 

As we do so, we will make manifest our ultimate goal: Madera: Unified for Student Success!

13
266



 

CHAPTER THREE 

The Planning 

Process 

The strategic planning process for Madera 

Unified School District was commissioned by 

Superintendent Gustavo Balderas and the 

Board of Education.  The purpose of the 

exercise was to develop a strategic plan 

that: 

1. Clarifies Madera’s goal for student 

learning and achievement 

2. Outlines the roadmap for accomplishing 

that goal 

3. Embraces the diverse “voices” of the 

district’s internal and external 

stakeholders 

4. Mobilizes leadership for courageous 

action at all levels 

 

A Core Planning Team, broadly 

representative of school district employees 

and community stakeholders, developed 

the plan between February–May 2012, with  

ongoing input and feedback from other 

school staffs, elected officials, parents, and 

students.  The planning process was 

developed and facilitated by Performance 

Fact, Inc., led by  Mr. Mutiu O. Fagbayi 

(President/CEO). 

 

Why Plan? 

A primary aim of planning is unity of 

purpose, or alignment. Without a plan, there 

is no focus or clear direction. A results-

focused plan is the first step toward making 

the future you envision manifest as reality. 

Regardless of the level of planning – long-

range strategic planning, continuous school 

14
267



improvement planning or operational 

planning – the intent is the same: getting 

people, practices and programs on the 

same page, going in the same direction, at 

the same time. 

 

This alignment process enables the school 

system and its community partners to 

develop a continuous improvement plan 

that focuses everyone on the district’s core 

mission: ensuring successful learning for 

every student, without exception. 

 

Performance Fact’s framework for 

developing the plan emphasizes in-depth 

analysis of student data from multiple 

perspectives, identifying the “root causes” 

of the current state of student achievement, 

and developing concrete solutions to 

address the “root causes”. 

 

Making Every Voice Count 

 

Early in the planning process, the Core Team 

agreed on a set of 6 guiding principles to 

frame the strategic planning exercise: 

 

1. Highest priority: Student learning through 

instructional effectiveness  

2. Leadership commitment and active 

participation 

3. All voices count, all points of view 

welcomed 

4. Transparent process, open to all 

5. Communication using diverse media 

6. Final plan: simple, clear language, 

focused on strong results for students 

15
268



 

A primary purpose of planning is to ensure 

alignment on common purpose.  Therefore, 

the development of Madera USD’s strategic 

plan involved the engagement of diverse 

stakeholders within the Madera Community. 

 

 The Core Planning Team consisted of 

about 35 participants, including 

teachers, school-level administrators, 

district-level leaders and managers, 

parent and community representatives, 

and city/county officials.  The team met 

monthly in full-day or two-day sessions, 

and was responsible for analyzing the 

current state of student learning, 

reflecting on the effectiveness of 

educational programs and professional 

practices, and developing the 

recommendations.  Furthermore, the 

team led the “reality check” phase 

during which feedback and 

suggestions were gathered from the 

staff of each school or from parent and 

community groups, and integrated into 

the final recommendations, as 

appropriate. Union leadership 

participated as well, through their 

membership on the Core Team.  (See 

the Appendix for a list of Core Team 

members). 

 

 The Alignment Team was composed of 

a number of elected officials (including 

the Madera’s Mayor and City Council 

members), business representatives, 

parents, community leaders, and 

selected school district personnel.  This 

16
269



team provided additional 

parent/community perspective on the 

deliberations of the Core Team, 

particularly regarding strengthening 

coherence and alignment between 

Madera USD and other leaders and 

organizations that also serve students 

and their families.  The Alignment Team 

met twice during the planning process. 

 

 Through the “Reality Check” exercise, 

teachers and administrators in every 

school provided feedback and 

suggestions regarding the Goal, Vital 

Signs, and Core Strategies proposed by 

the Core Team and Alignment Team.  

The “Reality Check” solicited the voices 

of Madera USD staff that were not 

members of the Core Team.  A similar 

exercise occurred with site principals 

and other administrators who were not 

on the Core Team or Alignment Team. 

 

 The district held two Parent/Community 

Forums at two district schools to solicit 

input and feedback from parents and 

community partners. 

 

 Three groups of students – elementary, 

middle and high school students - 

participated in focus group discussions 

facilitated by Performance Fact’s 

President/CEO.  Each student group 

reflected the diversity among Madera 

students, and included high-performing 

and under-performing students, fluent 

English as well as English learners, 

regular education and special 

education pupils, and students from 

diverse racial/ethnic or socio-economic 

backgrounds.  Nearly 40 students in 

grades 4-12 participated in the focus 

group sessions. 

 

By providing opportunities for meaningful 

engagement of Madera’s diverse 

stakeholders, the strategic planning process 

produced a set of recommendations that 

reflect the aspirations and priorities of the 

Madera Community, thereby strengthening 

the likelihood of their commitment to 

disciplined implementation of the 

recommendations in the strategic plan.

 

17
270



CHAPTER FOUR 

Assessment of 

Current State 

This Chapter summarizes highlights of the 

current state of educational outcomes and 

programs in Madera Unified School District.  

Specifically: 

 It provides an overview of student 

achievement results and the current 

levels of performance of Madera 

schools; 

 It highlights comments and suggestions 

provided by a group of approximately 

40 Madera students (in grades 4-12) 

regarding their educational 

experiences; 

 It describes the current state of 

educational programs in the core 

subjects, including Mathematics, 

Reading/Language Arts, Science, 

Social Studies, English Language 

Development (ELD), Special Education, 

and World Languages. 

 It summarizes the Core Team’s 

assessment of professional practices 

based on 16 research-based high-

leverage practices, or “16 Pillars”; 

 It provides an overview of the 

feedback from stakeholders regarding 

parent and community engagement in 

the Madera school system. 

 

Analysis of Current State 

of Student Achievement  

 

The Core Planning Team used Performance 

Fact’s 4-Lens Data Analysis Protocol™ 

(Figure 1) to analyze student data. The 4-

Lens protocol is the first step of the Data 

Summit™ process.  The 4-Lens protocol is a 

simple but comprehensive way to probe all 

kinds of data, including data from 

benchmark assessments, state tests, survey 

data, attendance and disciplinary referrals. 

By looking at the data through “four lenses,” 

practitioners acquire a richer understanding 

of “what the data says.”  

“All students will learn at high levels when 

instruction meets their needs.  What a student 

has not learned well yet, is something that 

she/he has not been taught well yet.     

 

Student learning, then, is an “effect” whose 

“cause” lies in the quality and effectiveness of 

educational practices.    

 

 If we want improved outcomes for students, 

the starting point must be the continuous 

improvement of teaching practices, 

leadership practices and organizational 

practices, because they are the precursors to 

student learning.”  
-MOF 

18
271



 
Below are highlights of Areas of Strength 

and Areas of Concern based on each Lens.  

To ensure that all stakeholders can 

participate in the data analysis exercise, 

Performance Fact provided the Core Team 

with easy-to-understand data charts 

corresponding to each Lens. 

 

 

4.1.1 DATA ANALYSIS FOR LENS 1: COHORT  

Lens 1: GROWTH focuses on “value-added” 

in learning and achievement for identical 

group of students or cohort. 

Figure 2 shows the performance of Madera 

students on the California Standards Tests 

(CST) in Mathematics and English Language 

Arts (ELA) between 2008-2009 and 2010-2011 

school years.  Figure 3 shows data for the 

graduation and dropout rates for the 2009-

2010 and 2010-2011 cohort of high school 

graduates; the latter results were obtained 

directly from the California Department of 

Education’s DataQuest database.

Figure 1.  4-Lens Data Analysis Protocol 

19
272



 

 

 

 

Figure 2.  Number of Students Proficient/Advanced, out of every 20 

Students 

20
273



Areas of Strength based on Lens 1: COHORT 

data 

 Mathematics achievement for the 

Cohort held steady as students 

progressed through Grades 2, 3, and 4.  

The proportion of students who were 

proficient/advanced in Grade 2 in 

2008-2009 remained relatively constant 

when those students became 4th 

graders in 2010-2011. 

 Student cohorts performed significantly 

better in Mathematics than English 

Language Arts in the primary grades 

(Grades 2-4). 

 District-wide, high school graduation 

rates increased appreciably between 

2009-2010 and 2010-2011: from 78.5% to 

80.9%.  The 2.4 percentage-point 

increase is higher than the state-wide 

increase of 1.5 percentage-points 

between 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 

school years. 

 The 2010-2011 graduation rates for 

Madera USD’s are significantly higher 

Figure 3.  Cohort Graduation and Dropout Rates 

 

 TOTAL # OF 

COHORT 

STUDENTS 

# COHORT 

GRADUATES 

COHORT 

GRADUATION 

RATE 

# COHORT 

DROPOUTS 

COHORT 

DROPOUT RATE 

2010-2011 

All Students 1177 952 80.9% 143 12.1% 

Hispanic 947 746 80.3% 117 12.4% 

Asian 17 16 94.1% * * 

African 

American 
38 31 81.6% * 15.8%% 

White 158 133 84.2% 18 11.4% 

2009-2010 

All Students 1165 915 78.5% 169 14.5 

Hispanic 904 700 77.4% 136 15.0% 

Asian 18 17 94.4% * * 

African 

American 
42 36 85.7% * 7.1% 

White 174 146 83.9% 20 11.5% 

 

21
274



than the state-wide figures for all 

subgroups except White students: for 

Hispanics, 80.3% in Madera vs. 70.4% 

state-wide; for Asians, 94.1% vs. 89.7%; 

for African Americans, 81.6% vs. 62.9%; 

for non-Hispanic Whites, 84.2% vs. 85.5%. 

 Similarly, Madera dropout rates in 2010-

2010 were lower than the state 

average for all subgroups except non-

Hispanic White students: for Hispanics, 

12.1% vs. 14.4%; for African Americans, 

15.8% vs. 24.7%; for White students, 

11.4% vs. 8.9%.  The district-wide 

dropout rate is also lower than the state 

average: 12.1% for Madera USD vs. 

14.4% across California districts. 

 

Areas of Concern based on Lens 1: Cohort 

data 

 Performance of the student cohorts 

declined as they progressed from 

Grade 4 through Grades 5, 6, and 7. 

 For nearly all Cohorts across the 3-year 

span, fewer than 10 out of every 20 

students were proficient/advanced in 

English Language Arts at each grade 

level (Grades 2-11).   

 In general, there was marginal growth 

in the performance of student Cohorts 

in Mathematics and English Language 

Arts between 2008 and 2011. 

 Lower graduation rates and higher 

dropout rates for cohort of White 

students, compared to the state-wide 

figures for 2010-2011.  The dropout rate 

was 11.2% for Madera’s White students, 

compared to 8.9% statewide. 

 Cohort dropout rates for African 

American students more than doubled 

between 2009-2010 and 2010-2011: 

from 7.1% in 2009-2010 to 15.8% in 2010-

2011. 

 

 

4.1.2 DATA ANALYSIS FOR LENS 2: 

CONSISTENCY  

 

Lens 2: CONSISTENCY investigates learning 

and achievement for different groups of 

students, or non-cohort. Figure 4 shows the 

performance of Madera students on the 

California Standards Tests (CST) in 

Mathematics and English Language Arts 

(ELA) between 2008-2009 and 2010-2011 

school years.  Figure 5 summarizes the 

performance of Madera schools on the 

Annual Yearly Progress (“AYP”) 

accountability metric of the federal No 

Child Left Behind (NCLB) law, as well as on 

California’s Academic Performance Index 

(“API”).  

 

 

22
275



 

Figure 4. 

23
276



 

Figure 5. 

24
277



 

Areas of Strength based on Lens 2: 

CONSISTENCY data 

 At the Elementary level, the number of 

students who met or exceeded the 

state standards 

(“proficient/advanced”) in 

Mathematics oscillated between 11 out 

of every 20 students and 12 out of every 

20 students during the past three years. 

 Six schools in Madera USD had “API” 

scores above 800, the level at which a 

school is considered “high performing” 

by the California Department of 

Education.  The API, or Academic 

Performance Index, is a California-

specific measure of school 

performance. 

 

Areas of Concern based on Lens 2: 

CONSISTENCY data 

 Student performance in English 

Language Arts (ELA) is significantly 

lower than in Mathematics.  The 

number of “proficient/advanced” 

students in ELA varied between 8 out of 

every 20 and 10 out of every 20 in 

Grades 2, 4, 5, and 6, compared to 

about 12 out of every 20 students in 

Mathematics.   

 At Grade 3, student performance is 

appreciably low for three years during 

between 2008-2009 and 2010-2011, with 

only about 6 out of every 20 students 

“proficient/advanced” in 

Reading/Language Arts. 

 At the 7th grade, fewer than 8 out of 

every 20 students were 

“proficient/advanced” in Mathematics 

between 2008-2011; in 

Reading/Language Arts, between 8 

and 9 out of every 20 students met 

state standards. 

 In Grades 8-11, student performance 

on the Reading/Language Arts tests 

has been inconsistent from grade to 

grade: approximately 9 out of every 20 

students were “proficient/advanced” in 

Grades 8 and 9, compared to about 7 

out of every 20 students in Grades 10 

and 11. 

 Student performance in Mathematics 

beyond the Elementary grades has 

been particularly low during the past 

few years. About 5 out of every 20 

students passed the Algebra I tests; 

about 1 in 20 passed the Algebra II 

tests; and fewer than 3 out of every 20 

were “proficient/advanced” in 

Geometry. 

 On the California High School Exit 

Exams (CAHSEE), slightly less than half of 

students who took the tests passed the 

CHSEE between 2008-2011. 

25
278



 Twenty-five out of 26 schools in the 

district did “not meet AYP” in 2011.  AYP 

– or Annual Yearly Progress – is the 

accountability system associated with 

the federal No Child Left Behind NCLB) 

law, and is based on the proportion of 

students in every subgroup who 

performed at the 

“proficient/advanced” levels on the 

state tests.  Consequently, nearly all the 

schools in the district have been 

designated “PI” – or “Program 

Improvement” – schools.  The district as 

a whole did “not meet AYP” and has 

been designated a “PI 3” school 

system. 

 

4.1.3 DATA ANALYSIS FOR LENS 3: EQUITY  

 

Lens 3: EQUITY provides insights into the 

learning and achievement by students by 

subgroup.  The Core Planning Team 

analyzed subgroup data across all grade 

levels and multiple subjects, as well as 

district-wide AYP AND API results 

disaggregated by relevant student 

subgroups.  A sampling of the datasets can 

be found below (Figures 6 to 10). 

 

 

 

Figure 6.  Madera USD: 3-Year District-wide AYP Results by Student Subgroup 

 ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS  MATHEMATICS 

 2008-

2009 

2009-

2010 

2010-

2011 

 2008-

2009 

2009-

2010 

2010-

2011 

All Students No No No  Yes No No 

African American No No No  No No No 

Asian Yes Yes Yes  Yes Yes Yes 

Hispanic/Latino No No No  Yes No No 

White Yes Yes Yes  Yes Yes No 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged No No No  Yes No No 

English Learners No No No  Yes No No 

Students with Disabilities No No No  No No No 

26
279



Figure 7.  Madera USD: 3-Year District-wide API Results by Student Subgroup 

  

2008-2009 

 

2009-2010 

 

2010-2011 

 2-year API 

Change 

(2009-2011) 

District-wide -- 734 735  -- 

African American 698 692 673  -25 

Asian 833 831 845  +10 

Hispanic/Latino 717 723 725  + 8 

White 798 810 811  +13 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 712 719 720  + 8 

English Learners 696 695 699  + 3 

Students with Disabilities 607 597 600  - 7 

Figure 8. Student Performance on CAHSEE - ELA 

Figure 9. Student Performance on CAHSEE - Mathematics 

27
280



 

Areas of Strength based on Lens 3: EQUITY 

data 

 Across the board, Asian students 

performed better than other 

numerically significant subgroups.  Their 

AYP, API, CAHSEE and CST results were 

consistently strong. 

 Performance of White students has 

been quite strong, too, across multiple 

measures: AYP, API, CAHSEE and CST 

(except with respect to AYP results for 

Math in 2011). 

 Proportion of Hispanic students passing 

ELA CAHSEE increased from 39% (2009-

2010) to 50% (2010-2011).  There was a 

slight increase in the Math CAHSEE 

pass-rates during the same period, from 

41% to 43%. 

Areas of Concern based on Lens 3: EQUITY 

data 

 Performance of African American, 

English Learners and Students with 

Disabilities lagged behind the results for 

other subgroups by a significant 

Figure 10. Student Performance in Algebra I & Algebra II 

28
281



margin.  The API for each of the three 

subgroups has remained below 700 

during the past 3 years. 

 Mathematics achievement for English 

learners has been extremely low: about 

19 out of every 20 EL students did not 

pass the CST Geometry test or Algebra I 

or Algebra II or High School Summative 

Math.  Results for Hispanics, African 

American students and Students with 

Disabilities were equally abysmal 

between 2009-2010 and 2010-2011. 

 Overall, student performance in 

Mathematics at the secondary level 

was significantly worse than at the 

elementary level for virtually all 

subgroups. 

 

4.1.4 DATA ANALYSIS FOR LENS 4: 

STANDARDS  

Lens 4: STANDARDS tells us about student 

mastery of the academic standards that 

would prepare them for success at the next 

level.  The chart illustrates student 

performance at the content cluster level for 

the Mathematics and English Language Arts 

examinations (CST).  The results for 2008-2009 

and 2009-2012 school years (not shown) are 

similar to the data for 2010-2011, shown 

below: 

Figure 11. Student Performance on the CTS by Content Clusters 

29
282



Areas of Strength based on Lens 4: 

STANDARDS data 

 Moderately stronger student 

performance in Mathematics in the 

primary grades than at the secondary 

level.  

 Elementary students performed better 

on the Statistics, Data Analysis & 

Probability content cluster than on any 

other Math cluster. 

 

Areas of Concern based on Lens 4: 

STANDARDS data 

 ELA results at the content cluster level 

showed limited growth during the past 

few years. 

 Writing Strategies and Reading 

Comprehension were weakest content 

clusters.

4.1.5 HIGHEST-PRIORITY AREAS OF STREGTH AND AREAS OF CONCERN  

 

 HIGHEST-PRIORITY AREAS OF STRENGTH & AREAS OF CONCERN 

BASED ON ANALYSIS OF STUDENT DATA 

Strength / 

Concern 

1. 

 

Mathematics achievement for the Cohort held steady as students progressed 

through Grades 2, 3, and 4.  The proportion of students who were 

proficient/advanced in Grade 2 in 2008-2009 remained relatively constant 

when those students became 4th graders in 2010-2011. 

Strength 

2. District-wide, high school graduation rates increased appreciably between 

2009-2010 and 2010-2011: from 78.5% to 80.9%.  The 2.4 percentage-point 

increase is higher than the state-wide increase of 1.5 percentage-points 

between 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 school years. 

Strength 

3. Madera dropout rates in 2010-2011 were lower than the state average for all 

subgroups (except non-Hispanic White students). 

Strength 

4. Six schools in Madera USD had “API” scores above 800, the level at which a 

school is considered “high performing” by the California Department of 

Education. 

Strength 

5. Proportion of Hispanic students passing ELA CAHSEE increased from 39% (2009-

2010) to 50% (2010-2011).  There was a slight increase in the Math CAHSEE pass-

rates during the same period, from 41% to 43%. 

Strength 

6. Moderately stronger student performance in Mathematics in the primary 

grades than at the secondary level. Elementary students performed better on 

the Statistics, Data Analysis & Probability content cluster than on any other 

Math cluster. 

Strength 

30
283



7. For nearly all Cohorts across the 3-year span, fewer than 10 out of every 20 

students were proficient/advanced in English Language Arts at each grade 

level (Grades 2-11). 

Concern 

8. Lower graduation rates and higher dropout rates for cohort of White students, 

compared to the state-wide figures for 2010-2011.  The dropout rate was 11.2% 

for Madera’s White students, compared to 8.9% statewide. 

Concern 

9. Cohort dropout rates for African American students more than doubled 

between 2009-2010 and 2010-2011: from 7.1% in 2009-2010 to 15.8% in 2010-

2011. 

Concern 

10. Twenty-five out of 26 schools in the district did “not meet AYP” in 2011.  AYP – or 

Annual Yearly Progress.  The district as a whole did “not meet AYP” also, and 

has been designated a “PI 3” school system. 

Concern 

11. Student performance in English Language Arts (ELA) is significantly lower than 

in Mathematics.  The number of “proficient/advanced” students in ELA varied 

between 8 out of every 20 and 10 out of every 20 in Grades 2, 4, 5, and 6, 

compared to about 12 out of every 20 students in Mathematics. 

Concern 

12. On the California High School Exit Exams (CAHSEE), slightly less than half of 

students who took the tests passed the CAHSEE between 2008-2011. 

Concern 

13. Student performance in Mathematics beyond the Elementary grades has 

been particularly low during the past few years. About 5 out of every 20 

students passed the Algebra I tests; about 1 in 20 passed the Algebra II tests; 

and fewer than 3 out of every 20 were “proficient/advanced” in Geometry. 

Concern 

14. Performance of African American, English Learners and Students with 

Disabilities lagged behind the results for other subgroups by a significant 

margin.  The API for each of the three subgroups has remained below 700 

during the past 3 years. 

Concern 

15. Mathematics achievement for English learners has been extremely low: about 

19 out of every 20 EL students did not pass the CST Geometry test or Algebra I 

or Algebra II or High School Summative Math.  Results for Hispanics, African 

American students and Students with Disabilities were equally abysmal 

between 2009-2010 and 2010-2011. 

Concern 

16. Overall, student performance in Mathematics at the secondary level was 

significantly worse than at the elementary level for virtually all subgroups. 

Concern 

17. Writing Strategies and Reading Comprehension were weakest content clusters, 

based on the CST data for English Language Arts (ELA). 

Concern 

 

31
284



 

Student Voice – What 

They Said 

Three groups of students – one Elementary, 

one Middle Grades and one High School – 

participated in a focus group discussion 

about their educational experiences, at 

home, at school, and within the community.  

A total of 37 students took part in the 60-90-

minute conversations, facilitated by Mutiu 

Fagbayi (President/CEO, Performance Fact, 

Inc.).  Below are highlights of the students’ 

comments and suggestions regarding ways 

to improve their educational experiences. 

 

4.2.1 Elementary Students 

What’s going well 

 “The teachers are really nice.” / “I like 
my teachers” 

 Get along with other students and 
classmates 

 Student safety is a plus– 14 out of 16 

students “feel safe most of the time”. 

“Teachers are visible during recess and 

after school”; “There is always a 

grownup around to make sure 
everything is fine.” 

 Students are nice to each other 

 

What needs improvement 

 Bullying; picking on other kids for no 
reason 

 After-school support for kids who need 

it; current program is non-academic – 
“It’s like babysitting” 

 More help from teachers re: Math 

 More time for Science 

 Playground equipment 

 “Everybody tolerates other people, but 

are not necessarily nice” to other 
students 

 Level of rigor in Math rated “too easy” 

by 6 out o 16 students; for Reading, 13 
out of 16 rated rigor “just right” 

 Better and more playground 
equipment 

 Healthier options during lunch; 
vegetarian meals, like salads. 

 More time for lunch – “15 minutes is too 

short” 

 Better substitute teachers 

 More enrichment opportunities – 

“higher achieving students are getting 
bored” 

 Some teachers have different 

academic standards for different kids – 

14 out of 16 kids mentioned that 

teacher expectations vary from student 
to student 

 

4.2.2 Middle Grades Students 

What’s going well 

 Like the teachers – “… they are good 
teachers”; “…really nice teachers” 

 Sports clubs (e.g., volleyball, FCA, BEAR 
Helpers 

 Counselors! Counselors! Counselors! 

 Algebra classes 

 Having 60 minutes for lunch 

 

What needs improvement 

 Bullying 

 More time to receive academic help 

from teachers during the school day 
(e.g., lunch time) 

32
285



 Better classroom management; kids 

disrupting classes, kids not disciplined 
when they act 

 Inconsistent enforcement of 
consequences 

 Too many fights during lunch 

 More healthy food 

 Show student sports events on local TV 

 Better subs needed – “… the quality is 
horrible” 

 Students selling drugs outside the school 

– “Do you have a lighter? I want to roll 
this blood” 

 Teacher favoritism toward “better 
students” 

 Differential standards – “some teachers 

have low standards for some [kids], high 
standards for others 

 Inconsistent teacher behavior 
depending on teacher’s mood 

 “Would like to learn more about 
college even while in middle school” 

 

4.2.3 High School Students 

What’s going well 

 Counselors – “they are really helpful”; 
“My counselor knows me 1-on-1” 

 High expectations 

 Administrators, in general 

 “Really great teachers” 

 “Opportunities always there”; multiple 
chances 

 Adults truly want things to get better; 
“always open to improvement” 

 

What needs improvement 

 Drugs – “at least 5 to 7 out of every 10 

kids” use drugs; “even the ‘good’ 
kids…”; very easy access 

 Bullying 

 Poor Substitute teachers 

 Strong Continuation High School 
program --- high demand, high support 

 Inconsistent and inequitable 

enforcement of rules and 
consequences 

 School bus – too many students, too 
few seats, frequent breakdown 

 Large class sizes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33
286



Reflection on 

Professional Practices 

All students will learn at high levels when 

instruction meets their needs.  What a 

student has not learned well yet, is 

something that she/he has not been taught 

well yet.  Following the analysis of the 

current state of student achievement, the 

Core Planning Team used Performance 

Fact’s “root cause” protocol and rubric to 

assess the underlying causes of the current 

state of student learning and achievement. 

 

The participants rated current Madera USD 

teaching practices, leadership practices 

and organizational practices on a set of  

 

research-based 16 high-leverage practices 

(Figure 12), using a 4-point rating rubric that 

offered a consistent interpretation of each 

high-leverage pratice.  The root-cause 

process also guided the identification of the 

“Four Pillars” of the district’s Instructional 

Focus and the other recommendations in 

the strategic plan, described in the next 

Chapter.  The participants applied the rubric 

ratings to five student achievement Areas of 

Strength (S1-S5) and five Areas of Concern 

(C1-C5).  The relative ratings provided a 

“map” of the effectiveness of current 

professional practices in Madera USD.  The 

preponderance of “2” ratings on the map 

was highly correlated to the current state of 

student acheivement in the district, with 

approximately half of all students “meeting 

standards” by most measures. 

Figure 12. Core Team’s Ratings of the Effectiveness of Professional Practices 

1 = Beginning Implementation  3 = Full Implementation 

2 = Partial Implementation 4 = Exemplary Implementation 

 

 

34
287



Figure 13. 16 Research-based High-leverage Practices, or “Pillars” 
 

RESEARCH-BASED HIGH-LEVERAGE PRACTICES FOR “ROOT CAUSE” ASSESSMENT OF 

TEACHING PRACTICES, LEADERSHIP PRACTICES AND ORGANIZATIONAL PRACTICES 
 

 High-leverage Practices  

1. STANDARDS-ALIGNED 

CONSISTENT 

INSTRUCTION 

Curriculum, assessment and teaching are directly aligned with all 

state standards in all content areas and for all students, with 

standards at the center of curriculum planning and student 

learning.  

2. EQUITABLE ACCESS TO 

RIGOROUS, HIGH-LEVEL 

PROGRAMS 

All students have access to challenging, on-standard teaching 

and courses that include coverage of the “power standards” 

and core content.  

3. DIFFERENTIATION Instructional strategies are differentiated to meet the varied 

learning needs of each student.  

4. CULTURALLY 

RESPONSIVE TEACHING 

AND LEARNING 

Instruction reflects students’ prior knowledge, learning styles and 

cultural background; programs and policies integrate the 

perspectives and needs of diverse stakeholders. 

5. DATA-DRIVEN 

CONTINUOUS 

IMPROVEMENT 

School staff uses frequent and timely formative assessments to 

monitor and adjust teaching practices, leadership practices and 

organizational practices.  

6. ACCELERATED 

INTERVENTION 

Students not meeting academic expectations receive immediate 

and targeted academic and social support.  

7. COLLEGIAL 

COLLABORATION AND 

ACCOUNTABILITY 

Staff engage in year-round cycles of inquiry (e.g., Eye on the 

Goal™, Lesson Study), with clear standards of professional 

practice and accountability.  

8. RESULTS-FOCUSED 

PROFESSIONAL 

LEARNING 

Professional learning is linked to instructional priorities, is 

standards-based, has clear goals, and meets the individual 

needs of staff.  

9. HIGH EXPECTATIONS 

FOR ALL 

Beliefs and behaviors reflect commonly held high expectations 

and shared responsibility for professional practices and student 

learning.  

10. EFFECTIVE TEACHER 

FOR EVERY STUDENT, 

EFFECTIVE LEADER FOR 

EVERY SCHOOL 

Staffing assignments ensure equitable distribution of teachers and 

leaders to meet the specific needs of students and schools. 

35
288



11. NEEDS-BASED 

RESOURCE 

ALLOCATION 

School resources are focused on strategies that enhance 

professional practice and accelerate learning for all student 

populations.  

12. SUPPORTS FOR STAFF Teachers, leaders and staff receive timely, focused support and 

intervention (e.g., coaching, mentoring, peer support, targeted 

training).  

13. INSTRUCTIONAL 

LEADERSHIP 

The principal and instructional leadership team articulate a clear 

school vision, and are actively involved in planning, guiding and 

assessing instruction and student learning.  

14. SAFE CLIMATE FOR 

LEARNING AND WORK 

The school culture and structures support the social-emotional 

needs of students, and  standards for student and adult conduct 

are fair and consistently enforced.  

15. EFFECTIVE AND 

EFFICIENT OPERATIONS 

The school has well-established organizational procedures, and 

day-to-day operations run smoothly to facilitate teaching, 

learning and leadership.  

16. STRONG RELATIONSHIPS 

WITH FAMILIES AND 

COMMUNITY 

Trust among home-school-community is nurtured through shared 

responsibility for student success, proactive communication and 

meaningful stakeholder “voice”.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36
289



Figure 14. 

Assessment of Current 

State of Standards-

aligned Instructional 

System 
 

The staff of Madera USD’s Educational 

Services Department conducted a 

comprehensive assessment of the current 

educational programs in the core subjects, 

with particular attention to the quality and 

effectiveness of standards-aligned 

instructional practices in each subject.  For 

each area of focus, they assessed what is 

going well and what needs improvement 

relative to each of the six components of a 

standards-aligned system (Figure 14). 

 

SIX COMPONENTS OF A STANDARDS-

ALIGNED INSTRUCTIONAL SYSTEM 

 

Continuous improvement of core 

instructional programs demands the 

alignment of the six components of a 

standards-aligned instructional system.   

 

The first component – standards – clarifies 

what students need to know, be able to do, 

and be like.  The next three components 

ensure that what we teach (i.e., curriculum), 

how we monitor (i.e., assessments), and 

how we teach (i.e., instruction) are aligned 

to the content and performance standards. 

 

The fifth component – instructional materials 

and resources – calls for appropriate and 

adequate teaching “tools" for teachers and 

their students.  The final component of a 

standards-aligned system is interventions; its 

focus is on timely, accelerated “safety nets” 

that assure equity of access and 

opportunity for successful learning for every 

student, regardless of the student’s 

background, ‘condition,’ or circumstance. 

 

Together, these six components make up a 

standards-aligned instructional system.  All 

six components should be considered when 

assessing the effectiveness of your current 

instructional system and when selecting your 

priorities for continuous improvement of your 

standards-aligned instructional system. 

 
The strategic planning Core Team used the 

initial assessments by the Educational 

Services staff as a starting-point for further 

evaluation of the current state of 

educational programs.    Highlights of their 

comprehensive assessments are available in 

a separate report.  

37
290



Assessment of Operations, Supports and Services 

The following are highlights of the assessment of the current state of district-level services, 

conducted by the staff of the Madera USD Business Office. 
 

 

Department Shift from … Shift to … 

 
Business 

Office 

An accounting-driven system Fully integrate all budgets to best 

serve the students.  User-friendly 

process that can be understood by all 

 

Child Nutrition Guideline-driven Meals of high quality and enjoyed by 

students 

 

Data 

Processing 

“We know best” attitude “What the teacher needs” 

 

Facilities 

Planning 

Self-contained planning Planning collaboratively for the future 

with all stakeholders 

 

Maintenance 

& Operations 

Priorities driven by Maintenance & 

Operation department 

Becoming more customer-service 

oriented relative to the needs of 

teachers and staff; informing teachers 

and staff why we do what we do 

 

Purchasing Centralized requisition processing Site-based requisition process. 

 

Transportation Department-focused system A system that serves sites and students 

 

Security/Gang 

Intervention 

Perceived as a “reactive” system Proactive system that includes building 

relationships with those we serve 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38
291



Feedback from Madera USD Stakeholders and 

Partners 

 
A broad-based team of Madera parents, community leaders, business representations, and 

local government officials participated in an assessment of the current state of the relationship 

between Madera USD and its external stakeholders.  The following are highlights of their 

assessment. 

 

Stakeholder Shift from … Shift to … 

 
Parents/Families 

 

 

Handing out introductory 

information to parents; monthly 

newsletters from school to 

parent; MUSD website; parent 

conferences; school-site 

council; school events (i.e., 

Back to School nights, open 

house). 

Continued school-parent 

communication; more district-

based communication 

regarding district info, as 

opposed to only school-based; 

implement and increase use of 

social media as a 

communication/information 

tool 

 

Community-based 

Organizations 

(including faith-

based groups, 

business, and higher 

education) 

 

Reactive communication to 

service organizations; Principal-

for-the-Day program once per 

year. 

"Adopt-a-School" program; 

inserting district into community 

process; more proactive 

interaction with organizations; 

create opportunities for 

volunteerism; work with internal 

groups to promote 

volunteerism; more frequent 

business-school interaction 

 

Local Governmental 

Agencies (including 

Parks/Community 

Service Dept.) 

 

Limited-use agreements with 

Parks Dept.; little joint-use of 

facilities; community not 

allowed onto campuses after 

school hours. 

Expand relationship with Parks 

Dept. and increase trust; more 

comprehensive use of facilities 

by community; share resources 

and facilities (e.g., Youth 

Center)  

 

Health, Social 

Services & Safety 

Agencies (including 

Police Department, 

Sheriff, Public Health) 

 

 

Entities operating In isolation; 

lack of collaboration between 

Police Department and district; 

one Resource Officer 

employed 

Combine services and efforts 

where possible; increased 

communication and 

collaboration with Public 

Health; use of schools as 

vaccination centers and public 

health resource; employ more 

Resource Officers 

39
292



 

CHAPTER FIVE 

The 

Recommendations 

 

Success does not happen “by chance.”  

Consistently high-performing schools and 

districts do not become that way “by 

accident.”  Rather, sustained student 

performance is an outcome of disciplined 

practices … in every class, in every school, in 

every department, in every part of our 

community. 

 

This section focuses on the consensus 

Recommendations of Madera stakeholders 

regarding the vision and goal for student 

learning, as well as the roadmap for 

achieving the desired outcomes.  

Specifically: 

 

 We clarify our Goal for student learning 

and the Vital Signs we will pay 

attention to along the way. 

 

 We define the “Four Pillars” of our 

teaching practices, leadership 

practices, and organizational 

practices, and our core Commitments 

under each Pillar.  Together, the Four 

Pillars and the Commitments represent 

the capabilities we need and must 

develop to accomplish our Goal for 

student learning; they “frame” our day-

to-day practices, processes and 

procedures. 

 

 We describe specific Key Actions that 

we will implement consistently day-to-

day, in alignment with each core 

Commitment.

40
293



The Goal and Vital Signs of Student Learning 

In Madera, we are committed to educating the whole child through high expectations, 

community collaboration and shared responsibility for each student’s health, safety, and 

success in life. 

 

Our Goal 

 

Madera: Unified to ensure every student is educated for College, 

equipped for Career, and empowered with Character. 

 

The Vital Signs of Student Growth & Development 

  

We want our students to experience continuous academic growth, 

embody academic tenacity, and to model socio-emotional 

resiliency.   

 

Therefore, we will monitor and thoroughly analyze: 

4. Self-responsibility, self-discipline and initiative 

 

5. Critical thinking and problem-solving 

 

6. Proficiency in all subjects 

 

4. Meaningful participation in class, school and community 

 

8. Acquisition of positive life skills 

 

9. Closing the “achievement gap” and accelerating learning for 

all student groups 

 

10. Successful transitions from level-to-level (Prekindergarten-

Elementary-Secondary-post-Secondary) 

 

41
294



1 2 3 4
Pillar #1: EquitablE accEss to 
rigorous HigH-lEvEl Programs

Pillar #2: Data-DrivEn ProfEssional 
lEarning anD collaboration

Pillar #3: safE anD HEaltHy 
EnvironmEnts for lEarning anD Work

Pillar #4: strong rElationsHiPs 
WitH familiEs anD community

commitment 1.1: strong corE acaDEmic Programs
Build and sustain a standards-aligned instructional system that 
promotes a culture of high standards for all students, with the 
expectation that all students complete academic programs of study 
that equip them for success at the next level in school, college and 
career.
 
 
commitment 1.2: consistEnt imPlEmEntation of tHE 
instructional focus
Ensure consistency in teaching practices, leadership practices, and 
organizational practices by implementing the Instructional Focus with 
fidelity in every school.

commitment 2.1: invEsting in ProfEssional groWtH of 
tEacHErs, lEaDErs anD staff
Accelerate instructional effectiveness by investing in evidence-based 
collaboration, differentiated professional development, timely support, 
and leadership development for teachers, leaders and staff.
 
 
 
commitment 2.2: Data-informED culturE
Reinforce continuous improvement and innovation by making decisions 
based on fact instead of opinion, using data-driven cycle of inquiry, and 
motivating professional accountability among teachers, leaders and 
staff.

commitment 3.1: safE, caring anD rEsPEctful 
EnvironmEnt 
Maintain a caring, respectful and drug-free environment for learning 
and work, with equitable reinforcement of the guidelines of conduct 
for students and adults, and nurture socio-emotional resilience in our 
students through collaboration among school, home and community.
 
 
commitment 3.2: rEsPonsivE District suPPorts anD 
sErvicEs 
Empower our schools in carrying out their mission by providing sound 
stewardship of resources, effective and responsive services, and 
ongoing training for district-level and support staffs.

commitment 4.1: ProactivE outrEacH anD communication 
WitH ParEnts anD community PartnErs 
Embrace parents and families as partners in student learning through 
mutual respect, culturally inclusive practices, and open communication, and 
nurture enduring partnerships with our external stakeholders by linking 
school-based learning with the world of work, aligning resources, and 
maintaining open channels of communication.
 
commitment 4.2: Public trust anD 
commitmEnt
Sustain public trust and commitment in our schools 
through sound stewardship of resources, transparency 
in decision-making, and accelerated gains in student 
achievement.

maDEra: unifiED 
to ensure every 
student is educated for 
collEgE, equipped 
for carEEr, and 
empowered with 
cHaractEr

madera: unified for student success!
2012-2015 strategic Plan 

madera unified school District
 (madera, california)

our goal

tHE vital signs of stuDEnt 
groWtH anD DEvEloPmEnt

in madera, we are committed to educating the 
whole child through high expectations, community 
collaboration and shared responsibility for each student’s 
health, safety, and success in life. We want our students to experience 

continuous academic growth, embody 
academic tenacity, and model socio-
emotional resiliency.

 therefore, we will monitor and 
thoroughly analyze:

1.   self-responsibility, self-  
discipline and initiative

2.  critical thinking and   
problem-solving

3.   Proficiency in all subjects
4.   meaningful participation in class,  

 school and community
5.   acquisition of positive life skills
6.   closing the “achievement gap”  

 and accelerating learning for all  
 student groups

7.   successful transitions from   
 level-to-level (prekindergarten  
 –Elementary –secondary –post- 
 secondary)

42
295



The “Four Pillars” and Core Commitments 

 

In the Madera Unified School District, we are committed to high expectations, community 

collaboration, and shared responsibility for professional practices and student learning.  We aim 

to provide an effective teacher for every student and effective leader for every school. 

 

Our FOUR PILLARS are the building blocks of our professional practices; they frame what we must 

do well in every classroom, in every school, and system-wide to ensure success for all students, 

without exception. 

 

 

Our first Pillar – EQUITABLE ACCESS TO RIGOROUS HIGH-LEVEL PROGRAMS – ensures 

that Curriculum, standards-based instruction, and programs are directly driven to provide all 

students with equal levels of opportunity and achievement.  The Commitments that accompany 

our first Pillar are as follows: 

 

Commitment 1.1:  STRONG CORE ACADEMIC PROGRAMS 

Build and sustain a standards-aligned instructional system that promotes a culture of high 

standards for all students, with the expectation that all students complete academic 

programs of study that equip them for success at the next level in school, college and 

career. 

 

Commitment 1.2: CONSISTENT IMPLEMENTATION OF THE INSTRUCTIONAL FOCUS 

Ensure consistency in teaching practices, leadership practices, and organizational 

practices by implementing the Instructional Focus with fidelity in every school. 

 

 

 

Our second Pillar – DATA-DRIVEN PROFESSIONAL LEARNING & COLLABORATION – 

promotes meaningful collaboration and professional learning to improve and shift practices in 

every classroom, every school, and every district-level department.  The corresponding 

Commitments are as follows: 

 

Commitment 2.1: INVESTING IN GROWTH OF TEACHERS, LEADERS AND STAFF 
Accelerate instructional effectiveness by investing in evidence-based collaboration, 

differentiated professional development, timely support, and leadership development for 

teachers, leaders and staff. 

 

Commitment 2.2: DATA-INFORMED CULTURE 
Reinforce continuous improvement and innovation by making decisions based on fact 

instead of opinion, using data-driven cycle of inquiry, and motivating professional 

accountability among teachers, leaders and staff. 
 

 

43
296



 

Our third Pillar – SAFE AND HEALTHY ENVIRONMENTS FOR LEARNING & WORK – focuses 

on school-level and district-wide culture and structures that support the personal safety of the 

students, staff and community with fair and consistent expectations.. 

 

Commitment 3.1: SAFE, CARING AND RESPECTFUL ENVIRONMENT 
Maintain a healthy, caring, respectful and drug-free environment for learning and work, 

with equitable reinforcement of the guidelines of conduct for students and adults, and 

nurture socio-emotional resilience in our students through collaboration among school, 

home, public safety, health and recreational agencies, and community-based 

organizations. 

 

Commitment 3.2: RESPONSIVE DISTRICT SUPPORTS AND SERVICES 
Empower our schools in carrying out their mission by providing sound stewardship of 

resources, effective and responsive services, and ongoing training for district-level and 

support staffs. 
 

 

 

Our fourth Pillar – STRONG RELATIONSHIPS WITH FAMILIES & COMMUNITY – recognizes 

that schools can’t do it alone.  Therefore, we will initiate and sustain relationships among home-

school-community through shared responsibility for student success, proactive communication 

and meaningful stakeholder “voice.”  

 

Commitment 4.1: PROACTIVE OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION TO PARENTS AND 

COMMUNITY PARTNERS 

Embrace parents and families as partners in student learning through mutual respect, 

culturally inclusive practices, and open communication, and nurture enduring 

partnerships with our external stakeholders by linking school-based learning with the 

world of work, aligning resources for cost-effectiveness, and maintaining open channels 

of communication with leaders and policymakers. 

 

Commitment 4.2: PUBLIC TRUST AND COMMITMENT 
Sustain public trust and commitment in our schools through sound stewardship of 

resources, transparency in decision-making, and accelerated gains in student 

achievement. 
 

 

The Four Pillars and corresponding Commitments provide a consistent framework for day-to-day 

action, allocating resources, assessing the impact of taxpayers’ investments in our public 

schools, and accelerating student achievement in Madera schools. 
 

 

44
297



The Key Actions 

PILLAR #1: EQUITABLE ACCESS TO RIGOROUS HIGH-LEVEL PROGRAMS 
 

Commitment 1.1:  STRONG CORE ACADEMIC PROGRAMS 
Build and sustain a standards-aligned instructional system that promotes a culture of high 

standards for all students, with the expectation that all students complete academic programs 

of study that equip them for success at the next level in school, college and career. 

 

 

Specific Key Actions relating to this Commitment are as follows. 

 

1.1.1 Reaffirm uniform academic standards, learning outcomes and graduation requirements 

for all students, including completion of the California A-to-G criteria and proficiency based on 

the Common Core State Standard. 

 

1.1.2 Maintain the system-wide commitment to and continuously update implementation of 

the five strategies of the District Instructional Action Plan (DIAP), namely: Instructional Program; 

Instructional Strategies; Response to Intervention - Academic & Behavior; Assessment; and 

Accountability.  Fully integrate the DIAP as the base model and adjust as necessary based on 

school-level needs and data about student learning and professional practices. 

 
1.1.3 Strengthen the instructional core in each content area through disciplined 

implementation of the six components of a standards-aligned instructional system, namely: 

 

Standards 

 

 Revise District Level Assessments to reflect the Smarter Balanced assessment system 

that will measure mastery of the California Common Core Standards and provide 

actionable information about student progress toward college and career readiness 

beginning in 2014-2015.  

 Expand training in the development of Common Formative Assessments beyond 

multiple-choice questions by including short and extended constructed response 

items and performance tasks that allow students to complete in depth projects that 

demonstrate analytical skills and real-world problem solving. 

 Transition to the full implementation of the California Common Core Standards by the 

2014-2015 school year.   

 Continue to refine and execute the California Common Core Standards 

Implementation Plan. 

 Provide teachers with professional development in the scope and sequence of the 

standards, evidenced based assessment, and authentic work that reflects mastery of 

the standards. 

 

 

Assessments 

45
298



 

 

Curriculum 

 Revise and/or update curriculum guides to reflect the California Common Core 

Standards, and to include sequencing and/or pacing guidance for common 

instruction and assessment. 

 Provide professional development regarding effective use of curriculum aides and 

instructional materials focused on the standards-aligned and State Board of 

Education-approved core program. 

 Provide professional development in deconstructing standards and backwards 

mapping using district curriculum guides. 

 

 

 

 

 Provide instructional assistance and support to all teachers using trained content 

experts, instructional coaches, and teacher-leaders who are knowledgeable about 

the common core standards, adopted program materials, and the effective 

instructional strategies. 

 Utilize the direct instruction lesson design and delivery model to implement the 

Common Core standards.  

 Provide professional development in instructional strategies to support struggling 

students, especially English learners and special education pupils. 

 

 

Instructional Materials 

 

 Identify and purchase State Board of Education (SBE)-approved materials to support 

the implementation of the California Common Core Standards in the content areas.  

 Identify and purchase SBE-approved intensive intervention materials for each 

content area. 

 

 

Intervention 

 

 Develop and implement a coherent system of timely, accelerated intervention for 

underperforming students, with particular emphasis on strengthening proficiency of 

English learners, special education pupils, and chronically underperforming students. 

 Identify research-based programs appropriate for Tier II Interventions to serve as a 

resource at the school site, and designate standard district assessment tools that will 

be used in the evaluation of student movement within the Response to Intervention 

(RtI) model. 

 Identify and purchase SBE-approved intensive intervention materials for each 

content area. 

 

Instruction 

46
299



 

 

Commitment 1.2: CONSISTENT IMPLEMENTATION OF THE INSTRUCTIONAL FOCUS 
Ensure consistency in teaching practices, leadership practices, and organizational practices by 

implementing the Instructional Focus with fidelity in every school. 

 

 

Specific Key Actions relating to this Commitment are as follows. 

 

1.2.1 Embed the teaching practices, leadership practices, organizational practices, and vital 

signs outlined in the system-wide Instructional Focus in day-to-day instructional design, delivery, 

and monitoring (See Appendix for the Instructional Focus). 

 

1.2.2 Provide timely, easy-to-understand diagnostic and formative assessment data to 

teachers and school leaders to facilitate evidence-based continuous improvement of 

professional practices and student learning. 

 

1.2.3 Conduct evidence-based collegial reflection at the end of each assessment cycle to 

monitor and communicate classroom, school-wide and district-wide progress on student 

learning and professional practices. 

 

 

47
300



 

PILLAR #2: DATA-DRIVEN PROFESSIONAL 

LEARNING AND COLLABORATION 
 

Commitment 2.1: INVESTING IN GROWTH OF TEACHERS, LEADERS AND STAFF 
Accelerate instructional effectiveness by investing in evidence-based collaboration, 

differentiated professional development, timely support, and leadership development for 

teachers, leaders and staff. 

 

 

Specific Key Actions relating to this Commitment are as follows. 

 

2.1.1 Define the Madera Standards of Professional Practice for teachers, school administrators, 

district-level leaders and managers, and support staffs outline professional expectations and 

explicit criteria for assessing progress toward and supporting mastery of the professional 

standards. 

 

2.1.2 Develop and implement Madera Practitioners’ Academies as avenues for implementing 

practice-based professional development aligned to the Madera Standards of Professional 

Practice for teachers, leaders and staff.  Ensure that the Academies provide ongoing 

opportunities for coaching, mentoring, and collaboration in areas that include: 

 

 Motivation strategies for students and adults 

 Acquisition of deeper knowledge of content 

 Research-based instructional strategies 

 Proven practices for English learners and Special Education students 

 Instructional supervision, feedback and support 

 “Nuts-&-bolts” of school management 

 

2.1.3 Establish the Madera Professional Development Council (made up of teachers, site 

leaders, classified staff, district-level personnel, and appropriate external partners) to: 

 

 Assess the effectiveness of professional development programs on an ongoing basis 

 Develop annual plans to ensure consistency, equity of opportunity, and alignment 

with district priorities; 

 Serve as a communication bridge between practitioners and district leadership 

 

2.1.4 Strengthen leadership effectiveness at all levels through continuous learning for 

principals, administrators and teacher-leaders, and by nurturing new leaders by: 

 

 Developing strong Instructional Leadership Team (ILT) or equivalent at each school 

 Cultivating a cadre of Madera practitioners – teachers, leaders, and staff – to 

facilitate professional development offerings competently and confidently for their 

colleagues  

 Developing and implementing a year-round leadership development curriculum for 

site administrators, managers, and district-level leaders focused on strengthening 

their capabilities and effectiveness relative to the California Standards for 

Educational Leaders (or equivalent) 

 Promoting greater parent and community leadership on School Site Councils, English 

Learner Advisory Committees, parent clubs, school and district task forces, etc. 

 

48
301



2.1.5 Facilitate induction of new teachers into the rigors of their profession by offering 

orientation, training and mentor-teacher support in areas such as: classroom management, 

teaching students from diverse backgrounds, differentiated instruction, student engagement, 

higher-order thinking, checking for understanding, maintaining a reflective portfolio, 

collaboration with colleagues, and engaging parents as partners in student learning. 

  

 

Commitment 2.2: DATA-INFORMED CULTURE 
Reinforce continuous improvement and innovation by making decisions based on fact instead 

of opinion, using data-driven cycle of inquiry, and motivating professional accountability among 

teachers, leaders and staff. 

 

 

Specific Key Actions relating to this Commitment are as follows. 

 

2.2.1 Motivate a system-wide focus on performance, professional accountability, and 

celebration of progress by: 

 

 Setting clear annual goals and performance targets for schools, departments, and 

district-wide 

 Systematically reporting progress from classroom level to board level, based on data  

 Recognizing and periodically celebrating accomplishment of teams and schools via 

school based award ceremonies, using local media to recognize accomplishments, 

and holding annual district award ceremony 

 

2.2.2 Strengthen implementation of the cycle of inquiry (COI) as a tool for continuous 

improvement of practices and processes at every level, including: 

 

 Developing 6-12-week instructional plans, including identifying the essential learning 

for the cycle, setting SMARTE goals, identifying core instructional strategies, outlining 

intervention for “focus” students, and detailing the week-by-week pacing calendar 

 Conducting a Data Summit at the end of each assessment cycle, including analysis 

of student data and assessment of effectiveness of implementation of the 

professional practices in the system-wide Instructional Focus 

 Monitoring and reflecting on instruction day-to-day, and providing timely support 

and intervention to teachers and students to ensure successful learning 

 Refining district-wide data management system to facilitate cycle of inquiry 

practices, assessments development and data recording 

 

49
302



 

 

PILLAR #3: SAFE AND HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT 

FOR LEARNING AND WORK 
 

Commitment 3.1: SAFE, CARING AND RESPECTFUL ENVIRONMENT 
Maintain a healthy, caring, respectful and drug-free environment for learning and work, with 

equitable reinforcement of the guidelines of conduct for students and adults, and nurture socio-

emotional resilience in our students through collaboration among school, home, public safety, 

health and recreational agencies, and community-based organizations. 

 

 

Specific Key Actions relating to this Commitment are as follows. 

 

3.1.1 Review and revise district policies and procedures and provide training for teachers, 

staff, and administrators regarding effective strategies for addressing bullying, drug use and 

other unhealthy behaviors among students. 

 

3.1.2 Partner with governmental agencies (e.g., Parks & Recreation), community-based 

organizations, youth development agencies, and law-enforcement to motivate and reward 

positive student behavior. 

 

3.1.3 Encourage student leadership, voice, and engagement through strategies that include:  

 Establishing strong student-driven leadership in every school 

 Inviting the perspective of students regarding how motivate safe and healthy 

conduct among students 

 Conducting an annual survey of students to assess their perception and satisfaction 

regarding their academic and socio-emotional experiences 

 

 

Commitment 3.2: RESPONSIVE DISTRICT SUPPORTS AND SERVICES 
Empower our schools in carrying out their mission by providing sound stewardship of resources, 

effective and responsive services, and ongoing training for district-level and support staffs. 

 

 

Specific Key Actions relating to this Commitment are as follows. 

 

3.2.1 Improve the efficiency and effectiveness of services provided by district-level 

departments, in ways that enable schools to fully carry out their core teaching-and-learning 

mission. 

 

 Business Office – Fully integrate all budgets to best serve the students, implement a 

user-friendly process that can be understood by all, and offer training that will 

facilitate the flow of information. 

 

 Child Nutrition – Enhance quality and enjoyment of food services offerings by seeking 

input and feedback from the students. 

 

 Data Processing – Restructure and incorporate a long-term data processing plan with 

budget. 

 

50
303



 Facilities Planning – Implement a comprehensive master facilities plan. 

 

 Maintenance & Operations – Improve communication with sites and inform them 

upfront of what the department plans to do and why. 

 

 Purchasing – Implement an online purchasing process. 

 

 Transportation – Implement efficiency study. 

 

 Security/Gang Intervention – Align systems among district office, school sites and 

public-safety partners, and provide needed training. 

 

3.2.2  Review and revise the use of technology as a platform for conducting the work of the 

district and schools in a seamless way, and provide a technology-rich environment for students 

and staff through staff development on how to use classroom technology effectively to 

enhance instruction and keeping network and hardware resources in sound working order. 

 

3.2.3 Review and revise the efficiency and effectiveness in all human resource functions: 

 

 Institute uniform hiring practices such as job descriptions, postings, screenings, 

interview protocols, and timelines. 

 Strengthen employee relations, including building strong working partnerships with 

employee Unions, and promoting work-life balance programs. 

 Continually seek ways to improve the organizational climate, using employee 

“voice” surveys and other stakeholder feedback. 

 Strengthen communications with job-applicants and establish a transparent process 

for prospective applicants. 

 Improve customer service through timely, friendly, responsive feedback and follow-

through. 

 

3.2.4 Conduct annual feedback surveys of each department’s customers/clients to assess the 

quality of services provided by the unit, identify opportunities for improvement, compile 

annual service ratings, and recognize departments that meet improvement targets 

and/or achieved significant year-to-gain growth in their services ratings. 

  

 

51
304



 

PILLAR #4: STRONG RELATIONSHIPS WITH FAMILIES AND COMMUNITY 
 

Commitment 4.1: PROACTIVE OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION TO PARENTS 

AND COMMUNITY PARTNERS 
Embrace parents and families as partners in student learning through mutual respect, culturally 

inclusive practices, and open communication, and nurture enduring partnerships with our 

external stakeholders by linking school-based learning with the world of work, aligning resources 

for cost-effectiveness, and maintaining open channels of communication with leaders and 

policymakers. 

 

 

Specific Key Actions relating to this Commitment are as follows. 

 
4.1.1 Enhance the engagement of parents in the learning and growth of their students by: 

 
 Using a student-teacher-parent Compact for Learning to clarify the responsibilities 

and commitments of each party to student success 

 Providing parents/guardians with family-friendly report cards that show student 

progress toward grade-level, promotion and graduation standards 

 Holding periodic parent-teacher-student conferences to review progress and define 

improvement objectives 

 Conducting annual surveys of students and families to assess their perception, 

satisfaction and suggestions regarding their educational experiences 

 Publishing a quarterly newsletter, and using the district website, social media (e.g., 

Twitter, Facebook) to communicate with parents and families on an ongoing basis 

 

4.1.2 Foster stronger partnership with community groups to promote shared responsibility for 

student learning and strategic use of resources: 

 

 Community-based Organizations – Begin Speakers’ Circuit to regularly address 

service organizations and to promote volunteerism in Madera schools 

 Local Governmental Agencies – Employ more “wrap-around,” community-engaging 

models in Madera schools; long-range master planning, including joint purchase of 

property, use of facilities; use of City of Madera facilities for school functions and 

events (e.g., Sober Grad, basketball leagues) 

 

 Health, Social Services and Safety Agencies – Promote joint-use message/alert 

system; explore joint grant opportunities to fund safety personnel; help drive 

collaboration between Police Department, County Sheriff’s Office, and the district; 

explore options beyond two full-time retired sworn officers (SRO’s). 

 

 

52
305



Commitment 4.2: PUBLIC TRUST AND COMMITMENT 

Sustain public trust and commitment in our schools through sound stewardship of resources, 

transparency in decision-making, and accelerated gains in student achievement. 

 

 

Specific Key Actions relating to this Commitment are as follows. 

 
4.2.1 Establish the Community Roundtable for Performance and Accountability to build and 

sustain community commitment to a strong, high-performing, accountable school system: 

 
 Ensure that the Community Roundtable is representative of all Madera’s internal and 

external stakeholders 
 Establish annual goals for the district and its stakeholders in ways that ensure 

alignment of focus and resources and acceleration of outcomes for students 
 Present progress reports to the Board of Directors biannually and compile annual 

report on progress relative to the goals outlined for each stakeholders 
 Holding an annual recognition ceremony to acknowledge students, employees, 

parents, schools, community partners and district-level departments for their 

contributions relative to meeting the priorities defined in their annual plans 

 
 

 

53
306



CHAPTER SIX 

Appendix 

 
Members of the Core 

Planning Team 

 

First Name Last Name Organization Position/Title 
    

Michelle  Alexander NAACP Madera Chapter  

Ricardo  Arredondo MUSD Trustee 

Marvin  Baker MUSD Middle School Principal 

Gustavo  Balderas MUSD Superintendent 

Eugene  Bell Kings View Workforce "Ready-

Set-Go" Program 

 Executive Director 

Mark  Beveridge MUSD K-8 Principal 

Jake  Bragonier MUSD employee until July 2012 Former Director of 

Communications 

Debi  Bray Madera Chamber of 

Commerce   President 

 

Luis  Ceja Community member Parent/Community leader 

Tom  Chagoya MUSD Elementary Principal 

Robert  Chavez MUSD Chief Academic Officer 

Alma  De Luna MUSD Director of English Learners 

John  Denno MUSD Continuation High School 

Principal 

Lisa  Fernandez MUSD Elementary Principal 

Alex Garcia Garcia AMAE Madera Chapter President 

Laura  Garibay MUSD Teacher 

Chuck  Genseal Community member  

Pat  Gordon JBT FoodTech, Madera Human Resources Executive 

Kathy   Horn Madera Unified Teachers 

Association (MUTA) 

Teacher Union President 

Steve  Imrie MUSD - retired 6/30/12 Director of Technology 

54
307



Babette Jaire MUSD  Teacher 

Omar  Jeronimo MUSD Elementary Principal 

Michael  Kime City of Madera Chief of Police 

Mike  Lennemann MUSD - retired 6/30/12 Director of Human Resources 

David  Merchen City of Madera Director of Community 

Development 

Rebecca  Murdoch MUSD Teacher  

Melissa  Murray MUSD Elementary Principal 

Danna  Petty Classified School Employees 

Association (CSEA)  

Classified Union President 

Kelly  Porterfield MUSD Employee until July 2012 Former Associate 

Superintendent 

Elizabeth  Runyon MUSD Elementary Principal 

Jody  Salazar MUSD Teacher 

Sandon  Schwartz MUSD High School Principal 

Mary Anne  Seay City of Madera Director of Parks and 

Community Services 

Ray  Seibert MUSD Trustee 

Jim  Taubert RDA Successor Agency Executive Director 

Laura  Toney MUSD Teacher on Special Assignment 

Debie  Wood MUSD Associate Superintendent 

    

55
308



 

56
309



 

57
310



58
311



 

59
312



 

Madera: Unified for Student Success! 
2012 –2015 Strategic Plan 

Madera Unified School District 

Madera, California 

 

313



AGENDA ITEM 
MADERA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
           
 
Date:     August 28, 2012   
 
Subject:    Issuance of Expulsion/ Readmission Orders 
 
Responsible Staff:     Dr. Anthony A. Monreal, Deputy Superintendent  
     Deborah A. Wood, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services  
 
Agenda Placement:   New Business 
 
Background/ rationale:  
The Governing Board is requested to adopt the findings, conclusions and recommendations 
related to the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are presented to the board 
in one or more of the following forms of documentation:  
 

• Reports(s) of Administrative hearing Panel(s) 
• Expulsion Status Review Report(s) by the Superintendent’s Designee 
• Stipulated Expulsion Agreement(s) 

 
The Governing Board is also requested to issue orders consistent with the above referenced 
findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the possible expulsion or readmission 
of pupils in the cases of the following students, herein identified by their district-assigned 
identification numbers:  997112, 301104, 303561, 201725, 303775, 401375, 200731, 
201868, 5374, 401243, 997603, 404113, 302366, 301706, 6930, 401210, 5160, and 5350.   
 
 

Financial impact:   None   
 
 

Superintendent’s recommendation: 
The Superintendent recommends adoption of the findings, conclusions and 
recommendations made by staff. 
 
 

Supporting documents attached:  
Confidential information regarding each student is provided to the Board under separate 
cover. 
 

 

314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351


	Agenda
	Request Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 14, 2012
	Board Minutes 8-14-12

	Request Approval of Resolution No. 08-2012/13 to Authorize Signatures on Designated MUSD Accounts/Documents
	Agenda Item Cover and Resolution No. 08-2012/13

	Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified School District and Linda Tuttle, retired certificated school nurse.
	Agenda Item Cover
	Tuttle Services Agreement

	Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified School District and Kathryn Funk, retired certificated school nurse.
	Agenda Item Cover 
	Funk Services Agreement

	Request Approval of Consultant Services Agreement between Madera Unified School District and Houghton Mifflin Harcourt/Riverside Publishing.
	Agenda Item Cover
	HMH Services Agreement

	Request Approval of individual agreements between Madera Unified School District and thirty three (33) approved Supplemental Educational Services (SES)providers by the California Department of Education to provide tutoring services to students who are enrolled in Program Improvement schools
	Agenda Item Cover
	Sample SES Agreement

	Request approval of Change Order #2 for La Vina Paving Project
	Agenda Item Cover
	Change Order #2 - RC General Engineering Proposal

	Request approval of Change Order #3 for La Vina Project
	Agenda Item Cover
	Change Order #3- RC General Engineering Proposal

	Request Approval of the 2012-13 Adopted Budgets for Sherman Thomas Charter, Sherman Thomas Charter High, and Ezequiel Tafoya Alvarado Academy.
	Agenta Item Cover and 2012-13 Charter Schools Adopted Budgets

	Request Approval of Staffing List
	Staffing List 8-28-12

	Field Trips 8/28/12
	Student Overnight or Out of State Field Trips

	Second Reading and Request Approval of Revised Board Policies and Administrative Regulations (7000 Series)
	Agenda Item Cover
	Board Policy Updates 7000 Series

	Second Reading and Approval of Revised Board Policies, Administrative Regulations and Exhibit.
	Agenda Item Cover 
	BP 5126
	AR 5126
	BP 5131
	BP 5131.2
	BP/AR 5141.6
	BP/AR 5144.1
	AR 5144.2
	BP 5145.3
	E 5145.6
	BP/AR 5145.7
	BP  6145
	AR 6145
	AR 6159
	BP 6178.1
	AR 6178.1

	Request Approval of the Madera Unified School District Strategic Action Plan
	Agenda Item Cover
	Strategic Action Plan

	The Governing Board is requested to adopt the findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils as these are presented to the board in one or more of the following forms of documentation: 

•	Reports(s) of Administrative hearing Panel(s)
•	Expulsion Status Review Report(s) by the Superintendent’s Designee
•	Stipulated Expulsion Agreement(s)

The Governing Board is also requested to issue orders consistent with the above referenced findings, conclusions and recommendations related to the possible expulsion or readmission of pupils in the cases of the following students, herein identified by their district-assigned identification numbers:  997112, 301104, 303561, 201725, 303775, 401375, 200731, 201868, 5374, 401243, 997603, 404113, 302366, 301706, 6930, 401210, 5160, and 5350
	Agenda Item Cover

	Request Approval of Commercial Warrant Listing
	Agenda Item Cover and Commercial Warrant Listing


